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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 0-23125
OSI SYSTEMS, INC.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chaet)
California 33-0238801
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.LR.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
12525 Chadron Avenue, Hawthorne, Californie 90250
(Address of Principal Executive Offices! (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code(310) 978-0516
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Common Stock, no par value
(Title of Class)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbdturities Act.  Yes{] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®eacl5(d) of the Act. Yes:OO
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastigs. Yes: No OO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlerrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatio-K is not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowtedig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRinle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filel] Accelerated fileix] Non-accelerated filéd
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yes:O No

The aggregate market value of the regis’s voting and nc-voting common stock held by n-affiliates computed by reference to
price at which the common stock was last sold aBerember 30, 2005, the last business day of tfistrant’s most recently completed sec
fiscal quarter was $301,154,585.

The number of shares outstanding of the regi<’s common stock as of September 20, 2006 was 12&!

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement relatinghe 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (tdiled subsequently) are incorporated
by reference into Part lIl.
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PART I

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains “forward-looking statementsthin the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995,
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as aneenahd Section 21E of the Securities Exchange At984, as amended. Forward-looking
statements relate to expectations concerning rsdttat are not historical facts. Words such asjéots,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,”
“expects,” “intends,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “woud,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely resul t” and similar words and expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Bédieve that the expectations reflected in thevéwd-looking statements are reasonable, but
those expectations may not prove to be correctottapt factors that could cause our actual resoltsffer materially from those expectations
are disclosed in this report, including, withoutiliation, those described in Part I, Item 1, “Bess,” Part |, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and Part
I, ltem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analydigmancial Condition and Results of Operationstesd| as elsewhere in this report and
other documents previously filed or hereafter filgdus from time to time with the Securities and¢Eange Commission. Such factors, of
course, do not include all factors that might affaer business and financial condition. Althoughhlredieve that the assumptions upon which
our forwardlooking statements are based are reasonable, ssgmptions could prove to be inaccurate and actsalts could differ material
from those expressed in or implied by the forwaroking statements. All forward-looking statemerdatained in this report are qualified in
their entirety by this statement. We undertake Ioi@ation other than as may be required under #éesitaws to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a resufitea¥ information, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

OSI Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries is a valyidategrated designer and manufacturer of speedlelectronic systems a
components for critical applications. We sell otwqucts in diversified markets, including homelaedurity, healthcare, defense and
aerospace. Our company was incorporated in 198alifornia. Our principal office is located at 1Z€hadron Avenue, Hawthorne,
California 90250.

We have three operating divisions: (a) Securitgyjating security and inspection systems; (b) Health, providing medical monitoring
and anesthesia systems; and (c) OptoelectronicMandfacturing, providing specialized electroniengmonents for affiliated end-products
divisions, as well as for applications in the defeand aerospace markets, among others.

In our Security division, we design, manufacturd erarket security and inspection systems worldwidend users under the “Rapiscan
Systems” trade name. Rapiscan Systems productseadeto inspect baggage, cargo, vehicles and objects for weapons, explosives, drugs
and other contraband, and to screen people. Thiedagis are also used for the safe, accurate dietbaf verification of cargo manifests for
the purpose of assessing duties and monitoringstpert and import of controlled materials. Rapis8gstems’ products fall into four
categories: baggage and parcel inspection, carg@elnicle inspection, hold (checked) baggage sangeand people screening.

In our Healthcare division, we design, manufacamd market medical monitoring and anesthesia systeonidwide to end users under
several brand names. Our medical monitoring systegts/ork and connectivity solutions, ambulatorgda pressure monitors and related
services are sold under the “Spacelabs Medicatietrame. Our anesthesia systems and componerssl@anender the “Blease” trade name.
Our arterial hemoglobin saturation monitors andsses) including hand-held and wireless monitorogld, are sold under the “Dolphin” brand
name and our peripheral bone densitometers arabalind bone sonometers are sold under the “Ostedrbeand name.
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In our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisiomg design, manufacture and market optoelectroniicds and value-added
manufacturing services worldwide for use in a broamye of applications, including aerospace andrdf electronics, security and inspection
systems, medical imaging and diagnostics, computadgraphy (CT), fiber optics, telecommunicatiogeming, office automation, computer
peripherals and industrial automation. We sell@ptoelectronic devices under the “OSI Optoelect®hirade name and perform our value-
added manufacturing services under the “OSI Elaats3 trade name. We provide our optoelectronideks/and value-added manufacturing
services to original equipment manufacturers, dsageo our own Security and Healthcare divisidbar Optoelectronics and Manufacturing
division also designs, manufactures and marketpareasimulation systems under the “OSI| DefenseeByst trade name and toll and traffic
management systems under the “OSI LaserScan” trae.

In fiscal year 2006, revenues from the Securitysitim amounted to $135.1 million, or approximatd0f6 of our revenues. Revenues
from the Healthcare division amounted to $220.8iom) or approximately 49% of our revenues and nexss from the Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division amounted to $97.0 milliom,approximately 21% of revenues. Additional infotina concerning reporting segments is
available in Note 15 to our consolidated finansiatements.

Industry Overview

We sell our security and inspection systems andgakdhonitoring and anesthesia systems primarikgrtd-users, while we design and
manufacture our optoelectronic devices and valueddubsystems primarily for original equipment ofanturers.

Security. A variety of technologies are currently usedldwide in security and inspection applicationgluding computed
tomography, transmission and backscatter x-rayahaetection, trace detection and x-ray, gamiemaand neutron analysis. We believe that
market for security and inspection products wilhtioue to be affected by the threat of terrorisidents and by new government mandates and
appropriations for security and inspection prodicthe United States and internationally.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks on thddMarade Center and the Pentagon using hijackdidexis has led to nationwide shifts
in transportation and facilities security polici&hortly following these attacks, Congress passed\Wiation and Transportation Security Act
and integrated many U.S. security-related agenitiekiding the Federal Aviation Administration, énthe U.S. Department of Homeland
Security. Under its directive from Congress, th8.Department of Homeland Security has since uakientnumerous projects such as ones
designed to distinguish terrorists from benignteis entering the country, to prevent terroristerfrobtaining and trafficking in weapons of
mass destruction and their components, to secuasitise U.S. technologies and to identify and sareigh-risk cargo containers before they
are loaded onto vessels destined for the U.S., gratirers. These projects, known, for example, esthategic Border Initiative, the Customs-
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism and the U.St@us and Border Protection Container Securityaltivie, have resulted in an increased
demand for security and inspection products bothénUnited States and other nations.

Projects underway in the United States, such ablt8eCustoms and Border Protection Container S$igduitiative and the Customs-
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism, have creatéplde effect in other areas of the world becahsg call on other nations to bolster their
port security strategies, including by acquiringroproving their security and inspection equipm@ifite international market for non-intrusive
inspection equipment, therefore, continues to edancountries that ship goods directly to the éthBtates are required to improve their
security infrastructure.

Furthermore, the U.S. Department of Homeland Sscsitscience and Technology Directorate has supgdite development of new
security inspection technologies and products. &aurity division participates in a number of suebearch and development efforts,
including projects to develop new
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technologies for radiation and nuclear materiatectén, aviation screening and suicide bomberdiiete. The Science and Technology
Directorate has also initiated programs for theeflgyment of technologies capable of protecting Ways, railways and waterways from
terrorist attack.

In addition to these homeland protection activjtibe U.S. Department of Defense has also beginvést more heavily in technologies
and services that screen would-be attackers b#feseare able to harm U.S. and allied forces.

Similar initiatives by international organizatiomsch as the European Union have also resultedjioveing worldwide demand for
airline, cargo, port and border inspection techgias. For example, the European Union is expectésktie uniform performance standards for
people, cargo, mail and parcel and hold baggagesirg systems as well as new directives relatedifigally to maritime security. We
anticipate that the promulgation of these new stedglwill establish performance baselines agaihétiwour Security division will be able to
direct certain of its research and developmentdipgrand market its products to customers locatetie European Union.

As a result of these and other changes, salesrafemurity and inspection products have grown aspased to pre-September 11, 2001
levels. Major international projects recently iflge or currently underway include system instadias in Hong Kong, India, Jamaica,
Malaysia, Mexico, Romania, South Korea and Taiveenong others. These sites contain various cargeation product offerings including
mobile, fixed and relocatable high-energy x-raybiteogamma-ray and hybrid x-ray/thermo neutron gsialscanning systems. We anticipate
that there may be growing demand from governmermdscammercial enterprises for increasingly sopteséd solutions to screening vehicles,
trucks, ocean-going cargo, rail cars and air pathetainers.

Healthcare. Healthcare is a rapidly growing sector throughoost of the world and especially in many Asiad &atin American
economies. In much of the developed world, inclgdmthe United States and Europe, an aging papulé also fueling growth.

Many factors such as a severe nursing shortageithited States and Europe, stricter governmeptinrements affecting the staffing ¢
accountability and shrinking reimbursements froraltheinsurance organizations are forcing healthpaogiders to do more with less. Our
Healthcare division designs, manufactures and nsgkeducts that respond to these new economiesdrg helping hospitals reduce costs
while maintaining or improving the quality of cateeir physicians and nurses are able to deliver.

We are a global manufacturer and distributor ofgpaitmonitoring and clinical networking solutiore use primarily in hospitals. We
design, manufacture and market patient monitoratgt®ns for critical, emergency and perioperatiage areas of the hospital, wired and
wireless networks, ambulatory blood pressure mon#nd medical data services, all aimed at progidaregivers with timely patient
information. By making critical patient informationore readily accessible both inside and outsidéntispital, delays in decision-making can
be reduced, length of stay can be shortened aathtemt errors can be minimized.

In February 2005, we acquired a global manufactamerdistributor of anesthesia delivery systemstilators and vaporizers. We sell
these products primarily to hospitals for use ierating rooms and anesthesia induction areas aasviel magnetic resonance imaging (MRI)
facilities. In addition, as pharmaceutical compardevelop new anesthesia agents for the worldwiald&en, or as generic alternatives to
patented anesthesia formulas become available,ofle closely with them to support their new prodinttoductions. As a result, we also sell
systems and components, such as anesthesia vapatizkventilators, directly to pharmaceutical canips and other manufacturers of
anesthesia delivery systems.

We also design, manufacture and market next-geéorratilse oximetry instruments and compatible polsenetry sensors, which are
used to non-invasively monitor oxygenation levelsiipatient’s blood. Additionally, we design, maamifire and market x-ray densitometers
and ultrasound scanners, which are used to diagrsiseporosis as well as to provide follow-up bdaasity measurements.
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This division has grown from approximately $11 iifl in annual revenues in fiscal year 2003 to apiprately $221 million in fiscal
year 2006, primarily as a result of the acquisgiofi Spacelabs Medical and Blease. In connectidm this growth, during fiscal year 2006
formed Spacelabs Healthcare, Inc. to serve asdirfgptompany for the Spacelabs Medical, BleasepBinland Osteometer business
operations. In the second quarter of fiscal ye@62We then completed an initial public offeringapfproximately 13.5 million previously
unissued shares of Spacelabs Healthcare commdn stpcesenting approximately 20% of its total e$and outstanding shares. The newly
issued shares began trading on the Alternativestnvent Market (AIM), a market administered by tlmton Stock Exchange, on October 31,
2005 under the ticker symbol “SLAB.”

Subsequent to fiscal year end, on July 31, 200&¢c&pbs Healthcare completed the acquisition obgleMar Reynolds Cardiac division
of Ferraris Group PLC, a company registered in &mngjland Wales. The acquired operations developyufacture and market cardiac
monitoring systems, including Holter recorders, EGtEess systems and related software and setaidesspitals, primarily in the U.S.,
Germany and the United Kingdom. Del Mar Reynold® a@perates a core laboratory business that preiitecal trial services to
pharmaceutical companies and to clinical researgargzations.

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing. Our optoelectronic devices are used in a waléety of applications such as satellites, laser
guidance systems, range finders, computer perifghenal other applications that require the conwersi optical signals into electronic sign
Because optoelectronic devices and value-addegsteinss can be used in a wide variety of measureatenitol and monitoring applications,
they are also used in a broad array of industgplieations and are key components in the telecomcations and fiber optics industries.
Historically, we have offered value-added manufaotuservices to purchasers of our optoelectroeidaks, including to our Security and
Healthcare divisions. More recently, however, weehbegun to expand such services by providing cetapurn-key and box-build
manufacturing services, in which we can designuaieqnaterials, produce, test and supply electrepétems and components to purchasers of
optoelectronic devices and to others.

We believe that recent advances in technology addations in the cost of key components of optdedac systems, including compu
processing power and memory, have broadened theetmar enabling the use of optoelectronic devioes greater number of applications. In
addition, we see a trend among original equipmearufacturers to increasingly outsource the desighmnaanufacture of optoelectronic devi
as well as value-added subsystems to fully-integrahdependent manufacturers, like us, who mag lgaeater specialization, broader
expertise and the flexibility to respond in shottere periods than most original equipment manuii@ss can accomplish in-house. We believe
that our level of vertical integration, substangaljineering resources, expertise in the use gplicapon of optoelectronic technology and low-
cost international manufacturing operations enabléo compete effectively in the market for opto#lenic devices and for value-added
manufacturing services.

We have also penetrated several related markdtdepand on our optoelectronic technologies anctreleics manufacturing capabilitie
For example, we sell a series of high-speed phteattes for use in fiber optic systems such as Bigéthernet, Fiber Channel and other
telecommunication and data communication applioatid hrough system engineering, product developmapid prototyping and volume
manufacturing, we develop, manufacture and madsstrtbased weapons simulation systems for defensbameland security applications.
Products include tactical engagement simulatiotesys, small arms transmitters, controller gunsamdriety of targeting systems. We also
develop, manufacture and sell laser-based rematérgedevices that are used to detect and clagsificles in toll and traffic management
systems.

Growth Strategy

We believe that one of our primary competitive sgths is our expertise in the c-effective design and manufacture of speciali
electronic systems and components for criticaliappbns. As a result we have leveraged, and interuntinue to leverage, such expertise
capacity to gain price, performance and agility
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advantages over our competitors in the securitgitheare and optoelectronics fields, and to traagach advantages into profitable growth in
those fields. At the same time, we continually seekientify new markets in which our core experiisd capacity will provide us with
competitive advantages. Key elements of this sysateclude:

Capitalizing on Global Reack We operate from locations in North America,aAand Europe. We view our international operates
providing an important strategic advantage overpetitors. First, international manufacturing fa allow us to take advantage of
competitive labor rates and favorable tax regutetim order to be a low cost producer. Secondjrdarnational offices strengthen our sales
and marketing efforts and our ability to service apair our systems by providing direct acceggrdaving foreign markets and to our existing
international customer base. Third, multiple mantifeng locations allow us to reduce delivery tim@®ur global customer base. In the futi
we intend to develop new sources of manufacturimysales capabilities to maintain and enhanceéhefiis of our international presence.

Capitalizing on Vertical Integration. Our vertical integration provides several adages in each of our divisions. These advantages
include reduced manufacturing and delivery timewagr costs due to our access to competitive intemal labor markets, direct sourcing of
raw materials and quality control. We also belithest we offer significant added value to our custosrby providing a full range of vertically-
integrated services including component designcastbmization, subsystem concept design and atiplicangineering, product prototyping
and development, efficient pre-production and shamtand high volume manufacturing. We believe thatvertical integration differentiates
us from many of our competitors and provides vatueur customers who can rely on us to be an iatedrsupplier. We intend to continue to
leverage our vertically integrated services to egeater value for our customers in the desighraanufacture of our products. We believe
that this strategy better positions us for penietnahto end markets such as the markets for sgcamid inspection systems and medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems.

Capitalizing on the Growing Market for Security andhspection Systems Heightened attentiveness to terrorist and atkeurity
threats may continue to drive growth in the mafkesecurity and inspection systems, not only amgportation security, but in facilities
security, event security and materials inspecteowaell. In addition, the trend toward increasee@iinational transportation of goods may result
in growth in the market for cargo inspection syste¢hat are capable of screening shipping contafoersontraband and assisting customs
officials in the verification of shipping manifes®ackage screening by freight forwarders alscesgnts a potential growing sector, as new
regulations in Europe require such screening arat@vess of the need for such screening grows it #BeWe intend to continue to expand
our sales and marketing efforts both domesticaily iaternationally, and to capitalize on opportigsitto replace, service and upgrade existing
security installations. We also intend to contitueevelop new security and inspection technolggiesh as our real time tomography
products, and may enhance and expand our curredtipr offerings through selective acquisitions éttdér address new applications and
security industry demands.

Improving and Complementing Existing Medical Techlogies. We develop and market patient monitoring systémat provide
clinicians with critical, real-time patient informian and anesthesia delivery systems, ventilatodsvaporizers that utilize patient monitoring
technologies. As a result, we are able to marketsatl many of our various product offerings thrbwpared sales channels and distribution
networks. Our efforts to improve our existing mediiechnologies are focused on making patient médion available to care providers bott
the bedside as well as in other parts or even dmpay the hospital, thereby reducing time demandplysicians and nurses, enabling more
rapid treatment decisions and improving patien¢ c@verall, our efforts at improving our existingdical diagnostic and anesthesia delivery
technologies will also continue to concentratetfmdevelopment of devices that make it possiblénftitutions from large hospitals to small
clinics and physicians’ offices to obtain accuratecise, reliable and cost-effective results.

Selectively Entering New Markets. We intend to continue to selectively enter mearkets that complement our existing capabilities i
the design, development and manufacture of speethklectronic systems and components for criipglications such as security and
inspection and medical monitoring and
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anesthesia systems. We believe that by manufagterid products that rely on our existing technaaltapabilities, we will leverage our
integrated design and manufacturing infrastructoreapture greater margins and to build a largesgmce in new end markets that present
attractive competitive dynamics. We intend to acéithis strategy through internal growth and thtoaglective acquisitions.

Acquiring New Technologies and Companies.Our success depends in part on our abilitytgioually enhance and broaden our
product offerings in response to changing techrielgustomer demands and competitive pressurefiaéedeveloped expertise in our
various lines of business and other areas throutgihnal research and development efforts as welirasigh selective acquisitions. As a
vertically integrated designer and manufacturespefcialized electronic systems and componentsitizat applications, we have, since our
inception as a company, looked for acquisitionsoopymities to broaden our technological expertise eapabilities, lower our manufacturing
costs or facilitate our entry into new markets. Taiwing are recent acquisitions we have made:

In August 2002, we purchased a minority equityriegein CXR Limited, a United Kingdom based reskamed development compa
that develops real time tomography systems. In 2004, we increased our equity interest in CXRppreximately 75% and in December
2004 we acquired the remaining 25%. As compensadidine selling shareholders for this remainingiest, we have agreed to make certain
royalty payments based on sales of CXR’s produlietislarch 2006, our Security division received itstfcontract for such a system, known as
the Rapiscan RTT120 CT. The system is still unésetbpment and subject to the inherent risks amemainties of product development.
There is still no assurance of the successful cetigpl of development, timely or otherwise, or ¢é ttharacteristics of any final product, or
whether such final product will achieve certificatiby regulatory authorities.

In November 2002, we acquired all the outstandiqgjtel stock of Ancore Corporation (since renamagiBcan Systems Neutronics and
Advanced Technologies Corporation), a Santa C@aéifornia based company, for its advanced inspadtystems for aviation security, port
and border inspection and counterrorism. Consideration paid for the acquisitiemsisted of a combination of our Common Stock aagh®
approximately $10.4 million including professiofeés associated with the acquisition. In additthjng the five years following the close,
contingent consideration is payable based on tles sé certain of its products. The contingent édesation is capped at $34.0 million. As of
June 30, 2006, no earn-out payments had been earpadd.

In August 2003, we acquired the laser-based trgisystems business of Schwartz Electro-Optics,itna.bankruptcy-court supervised
auction in order to augment the defense optoeleicsacapabilities of our RapiTec, Inc. subsidigythe close of the transaction, we paid
approximately $3.7 million including professionakf associated with the acquisition. The acquisitias made through a newly formed,
wholly owned subsidiary, OSI Defense Systems, LTLKRe acquired business develops and manufacturésaiaeangagement simulation
systems, man worn laser detectors, small armsniigiess, controller guns and a variety of targetiygtems for the defense industry. Then, in
November 2003, we acquired substantially all reingiassets of Schwartz Elec-Optics, Inc. in a bankruptcy-court supervised eunctWe
paid approximately $1.6 million, including the aswiion of certain liabilities and bankefg'es. The acquired assets comprise a businedse
design, sales and manufacturing of laser-basedragstised in traffic management, precision agricalllmanagement and precision mapping
and surveying, all of which offered us certain igattintegration opportunities. The business, ledah Orlando, Florida, now operates under
the name OSI Laserscan.

In October 2003, we acquired the assets of a matwrfag services company specializing in surfaceimdechnology lines and PC boi
assembly operations for approximately $4.5 milliociuding professional fees associated with theumitipn. The acquisition, made through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, OSI Electronics, Inc., imped and expanded the manufacturing serviceseaffey our Optoelectronic
Manufacturing division.

In January 2004, we completed the acquisition ofékated Research & Applications Corp. (since renaRegaiscan Systems High
Energy Inspection Corporation), a privately-heldhpany located in Sunnyvale,
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California. Consideration for the acquisition cated of an initial cash payment of approximately.$Imillion (net of cash acquired),
including acquisition costs. Furthermore, during seven years following the close, contingent amrsition is payable based on its net
revenues, provided certain requirements are met.cbhtingent consideration is capped at $30.0anillAs of June 30, 2006, no contingent
consideration payments have been earned or paislahuisition broadened our security product pticfwith the addition of the Eagle, a
mobile x-ray inspection system that is designesicem shipping containers at busy seaports.

In March 2004, we completed the acquisition of ®tetas Medical, Inc. based in Issaquah, Washindtom Instrumentarium
Corporation, now a subsidiary of General Electrianpany. The acquisition price was approximately.$4iiillion in cash (net of cash
acquired), including acquisition costs. Spacelalesiighl is a leading global manufacturer and digtdb of patient monitoring systems for
critical care and anesthesia, wired and wirelessarés, clinical information connectivity solutionsmbulatory blood pressure monitors and
medical data services. These are areas in whideweonsiderable interest as they representedisahaktension of our engineering and
manufacturing expertise and would add to our presémthe medical device industry. The installedebaf Spacelabs Medical’s patient
monitoring systems consists of approximately 100,00its worldwide, with 60,000 in the United Statg8,000 in Europe and 10,000 in Asia.
In June 2004, we notified General Electric Compahg working capital and retention bonus adjustrmestilting in what we believe to be a
downward adjustment of the purchase price in thewarnof $25.9 million. In September 2004, GenetakEic Company responded that it
believes the amount of the downward adjustmenietapproximately $7.8 million. In June 2005, wediluit in Delaware seeking specific
performance of our agreement with respect to aeagaddent determination of the amount of the puepase adjustment. The action is
currently pending. No amounts have been recordéukifinancial statements in relation to the expéeeduction in the purchase price.

In February 2005, we completed the acquisition leBBe Medical Holdings Limited, based in Cheshanitdd Kingdom. We paid $9.3
million in cash (net of cash acquired), includirggjaisition costs. Furthermore, during the threeyéallowing the close, contingent
consideration is payable based on Blease’s nehteg provided certain requirements are met. Thérggent consideration is capped at £6.25
million (approximately $11.6 million as of June ZW06). The acquisition of Blease expands the plaotbf products offered by our medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems companies, egaldito develop and market products for the peretjve market.

On July 31, 2006, our majority-owned subsidiarya@&pabs Healthcare, completed the acquisitioneftdl Mar Reynolds Cardiac
division of Ferraris Group PLC, a company regisiéreEngland and Wales. Consideration for the aitjon consisted of an initial cash
payment of £13.9 million ($25.2 million), subjeotdn adjustment of plus or minus £1 million ($1.8iom) based upon revenue and earnings
results for Del Mar Reynolds for the 13-month pdramding September 30, 2006. Furthermore, contingarsideration of up to £5 million
($9.1 million) is payable if Del Mar Reynolds achés certain revenue targets during fiscal year 206@ additional earn-out, if any, may be
satisfied, at Spacelabs Healthcare’s discretidheein cash or by the issuance of Spacelabs Heattcommon stock. This acquisition
broadens the portfolio of products that we are &bleffer the hospital market, especially in Gergnand the United Kingdom, with the
addition of cardiac monitoring systems, as welhare laboratory business that provides clinidal $ervices to pharmaceutical companies
and to clinical research organizations.

Global Branding of our Divisions. In March 2005, we announced that the produfctaip Security division, which had previously been
sold under various brand names including “AncofBdgle,” “Metor,” “Rapiscan,” and “Secure,” woulclronsolidated under one overall
name—"Rapiscan Systems.” Since the announceménf, thie products of the companies that comprigeSmcurity division are being
marketed under the “Rapiscan Systems” umbrell&dtober 2005, Spacelabs Healthcare, a recentlyefdrsnbsidiary comprising the business
operations of our entire Healthcare division, coetgd an initial public offering of approximately%0of its total issued and outstanding
common stock. The newly issued Spacelabs Healtlstenes currently trade under the ticker symbolABLon the Alternative Investment
Market (AIM), a market administered by the Londdnck Exchange. Since this IPO, all of the companiigsin the Healthcare division
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operate under the “Spacelabs Healthcare” umbfeitelly, in February 2006 we announced that ouro®lgictronics and Manufacturing
division, which had previously marketed its opta#ienic devices under various brand names inclutiiigiT Sensors,” “AME,” “Centro
Vision,” “OSI Fibercomm” and “Opto Sensors,” wouwtdnsolidate them all under a single brand name—'"Q@&belectronics.” We have
undertaken each of these rebranding efforts, ity paorder to improve brand recognition for thedl range of complementary products and
services that are offered respectively within eafchur Security, Healthcare and Optoelectronics Miadufacturing divisions.

Products and Technology

We design, develop, manufacture and sell prodaetging from complex security and inspection systemmedical monitoring an
anesthesia systems to discrete optoelectronic el@waicd value-added subsystems.

Security and Inspection Systems We design, manufacture and market securityirspection systems worldwide to end users under
the “Rapiscan Systems” name. Rapiscan Systems @0dte used to inspect baggage, cargo, peopleleglnd other objects for weapons,
explosives, drugs and other contraband. Thesersgsaee also used for the safe, accurate and efficezification of cargo manifests for the
purpose of assessing duties and monitoring theregpd import of controlled materials. Rapiscant8ys products fall into four categories:
baggage and parcel inspection, cargo and vehispetion, hold (checked) baggage screening andgsopeening.

As a result of the terrorist attacks of Septemlder2001 and subsequent attacks in other worldvaddations, security and inspection
products have increasingly been used at a wideerahfacilities other than airports such as botessings, railway stations, seaports, cruise
line terminals, government and military installaoand nuclear facilities. As a result of the addal markets, we have successfully diversi
sales channels for our security and inspectionymrtsd

Many of our security and inspection systems in e#dhe baggage and parcel inspection, cargo ahitlegnspection, hold baggage
screening and people screening product categaviebioe the use of x-ray technology with our optoelmic capabilities. For example, some
of our products include dual- or multi-energy x-taghnology with computer software enhanced imaggegnology to facilitate the detection
of materials such as explosives, weapons, nar¢aticgency or other contraband. While all x-raytegss produce a two-dimensional image of
the contents of the inspected object, the dualggneiray systems also measure the x-ray absorpfitime inspected object’s contents at two x-
ray energies to determine the atomic number, nad®ther characteristics of the object’s contehi® various organic and inorganic
substances in the inspected object appear to opemaftthe inspection systems in various colorstarglvisual information can be used to
identify and differentiate the inspected materi@ar baggage and parcel inspection, cargo and leehigpection and hold baggage screening
inspection systems range in size from compact taplsystems to large systems comprising entiraimgs in which trucks, shipping
containers or pallets are inspected.

Our cargo and vehicle inspection applications, lvicl trucks, shipping containers, pallets and oligre objects can be inspected, are
designed in various configurations, including fixgte, gantry, relocatable, portal and mobile systeThese products are primarily used to
verify the contents of trucks or cargo containerd # detect the presence of contraband. They siif@ificant improvements over past
methods of cargo screening, such as manual seaahear cargo systems are faster, more thorougjld@amot subject the cargo to pilferage.
Entire shipping containers or trucks containingsigy packed goods can be screened rapidly.

Many of our cargo and vehicle inspection systerige@tonizing radiation, such as high-energy x-taygamma-ray beams, in
conjunction with digital imaging equipment to nortrusively inspect objects and present images togpector, showing shapes, sizes,
locations and relative densities of the contentanof these systems, such as the Rapiscan Edgjlesh was designed and developed under
contract with U.S. Customs and Border Protectiahtae U.S. Department of Defense, have been louitiget specific customer inspection
requirements.
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Other cargo and vehicle inspection products autimalgt and non-intrusively detect chemical signatimdicating the presence of
explosives and other contraband through the upellséd fast neutron and thermal neutron technodogie opposed to ionizing radiation.
Pulsed fast neutron and thermal neutron technadqggemit the operator to inspect cargo, vehiclesamtainers based on the distinctive
chemical composition of various forms of contrahaddr pulsed fast neutron analysis technology agesnetrating beam of fast neutrons to
measure the elemental contents (oxygen, nitroger),within scanned objects (cargo containerskisuetc.) and identify elemental signatures
of explosives, drugs or other contraband. The systatilizing this technology then display to thetgyn operator a three-dimensional image of
the scanned object, identifying the location argktgf suspect material found. Our systems utilizireymal neutron analysis technology use a
similar method to detect bulk quantities of explesi and drugs concealed in trucks or cargo contine

Our Security division is the only competitor in timarket offering x-ray, gamma-ray and neutron-basatkrial specific technologies. As
a result, we believe we offer the broadest tectgyofdatform in the cargo and vehicle inspectionays industry. This broad platform also
permits us to offer customers hybrid solutionszitig two or more of the technologies togetherrebg optimizing flexibility, performance ai
cost to meet the customer’s unique applicationireqents. Cargo and vehicle inspection systemsitgcimstalled or currently underway
include system installations in the United Sta@spa, Hong Kong, India, Malaysia, Mexico, Romar8auth Korea and Taiwan, among
others.

Our Security division also offers people screemnagucts such as a line of “Metor” brand walk-trghumetal detection products for use
at security checkpoints at airports, amusemensphanks, courthouses, government buildings, spoetsas and other venues. It also offers the
Rapiscan Secure 1000 personnel screener, whicteysesnely low dose backscatter x-ray imaging teckecontraband and weapons
concealed underneath clothing and hair. The RapiSezure 1000 provides enhanced screening comfmareetal detectors as it displays
anomalies caused by very small amounts of metaledisas nonmetallic items. As a result, the Rapiscan Secuf® Ian simultaneously loce
and detect conventional metal weapons, as wekesrdc knives, explosives, illicit drugs, precigustals, cameras, recording devices and
other contraband or security threats.

The following table sets forth certain informatiaiated to the standard security and inspectiodysts that we currently offer. We do,
however, also customize our standard productsitegecific applications and customer requirements:

PRODUCT NAME /

PRODUCT LINE PRODUCT FAMILY TECHNOLOGY MARKET SEGMENT
Baggage and Parcel Inspectio Rapiscan 500/600 series x-ray Dual-energy x-ray Checkpoint inspection at
systems airports, prisons, border

crossings and government
buildings; postal facilities for

mail screening

Cargo and Vehicle Inspectior Rapiscan Eagle High energy x-ray Cargo and vehicle inspection at
Rapiscan VEDS Thermal Neutron Analysis agﬁgrts, border crossings and
Rapiscan GaRD Gamma ray P
Rapiscan PFN/ Pulsed Fast Neutron Analys

Hold Baggage Screeniny Rapiscan MVXR 5000 Multi-view, dual energy x-ray Baggage inspection at airports
Rapiscan XRD 100 Dual energy -ray diffraction

People Screening Metor series of metal detectors Metal detectors Checkpoint inspection at

) airports, border crossings,

Rapiscan Secure 1000 stadiums, prisons and

X-ray Backscatter government facilitie:
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Medical Monitoring and Anesthesia Systems.Our Healthcare businesses design, manufacturenarket their products worldwide to
end users under several brand names. We sell pat@ritoring and connectivity solutions under ti8pacelabs Medical” trade name;
diagnostic cardiology monitoring solutions under tbel Mar Reynolds” trade name; cardiology anaysilutions under the “Hertford
Cardiology” and “Spacelabs Medical Data” trade ngnamd anesthesia systems and components und@&i¢lase”trade name. In addition, v
sell arterial hemoglobin saturation monitors anasses, including hand-held and wireless monitoto@s, under the “Dolphintrade name ar
peripheral bone densitometers and ultrasound bensittmeters under the “Osteometer” trade name.

Spacelabs Medical products include “Ultraview Skatipnt monitors, which are used in perioperativitical care and emergency ward
environments. We also offer patient monitors fatually all applications in the hospital, includingonatal, pediatric and adult critical and
emergency care, as well as anesthesia and subeareteOur patient monitoring systems comprise tooniand central nurse stations
connected either wirelessly or through hospitalvoeks, as well as stand alone monitors where thieqtadata can be transported physically
from one monitor to another as the patient is moWéis ensures that hospital staff can accessmatata where and when it is required. In
addition, these products are “open architecturghat they are designed to interact with hospitidrimation systems acquired from other
vendors. WinDNA, based on Citrix thin client techogy, is a feature of many of these products wiaidbws clinicians to view and control
Microsoft Windows applications on the patient morig display, eliminating the need for separatenieals in the patient’s room. Attending
nurses can thereby check laboratory results aret oflports, enter orders, review protocols andrdoting right at the patient’s bedside. Inputs
can be made using a mouse, keyboard and touchscreen

For electrocardiograph monitoring or multiparametemitoring of ambulatory patients, we offer a thjtelemetry system. The system
operates between 608 and 614 MHz, a band not osgdifate land mobile radio, business radio sewior broadcast analog and digital
television. Spacelabs Medical’s “Ultraviewigital Telemetry solution comprises a lightweigimd compact transmitter that enables monitc
of heart rate, ST segment, arrhythmia and contial @802 (Pulse Oximetry). The multiparameter trattemalso integrates with the Spacelabs
Medical “Ultralite” ambulatory blood pressure manifor the transmission of non-invasive blood puesssalues to a central station or a multi-
disclosure and information system.

We are also a world leader in ambulatory blood aress monitoring, which is a routine procedure imgnBuropean countries and is
increasingly being used in the United States. Maimysicians are using ambulatory blood pressure toing to detect “white coat”
hypertension, a condition in which people expereelevated blood pressure in the doctor’s officg it in their daily lives. Hypertension
affects approximately 50 million Americans and éstjularly prevalent in the Medicare populatiomBulatory blood pressure monitoring is
also used to adjust drug therapies for hypertensiients. It is estimated that as many as 20%@patients that are diagnosed with
hypertension based on blood pressure measurenaéets in their physicians’ offices are not actuaijypertensive. Ambulatory blood pressure
monitoring helps improve diagnostic accuracy andimize the associated costs of treatment.

In July 2006, our Healthcare division completeddhquisition of the Del Mar Reynolds Cardiac diersof Ferraris Group PLC, in
significant part for the purpose of augmentingdhésion’s diagnostic cardiology product offerin@®el Mar Reynolds has been developing
cardiac monitoring systems, including Holter sysgteand recorders, for over 40 years. Its “Pathfihdad “Impresario” lines of Holter
analyzers offer users interactive control with athed diagnostic parameters. Its “Lifecard” and &niecorders are worn by patients for up to
seven days in order capture heart arrhythmiastlagtoccur in a patient only a few times per weeltidnts that may be experiencing even less
frequent heart arrhythmias wear its “CardioCallbguct, which stays with the patient over severakgeand transmits its findings over the
phone to a receiving station in the hospital. Ididn to these products, Del Mar Reynolds alsesffother diagnostic cardiology products ¢
as the “Voyager” electrocardiogram series; “Cardieft” and “CH2000” stress test systems.
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Our Blease group designs and manufactures anestielsiery systems, anesthesia vaporizers andlatms. Its “Focus,” “Genius” and
“Sirius” anesthesia delivery systems provide fléxinesthesia solutions for most operating roonirenments, anesthesia induction areas, day
surgery units, maternity suites, magnetic resoné&neging facilities and other areas where the adration of anesthesia is required. Its
“Datum” anesthesia vaporizers and its line of dmesia ventilators are also designed to be compatitih the anesthesia delivery systems of
several other manufacturers. At the forefront issthesia ventilation, Blease recognized the nekdin@ians and the clinical benefits of
allowing patients to breathe without the assistasfaeventilator (.e., on their own) as much as possible while undeigaimesthesia. As a
result, in 1999 Blease became the first comparnffer ventilators that allowed patients to breatpentaneously while under anesthesia with
the respiratory support of the ventilator used amfyen necessary to overcome the effects of geaaeathesia. In addition, by incorporating
spirometry loops into its ventilators, which prodwgraphical displays about the adequacy and stagatient’s ventilation, clinicians were
able to carefully monitor their patients and engheeefficacy of the mode of ventilation provided.

In August 2006, Blease announced that it had addedn new ventilators to its existing product lieach of which enables clinicians to
enhance control over the delivery of ventilationl amore finely tune their requirements to a surgrakcedure and the individual characteristics
of a patient by actively controlling flow into adit of the ventilation drive system, throughout émtire respiratory cycle. In addition, each of
these new ventilators works in conjunction wittagge 8.4 inch touch screen display, availabletimegeimonochrome or color format. This
screen, in conjunction with Blease’s proprietarpti€h and Trak” user interface is easy to use, @tigwlinicians to focus greater attention on
other aspects of patient care.

Our Healthcare division also manufactures anditigies the “DTX-200” and “DexaCare G4” dual enexgsay forearm densitometers.
These products are used to diagnose osteoporosialiass to provide follow-up bone density measwata. We also manufacture and
distribute the “DTU-One,” a calcaneus ultrasoundéeonometer. The “DTU-One” was the first comméisciavailable ultrasound bone
sonometer to use an imaging capability for osteagierscreening.

We develop, manufacture and distribute pulse oxiyriestruments and related pulse oximetry sensodeuthe “Dolphin-2000/3000”
and “TruLink” brand names, as well as under private®| arrangements. The pulse oximetry sensonmareifacture and sell are compatible
with products made by other manufacturers of pajémetry technologies. In addition to the marketdensors, we believe that a substantial
market exists for disposable supplies such asmiaglectrodes, specialty graph paper and connelgadywires that are used with medical
devices. As a result, we sell a broad line of sugbplies as an adjunct to our medical device andmsesales. In most cases, these products are
obtained from original equipment manufacturers ammanufactured to our specifications.
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The following table sets forth certain informatiaiated to the standard healthcare products wetyroffer:

PRODUCT NAME /

PRODUCT LINE PRODUCT FAMILY MARKET SEGMENT
Anesthesia Delivery Systems Vaporizers an  Datum Vaporizer Ambulatory surgery centers
Ventilators Focus Operating rooms
Genius
Sirius
700 series
900 serie!
Bone Densitometers and Sonomete DexaCare G4 Medical clinics
DTX-200 Physician offices
DTU-one Small hospitals
Patient Data and Information Systems CardioNavigator Plus All hospital care areas
Intesys Clinical Suite IC: Research facilitie
Patient Monitors ARIA All hospital care areas
LifeCard CF Medical clinics
LifeScreen Physician offices
CardioCollect Research facilities
CardioDirect
Impresario
Maternal Obstetrical Monitor
Pathfinder
Tracker
Ultraview
Ultraview SL
24-hour Ambulatory Blood Pressure
Voyager
CardioCall
Pulse Oximeters and Sensot Dolphin 2000/3000 All hospital care areas
TruLink Physician office:
Stress Testing CH2000 All hospital care aree
CardioCollect 12S Physician offices

CardioDirect 12¢

Manufacturing Services. Optoelectronic devices generally consist ohlauttive and passive components. Active comporsamise
light of varying wavelengths and convert the ligbtected into electronic signals, whereas passisgonents amplify, separate or reflect li¢
The active components we manufacture consistiobsil gallium arsenide and indium gallium arserptietodetectors. Passive components
include lenses, prisms, filters, mirrors and ofbrecision optical products that are used by ukémbanufacture of our optoelectronic products
or are sold to others for use in telescopes, laseters, copiers, microscopes and other deteetimhvision equipment. The devices we
manufacture are both standard products and produstemized for specific applications and are effleeither as components or as subsysi

We have recently developed two-dimensional backrilhated detector technology for security, health@and industrial computed
tomography (CT) applications. This technology oweenes the limitations of conventional detectors byjing finer detector pitch density.
This is used in high-resolution multi-slice CT soars and other applications requiring improved iengggolution.
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In addition to the manufacture of standard andimaigequipment manufacturer products, we also gfieeiin designing and
manufacturing customized value-added subsystemsstoin a wide range of products and equipmen@toelectronic subsystem typically
consists of one or more optoelectronic devicesalmtombined with other electronic componentspaakaging for use in an end product. The
composition of a subsystem can range from a simggembly of various optoelectronic devices thatrarerporated into other subsystems (for
example, a printed circuit board containing oumefctronic devices) to complete end-products€f@mple, pulse oximetry equipment).
Furthermore, we have expanded our electronics desid manufacturing capabilities with enhanced lingi}dd manufacturing services and PC
board assembly capabilities utilizing state-of-#iteautomated surface mount technology lines. Aesalt, we now offer electronics
manufacturing services for data and signal proongssimplifier and processor boards for medical gmeint, musical tuning and studio
hardware, motor controls, power supplies, and sg¢wather industrial applications that do not uéliaptoelectronic devices.

Markets, Customers and Applications

Security and Inspection Product  Since entering the security and inspection pectalmarket in 1993, we have shipped over 14,000
baggage and parcel inspection and over 50,000 @soptening systems to over 75 countries. Our m&tinclude the United States
Transportation Security Administration, United $&Customs and Border Protection, New York Cityd@dDepartment and Federal Burea
Prisons, among others in the United States, asagdfieathrow and Gatwick Airports in the United ¢ddom, Chek Lap Kok Airport in Hong
Kong, CKS International Airport in Taiwan and theldysian Airport Board in Malaysia, among otherrgeas purchasers.

Most security and inspection products were devalapeesponse to civilian airline hijackings. Coggently, a significant portion of our
security and inspection products have been andmeanto be sold for use at airports. Recently, h@ieour security and inspection products
have been used for security purposes at locatioaddition to airports, such as courthouses, ofjigikdings, mailrooms, schools, prisons, high-
profile locations such as Buckingham Palace, treniin and the Vatican and for high-profile evenistsas the Olympic Games. Furthermore,
as terrorist attacks such as the March 2004 borstmhgassenger trains at Atocha railway statioMadrid and the July 2005 bombings of the
London underground and commuter bus systems centiaccur, overall transportation and travel indusector demands have increased,
resulting in heightened attention for our secuaityl inspection products. In addition, our secuaitg inspection products are increasingly b
used for norsecurity purposes, such as for cargo inspectiaetect narcotics and contraband and to verify reatsf prevention of pilferage
semiconductor manufacturing facilities, qualitywséce and the detection of gold and currency.

In April 2000, the U.S. government awarded us dremhto provide baggage and parcel inspectioresysiat selected airports through
the United States. Under the original contract,Ulf®. government had the right to purchase fromp® 800 systems, for which the aggregate
purchase price would be approximately $40 millionJanuary 2005, this contract was extended andllion in additional spending was
allocated for the purchase of our systems. As@tran fiscal years 2001 through 2006, our systswid totaled approximately 1000 systems
under this contract. In addition, we currently havgeparate contract to service these systems.

Since 2001, we have completed the delivery of figieel relocatable, or mobile cargo and vehiclpétsion systems to governments and
government agencies in the United States, Hong Klortlip, Jamaica, Mexico, Malaysia, Romania, Sddhea, Taiwan and other locations.

Medical Monitoring and Anesthesia Systems.Our medical monitoring and anesthesia systamsnanufactured and distributed
globally for use in critical care, emergency andqyeerative areas within hospitals as well as ptigiss offices, medical clinics and ambulatory
surgery centers. We also provide wired and wirehegsorks and clinical information access solutjiambulatory blood pressure monitors :
medical data services.
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In the last thirteen years, our Healthcare dividias sold over 117,000 patient monitors, 35,000uatdry blood pressure monitors and
10,000 anesthesia delivery systems. Our medicaltororg and anesthesia systems business has distribin over 70 countries and subsidi
or branch offices in the United States, Canadan&Cyprus, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, |fitdig, Singapore, Malaysia and the
United Kingdom.

In July 2005, Alfred I. duPont Children’s Hospitldcated outside Wilmington, Delaware, agreed paee all of its patient monitoring
equipment with Spacelabs Medical products. Theraohts expected to result in the sale of up to @@faview SL 2800 monitors. Alfred I.
duPont Children’s Hospital, which is owned and aped by the Numours Foundation, is a patient eahecation and research facility that
treats children that are experiencing acute, clerand complex health problems. The Nemours Foundaiperates one of the largest
subspecialty group practices devoted to pediatiiept care, teaching and research in the UnitateSt

In December 2005, we entered into a three-yearti+soilirce contract with Premier, Inc., one of the ilegdhospital and healthcare syst
alliances in the U.S. Under the contract, we walldible to supply Premier’s approximately 1,500iaféd hospitals and other healthcare sites
with patient monitoring and telemetry equipment.

In May 2006, we entered into a six-year enterpwsde sole-source contract for Spacelabs Medicaépainonitors and telemetry
equipment with Children’s Hospitals and ClinicsMihnesota, the largest pediatric healthcare orgsiuz in the upper mid-west.

We have sold medical monitoring and anesthesiaymtsdo organizations such as Albany Medical Ceintédbany, New York and
Tulane University Hospital and Clinic in New Orleahouisiana, Schichtermannklinik in Germany, LK\Wa¢th in Austria and
Universitatsspital Zdrich in Switzerland, among maihers.

Optoelectronic Devices and Electronics Manufactugrservices. Our optoelectronic devices and value-addedysiésis are used in a
broad range of products by a variety of custonifess.example, they are utilized by customers inftilewing market segments: aerospace and
avionics; analytical and medical imaging; fiberioptand telecommunications; gaming; homeland sggun@althcare; military and weapons
simulation; office automation; and toll and traffifanagement. Major customers in these segmentgligeicHoneywell, Raytheon, Phillips
Medical, JDS Uniphase, Bally Gaming, Gilardoni, thgihain, Waterpik Technologies, Invivo Researcim&tetics, Cubic Defense Systems,
Lockheed Martin, Xerox and Florida Department cdfigportation, among others.

Marketing, Sales and Service

We market and sell our security and inspection petsiworldwide through a direct sales and markestadf of approximately 60
employees located in North America, Europe and Asiaddition to an expansive global network ofdpdndent and specialized sales
representatives. This sales staff is supportedssnace organization of approximately 90 persagsted primarily in North America, Europe
and Asia, as well as a global network of independéstributors. We also support these sales antbmes relations efforts by providing
operator training, computerized training and tesgquipment, in-country service support, softwgrgrades and service training for customer
technicians.

We market and sell our medical monitoring and dressa systems worldwide through a direct salesw@artteting staff of approximately
225 sales personnel and 250 service personneéib@alNorth America, Europe and Asia, in additioratglobal network of independent
distributors. We also support these sales and mgsteervice efforts by providing operator in-seeviraining, software updates and upgrades
and service training for customer biomedical stafdl distributors.

We market and sell our optoelectronic devices aideradded manufacturing services, through botheatdsales and marketing staff of
approximately 35 employees located in, North Aneerteurope and Asia, and
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indirectly through a global network of independsales representatives and distributors. Our staéfissbased in the United States, Norway
and Singapore. We also maintain a worldwide netvedikdependent sales representatives and distriuDur sales staff is supported by an
applications engineering group whose members aiadle to provide technical support, which inclsdiesigning applications, providing
custom tooling and process integration and devetpproducts that meet customer defined specifioatio

We consider our maintenance service operations niimportant element of our business. After ttgration of our standard product
warranty periods, we are sometimes engaged byusiomers to provide maintenance services for arurgg and inspection products through
annual maintenance contracts. We provide a vaoiesgrvice and support options for our medical ravitig and anesthesia systems custor
ranging from complete on-site repair and maintera®vice and telephone support to parts exchamgegms for customers with the internal
expertise to perform a portion of their own servieeds. We believe that our international mainteeaervice capabilities allow us to be
competitive in selling our security and inspectsystems as well as our medical monitoring and &es&t systems. Furthermore, we believe
that as the installed base of both our securityiasglection systems and medical monitoring andtaasi& systems increases, revenues
generated from such annual maintenance serviceaot®tand from the sale of replacement parts néliéase.

Research and Development

Our security and inspection systems are designedrdtcilities in Hawthorne, Santa Clara and Swahg, California, and internationally
in Finland, Malaysia, India and the United Kingdohhese products include mechanical, electricattedaic, digital electronic and software
subsystems, which are all designed by us. In addit product design, we provide system integrasinvices to integrate our products into
turnkey systems at the customer site. We suppogpem@tive research projects with government agerasié, on occasion, provide contract
research for our customers and government agencies.

Our medical monitoring and anesthesia systemsesigided at our facilities in Hawthorne, Califorrissaquah, Washington and
internationally in Malaysia and the United KingdoBuch systems include mechanical, electrical, @igiectronic and software subsystems
of which are designed by us. We are also curréntiglved, both in the United States and internatln in several research projects aimed at
improving our medical systems and at expandingcament product line.

Our optoelectronic devices and value-added subsygstee primarily designed and engineered at otlitias in Camarillo, Hawthorne
and Newbury Park, California; Orlando, Florida; NoAndover, Massachusetts and Ocean Springs, Mippis and internationally in India,
Malaysia, Norway and Singapore. We engineer andufaature subsystems to solve the specific apptinateeds of our original equipment
manufacturer customers. In addition, we offer enginbsystem design and manufacturing solutionscédsider our engineering personnel to
be an important extension of our core sales andtetiag efforts.

In addition to close collaboration with our customin the design and development of our currendlypets, we maintain an active
program for the development and introduction of meaducts, enhancements and improvements to ostirgxiproducts, including the
implementation of new applications of our technglog/e seek to further enhance our research andagewent program and consider such
program to be an important element of our busiaessoperations. As of June 30, 2006, we engaget@prately 270 full-time engineers,
technicians and support staff. Our research andldpment expenses were $14.6 million in fiscal y&#04, $30.6 million in fiscal year 2005
and $35.9 million in fiscal year 2006. The incressefiscal years 2005 and 2006 reflect increassdarch and development spending by our
Security and Healthcare divisions. We intend totionre to invest in our research and developmeuwtisfin the future.
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Manufacturing and Materials

We currently manufacture our security and inspecsigstems in Hawthorne, Santa Clara and Sunny@aléornia and Ocean Spring
Mississippi, and internationally in India, FinlarMalaysia and the United Kingdom. We currently mfacture our medical monitoring and
anesthesia systems in Hawthorne, California aratjlssh, Washington, and internationally in Indiaa&aia, Singapore and the United
Kingdom. We currently manufacture our optoelectcatevices and value-added subsystems in Camafiflathorne and Newbury Park
California; North Andover, Massachusetts and Oc®arings, Mississippi, and internationally in Indidalaysia and Norway. Most of our high
volume, labor intensive manufacturing and assensoperformed at our facility in Malaysia. Since mogour customers currently are located
in the United States, Europe and Asia, our abititpssemble products in these markets and progltbsfon service from offices located in
these regions is an important component of ourajlstrategy.

Our global manufacturing organization has expeitisgptoelectronic, microelectronic and integrataetle-added assemblies for
commercial, medical, aerospace and defense indagpljcations. Our manufacturing includes silicoafev processing and fabrication,
optoelectronic device assembly and screeningahchthick film microelectronic hybrid assembliegtface mounted and thru-hole printed
circuit board electronic assemblies and value-adaedces including complete turn-key and box-builanufacturing. We outsource certain
manufacturing operations, including certain sheetaffabrication and plastic components. The mariufang process for components and
subsystems consists of manual tasks performediltgdstechnicians as well as automated tasks.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents irspdbducing our security and inspection systenrssish primarily of x-
ray generators, linear accelerators, detectora, atajuisition and computing devices, conveyor systand video monitors. A large portion of
the optoelectronic devices, subsystems and cicanit assemblies used in our inspection and detesyistems are manufactured in-house. The
x-ray generators and certain metal enclosures insear baggage and parcel inspection systems soengdnufactured in-house, while the x-ray
generators and linear accelerators used in ounaarg vehicle inspection systems are purchased diraaffiliated third party providers. We
purchase the x-ray tubes, computer hardware angicestandard mechanical parts and some of ourl metéosures from unaffiliated third
party providers.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents irspdbducing our medical monitoring and anesthsgitiems consist of printed circ
boards, housings, mechanical assemblies, pneud®tices, cables, filters and packaging materials.pichase certain devices, including
computers, peripheral accessories and remote gssfriam unaffiliated third party providers.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents uspdoducing our optoelectronic devices and valdéeal subsystems consist of
silicon wafers, ceramics, electronic subcompondigist emitting diodes, scintillation crystals, gage optical components, printed circuit
boards, headers and caps, housings, cables, @lerpackaging materials. The silicon-based opttreleic devices manufactured by us are
critical components in most of our subsystems. &it@87, we have purchased substantially all osilimon wafers we use to manufacture our
optoelectronic devices from Siltronic Corp.

For cost, quality control and efficiency reasons,generally purchase raw materials and subcompswoaht from single vendors with
whom we have ongoing relationships. We do, howeyeslify second sources for most of our raw makeaad critical components, or have
identified alternate sources of supply. We purchihsanaterials pursuant to purchase orders plaoed ime to time in the ordinary course of
business. Although to date none of our divisiors dygerienced any significant shortages or matdeiys in obtaining any of its raw
materials or subcomponents, it is possible that thay face such shortages or delays in one or materials in the future.
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Patents, Trademarks, Tradenames and Licenses

Trademarks and Tradename We have used, registered and applied to registéain trademarks and service marks to diststgour
products, technologies and services from thoseioEompetitors in the United States and in foraigantries. We enforce our trademark,
service mark and trade name rights in the UniteteStand abroad.

Patents. We hold a number of U.S. and foreign patentstiregy to various aspects of our security and inpa products, medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems and optoelectdavices and subsystems. Our current patentexglre at various times between 2006
and 2024. However, it remains possible that pengatgnt applications or other applications that iayiled may not result in issued patents.
In addition, issued patents may not survive chglsrto their validity. Although we believe that @atents have value, our patents, or any
additional patents that may be issued in the futmagy not be able to provide meaningful protecfrom competition.

Licenses. Our Security, Healthcare and OptoelectroniakManufacturing divisions have each entered intargety of license
arrangements under which they are permitted to faature, market, sell and/or service various tyglesoftware, data, equipment, compon
and enhancements to our own proprietary technology.

We believe that our trademarks and tradenames)tgatad licenses are important to our businesslddseof some of our trademarks,
patents or licenses might have a negative impacuofiinancial results and operations, howeverpperate in a competitive environment with
a known customer base and rely mainly on providiagcustomers with quality products and servicesngure continuing business. Thus, with
the exception of the loss of either the SpacefaiysRapiscar? trademarks, the impact of the loss of any singldémark, patent or license
would not likely have a material adverse effecbonbusiness. We consider the Spacefabsdemark an important asset and have registered i
in approximately forty countries. In addition, fmiVing the recent re-branding of our Security dmisunder the “Rapiscan Systems” nhame, we
have instituted a similar registration programtfoe Rapiscafi trademark.

Regulation of Medical Products

The medical monitoring and anesthesia systems wrifaeture and market are subject to regulationlgerous federal governme
agencies, principally the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation (“FDA"), and by certain state and forempthorities. They are also subject to
various U.S. and foreign electrical safety stanglard

The FDA has broad regulatory powers with respegtréaclinical and clinical testing of new medicabgucts and the manufacturing,
marketing and advertising of medical productsetjuires that all medical devices introduced inrtfarket be preceded either by a pre-market
notification clearance order under section 510{khe Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or an approvweshparket approval application. A 510
pre-market notification clearance order indicated the FDA agrees with an applicant’s determimatiat the product for which clearance has
been sought is substantially equivalent to andtgally marketed medical device. The clearancemrieamarket approval application, on the
other hand, indicates that the FDA has determihatlthe device has been proven, through the sulzmie§clinical trial data and
manufacturing quality assurance information, teake and effective for its labeled indications. phecess of obtaining 510(k) clearance
typically takes between three and six months, buattake substantially longer. The pnarket approval application review process, onother
hand, can last more than a year. To date, alleofitedical monitoring and anesthesia systems we fiaetave and sell in the United States have
required only 510(k) pre-market notification clazca.

Such regulatory approvals, when granted, may elintadthations on the indicated uses for which a pretdmay be marketed, and such
product approvals, once granted, may be withdrdwroblems occur after initial marketing. Manufaetts of FDA-regulated products are
subject to pervasive and continuing governmentallegion, including extensive recordkeeping requieats and reporting of adverse
experiences associated with
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product manufacture and use. Compliance with theggirements is costly, and failure to comply casuit in, among other things, fines, total
or partial suspension of production, product recdiflilure of the FDA to review pending marketingazances or approval applications,
withdrawal of marketing clearances or approvalevan criminal prosecution.

We are also subject to regulation in the foreigantdes in which we manufacture and market our geddonitoring and anesthesia
systems. For example, the commercialization of nadlevices in the European Union is regulated uadsystem that presently requires all
medical devices sold in the European Union to leaCE mark—an international symbol of adherencgutality assurance standards. Our
manufacturing facilities in Hawthorne and Irvinglifornia; Issaquah, Washington; and in Cheshamtéerdford in the United Kingdom are
certified to the International Organization for &ardization’s ISO 13485 standard for medical dewiompanies. They are also certified to the
requirements of the European Medical Device Divecfi3/42 EEC, which allows them to self-certifytthawly manufactured products can
bear the CE mark.

We believe we are in material compliance with glplecable federal, state and foreign regulatiomgrding the manufacture and sale of
our medical monitoring and anesthesia deliveryesyst Such regulations and their enforcement dogkery constantly change, and we cannot
predict what effect, if any, such changes may laveur businesses in the future.

Environmental Regulations

We are subject to various federal, state and leg@ironmental laws, ordinances and regulationging/do the use, storage, handling :
disposal of certain hazardous substances and wastdsor generated in the manufacturing and asgeshblur products. Under such laws, we
may become liable for the costs of removal or raataxh of certain hazardous substances that hase deased on or in our facilities or that
have been disposed of off-site as waste. Suchnaaysimpose liability without regard to whether weekv of, or caused, the release of such
hazardous substances. We have conducted Phasiednenental site assessments for each of our priegert the United States at which we
manufacture products. The purpose of each suchitrispo identify, as of the date of such repodtgmtial areas of environmental concern
related to past and present activities or from lmgaperations. In certain cases, we have conddutéter environmental assessments consi
of soil and groundwater testing and other invesitiga deemed appropriate by independent envirormheahsultants. We believe that we are
currently in compliance with all material environm@ regulations in connection with our manufagtgroperations, and that we have obtained
all material environmental permits necessary talaehour business. The amount of hazardous sulestama wastes produced and generated
by us may increase in the future depending on adsimgour operations. Any failure by us to compiyhvpresent or future regulations could
subject us to the imposition of substantial firmsspension of production, alteration of manufantyprocess or cessation of operations, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition and results of operei

During one such investigation, we discovered suil groundwater contamination at our Hawthorne,f@atia facility. We filed the
requisite reports concerning this problem with aperopriate environmental authorities in fiscalry2@01. We have not yet received any
response to such reports, and no agency actiotigation is presently pending or threatened. W &lave notified the prior owners of the
facility and the present owners and tenants ofcadjaproperties concerning the problem and haveestqd from such parties agreements to
toll of the statute of limitations with respectaotions against such parties with respect to tiacoination in order that we may focus our
attention on resolution of the contamination prahl©ur site was previously used by other compdisiesemiconductor manufacturing similar
to that presently conducted on the site by us,jischot presently known who is responsible fag tontamination or, if required, the
remediation. The groundwater contamination is admeoegional problem, not limited to our premisesar immediate surroundings.

We have also been informed of soil and groundwatetuation efforts at a facility that our Fersorchieologies subsidiary previously
leased in Ocean Springs, Mississippi. Ferson Tdolies occupied the
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facility between 1993 and 2003. We believe thatttwaeer and previous occupants of the facility hprmary responsibility for any
remediation that may be required and have an agmeewith the facility’s owner under which the owngresponsible for remediation of pre-
existing conditions. However, as site evaluatidongd are still in progress, and may be for somesfiwe are unable at this time to ascertain
whether Ferson Technologies bears any exposuretftediation costs under applicable environmentallegions.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly comipetiéind characterized by evolving customer needgapid technological change. '
compete with a number of other manufacturers, soiméhich have significantly greater financial, tea@al and marketing resources than we
have. In addition, these competitors may have lfiléyato respond more quickly to new or emergieghnologies, adapt more quickly to
changes in customer requirements, have strong&sres relationships, have greater name recognéimhmay devote greater resources to the
development, promotion and sale of their produts twe do. As a result, we may not be able to ceengieccessfully against designers and
manufacturers of specialized electronic systemscantbonents, broadly speaking, or more specifiaaithiin the markets for security and
inspection systems, medical monitoring and anewtlsystems, or optoelectronic devices. Future caoithygepressures may materially and
adversely affect our business, financial conditiand results of operations.

In the security and inspection market, competitiobased primarily on such factors as product perémce, functionality and quality, the
overall cost effectiveness of the system, priotaur relationships, technological capabilitieshaf products, price, local market presence and
breadth of sales and service organization. We \eelieat our principal competitors in the marketdecurity and inspection products are the
Security and Detection Systems division of L-3 Caminations Corporation, the Smiths Detection donsof Smiths Group plc, American
Science and Engineering, Inc., GE Infrastructuesusity, a division of the General Electric Compa8gience Applications International
Corporation, Control Screening L.L.C., CEIA SpA,ré&dt Electronics, Inc. and Nuctech Company Limit€dmpetition could result in price
reductions, reduced margins and loss of markeesiathe airline and airport security and inspmtiinarket, particularly in the upgrade and
replacement market, we also compete for potentistiocners based on existing relationships betweenaupetitors and the customers. Cel
of our competitors established strong relationshijth airlines, airports and other transportatienigity authorities. We believe that the image
quality and resolution of certain of our securibdanspection products is superior to the imagdityuaffered by many of our competitors’ x-
ray based inspection products. Additionally, ouetmulti-zone metal detection technology providesability to detect small metallic objects
and offer higher levels of discrimination in weapestreening applications. Although we also haveldished relationships with a number of
airport and airline customers, we may not be ablsompete successfully in the future with existognpetitors or new entrants. In the cargo
and vehicle inspection systems market, we commetpdtential customers based on price, performandethe ability to design both standard
and customized products. Several of our competitav® operated in this area for longer than we hdeevever, due to our recent successes in
designing and delivering high-energy x-ray systemespelieve we have demonstrated our ability to peta effectively. Additionally, although
our competitors in the cargo and vehicle inspectiamket each offer products in competition with onenore of our products, our ability to
supply high-energy x-ray, gamma-ray and thermatmelanalysis systems means that we offer amongithest array of solutions available
from a single supplier. This variety of technolaga&@so permits us to offer unique hybrid systen@utocustomers that utilize two or more of
these technologies, thereby optimizing flexibilipgrformance and cost to meet the customer’s uragpécation requirements.

In the medical monitoring and anesthesia deliveayk®at, competition is also based on a variety cofdies including product performance,
functionality, value and breadth of sales and serarganization. We believe that our principal cetitprs in the market for medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems are Cardiac Gciearporation, Criticare Systems, Inc., Mortastiiiment, Philips Medical Systems, GE
Healthcare, Drager Medical, Datascope Corp., Niohden Corporation, Penlon Limited, Nellcor, a digh of Tyco Healthcare
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and Schiller. Competition could result in priceuetions, reduced margins and loss of our marketsh¥e believe that our patient monitoring
products are easier to use than the products oy mlaour competitors because we offer a consisisat interface throughout many of our
product lines. In addition to this advantage, thenitoring products of our Spacelabs Medical subsidare backward/forward compatible,
meaning that new Spacelabs Medical monitors camnfate with existing Spacelabs Medical monitor niedibus offering investment
protection to our customers. Finally, while som@wof competitors are also beginning to introducegbéechnology, which allows remote
access to data from the bedside monitor, centtibstor other point of care, we believe that campeting technologies are superior in
bringing instant access to labs, radiology andtaigat the point of care. Although we have estii@d relationships with a number of large
hospitals, we may not be able to successfully caenipethe future with existing competitors or witaw entrants.

In the optoelectronic devices and subsystems mar&etpetition for optoelectronic devices and vahdeled subsystems is based
primarily on such factors as expertise in the desigd development of optoelectronic devices, prbduality, timeliness of delivery, price,
customer technical support and on the ability tvjate fully integrated services from applicatiorvelpment and design through production.
We believe that our major competitors in the ogobnic device market are PerkinElmer, Inc. anchblmatsu Corporation. Because we
specialize in custom subsystems requiring a higjteeof engineering expertise, we believe that @reegally do not compete to any significant
degree with any other large United States, Europedsian manufacturers of standard optoelectrooioponents. Competition in the
extensive electronic manufacturing services markeges from multinational corporations with salesxcess of several billions of dollars, to
large regional competitors and to small local asgdgmompanies. In our experience, the original pmént manufacturers to whom we provide
such services prefer to engage companies thatlodtérlocal and lower-cost off-shore facilities. &sesult, our primary competition for these
services is located in Southern California and @wiNEngland, where our U.S. facilities are alsofedaSuch competition includes CTS,
Sigmatron International, Sanmina-SCI, Senior Systéechnology, and Benchmark Electronics, amongrsthe

Backlog

We measure our backlog as orders for which purcheders or contracts have been signed, but whigh hat yet been shipped and
which revenues have not yet been recognized. Weatiy ship our security and inspection systemsdiced monitoring and anesthesia systt
and optoelectronic devices and value-added sulyagsigthin one to several months after receivingater. However, such shipments may be
delayed for a variety of reasons including any ggetesign or engineering requirements of the gusto In addition, large orders of security
and inspection products (more than ten maching&}ally require more lead-time.

Cargo and vehicle inspection systems may requireraemonths to several years lead-time. We haperenced some significant
shipping delays associated with our cargo and \ehispection systems. Such delays can occur foymeasons, including: (i) additional time
necessary to conduct inspections at the factorgrbeshipment; (ii) a customer’s need to engagerie-consuming special site preparation to
accommodate the system, over which we have noaantresponsibility; (iii) additional fine tuningf such systems once they are installed;
(iv) design or specification changes by the cusipiaued (v) delays originating from other contraston the project.

As of June 30, 2006, our consolidated backlog ¢dtalpproximately $146.8 million, compared to apprately $94.7 million as of
June 30, 2005 and approximately $84.9 million &eJ80, 2004. We expect to ship most of our backkgf June 30, 2006 during fiscal year
2007. Sales orders underlying our backlog are firders. However, from time to time, we may agrepeionit the cancellation of an order on a
negotiated basis. Variations in the size of ordemsguct mix, or delivery requirements, among oflaetors, may result in substantial
fluctuations in backlog from period to period. Bexgkas of any particular date should not be relipdn as indicative of our revenues for any
future period and cannot be considered a meanimgdidator of our performance on an annual or qrribasis.
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Employees

As of June 30, 2006, we employed approximately @ gople, of whom 1,310 were employed in manufaogu270 were employed
engineering or research and development, 330 weptoged in finance and administration, 320 were leygd in sales and marketing and 350
were employed in service capacities. Of the tatgbleyees, approximately 1,510 were employed in IN@rmerica and South America, 670
were employed in Asia and 400 were employed in ger®@ur Advanced Microelectronics AS subsidiariNorway has 35 employees and our
Rapiscan Systems Oy subsidiary in Finland has eigiployees who are union members and have cokebtvgaining rights. None of our
other employees are unionized. We have never expeed a work stoppage or strike, and managemapt/bglthat its relations with
employees are good.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeerefore, we file periodic repori
proxy statements and other information with theuiies and Exchange Commission. Such reports,ypstatements and other information
may be obtained by visiting the Public ReferencerRof the Securities and Exchange Commission atF18@eet, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549 or by calling 1-202-551-6551. In additiore Becurities and Exchange Commission maintainatanmlet website (http://www.sec.gov)
that contains reports, proxy statements and ottiermation that issuers are required to file elaitally.

Our Internet address is: http://www.osi-systems.cdfe make available, free-agharge through our Internet website, our annualntegn
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmemtorts on Form 8-K, amendments to those repdets &r furnished pursuant to Section 13
(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198tamended and reports filed pursuant to Setbaof the Securities Exchange Act of 19
as amended. We do so as soon as reasonably poéetdter electronically filing such material withy; furnishing it to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Fluctuations in our operating results may cause ostock price to decline.

Given the nature of the markets in which we pastité, we cannot reliably predict future revenues @ofitability. Changes il
competitive, market and economic conditions mayseaus to adjust our operations. A high proportibouwr costs are fixed, due in part to our
significant sales, research and development andifaeturing costs. Thus, small declines in reverméddisproportionately affect our
operating results. Factors that may affect our &gy results and the market price of our CommariSinclude:

» demand for and market acceptance of our products;

» competitive pressures resulting in lower sellinges;

» adverse changes in the level of economic actiwitsegions in which we do business;

* low or fluctuating levels of political stability iregions in which we do busine:

» adverse changes in industries, such as semicondwntd electronics, on which we are particularigateent;
» changes in the portions of our revenue represeénterious products and custome

» delays or problems in the introduction of new pratdy

» the announcement or introduction of new produ@syjises or technological innovations by our contpedi

e variations in our product mi;
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» the timing and amount of our expenditures in apétion of future sale:
» exchange rate fluctuations;

» increased costs of raw materials or supp

» changes in the volume or timing of product orders;

» timing of completion of acceptance testing of saheur products

* natural disasters; and

» changes in general economic factt

We face aggressive competition in many areas ofibess. If we do not compete effectively, our busisavill be harmed.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerougpetitors in many areas of our business. In tharig and inspection ar
medical monitoring and anesthesia systems marketspetition is based primarily on such factors m&lpct performance, functionality and
quality, cost, prior customer relationships, tedbgal capabilities of the product, price, ced#tion by government authorities, local market
presence and breadth of sales and service org@mnizht the optoelectronic devices and electromesufacturing markets competition is ba
primarily on factors such as expertise in the desigd development of optoelectronic devices, produality, timeliness of delivery, price,
customer technical support and on the ability to/jate fully-integrated services from applicatiorvdpment and design through volume
subsystem production. We may not be able to congfédetively with all of our competitors. To remaiompetitive, we must develop new
products and enhance our existing products andcesrin a timely manner. We anticipate that we imaye to adjust prices of many of our
products to stay competitive. In addition, new ceftitprs may emerge, and entire product lines oriceofferings may be threatened by new
technologies or market trends that reduce the a@fitleese product lines or service offerings.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and theation of the U.S. Department of Homeland Secuflitstve increased financial
expectations that may not materialize.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and theesiuent creation of the U.S. Department of Honte&ercurity have created increased
interest in our security and inspection systemsever, we are not certain whether the level of desmaill continue to be as high as it is now.
We do not know what solutions will continue to lwmpted by the U.S. Department of Homeland Secasty result of the terrorism and
whether our products will be a part of the solutiddditionally, should our products be considersdgart of the future security solution, it is
unclear what the level may be and how quickly fagdio purchase our products may be made avail@hkse factors may adversely impact us
and create unpredictability in revenues and opegagsults.

If operators of our security and inspection systefad to detect weapons, explosives or other devidat are used to commit a
terrorist act, we could be exposed to product lldbiand related claims for which we may not havdegjuate insurance coverage.

Our business exposes us to potential product iliabitks that are inherent in the development, ufacturing, sale and service of secu
inspection systems. Our customers use our se@ndyinspection systems to help them detect iteatscthuld be used in performing terrorist
acts or other crimes. Some of our security anddaspn systems require that an operator interpréinage of suspicious items within a bag,
parcel, container or other vessel. Others signti@mperator that further investigation is reqdira either case, the training, reliability and
competence of the customer’s operator is crucitheadetection of suspicious items. Furthermoreysty inspection by technological means is
circumstance and applicati@pecific. In addition, our security and inspectgystems are not designed to work under all circantss. We te
the reliability of
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our security and inspection systems during bothr tlevelopment and manufacturing phases. We algfonpe such tests if we are requested to
perform installation, warranty or post-warrantyvéeing. However, our security inspection systemsaavanced mechanical and electronic
devices and therefore can malfunction. In addittbare are also many other factors beyond our obititat could lead to liability claims should
an act of terrorism occur. The September 11, 20@11893 World Trade Center bombing attacks, angbtitential for future attacks, have
caused commercial insurance for such threats torbe@xtremely difficult to obtain. It is very likethat, should we be found liable followin
major act of terrorism, the insurance we currehtlye in place would not fully cover the claims dlamages.

Our medical monitoring and anesthesia systems cogilge rise to product liability claims that couldaterially and adversely affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

The development, manufacturing and sale of mediegices expose us to significant risk of produatility claims and, sometimes,
product failure claims. We face an inherent busiresk of financial exposure to product liabilithains if the use of our medical devices res
in personal injury or death. Substantial produaility litigation currently exists within the megdil device industry. Some of our medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems businessesihahe, past, been subject to product liability migiand/or product recalls. To date, no such
claim or recall has had a significant impact on a@perations. Future product liability claims mayead the limits of our insurance coverage
such insurance may not continue to be availableston commercially reasonable terms, or at all.s8quoently, a product liability claim or
other claim with respect to uninsured liabilities,in excess of insured liabilities, could have atenial adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, operating results and cash flows.

Our revenues are dependent on orders of securitg amspection systems and medical monitoring and sthesia systems, which
may have lengthy and unpredictable sales cycles.

Sales of security and inspection systems oftenrieppon the decision of governmental agencies ¢page or expand existing airpor
border crossing inspection sites, seaport inspesiies and other security installations. Salesideatof the United States of our medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems depend in signifipart on the decision of governmental agerioiésiild new medical facilities or to
expand or update existing medical facilities. Actiogly, a significant portion of our sales of sétyuand inspection systems and our medical
monitoring and anesthesia systems is often sutgedrtlays associated with the lengthy approval ggses that typically accompany such
capital expenditures. During these approval periagsexpend significant financial and managemesaueces in anticipation of future orders
that may not occur. If we fail to receive an ordéer expending such resources, such failure coal@ a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

If we do not introduce new products in a timely m@er, our products could become obsolete and ourragiag results would suffer

We sell many of our products in industries changoee by rapid technological changes, frequent pesduct and service introductions
and evolving industry standards and customer n&#dkout the timely introduction of new productsdaenhancements, our products could
become technologically obsolete over time, in whdake our revenue and operating results wouldrsUffe success of our new product
offerings will depend upon several factors, inchgdour ability to:

» accurately anticipate customer needs;

* innovate and develop new technologies and appics]

» successfully commercialize new technologies imeely manner;

» price our products competitively and manufacture @eliver our products in sufficient volumes andtiome; and

» differentiate our offerings from our competit’ offerings.
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Some of our products are used by our customerswelop, test and manufacture their products. Wieefbee must anticipate industry
trends and develop products in advance of the camiatization of our customers’ products. In devahgpany new product, we may be
required to make a substantial investment beforeamedetermine the commercial viability of the nawduct. If we fail to accurately foresee
our customers’ needs and future activities, we magst heavily in research and development of petalthat do not lead to significant
revenues.

Interruptions in our ability to purchase raw mateals and components may adversely affect our prdtitigy.

We purchase certain raw materials and subcompofrentsthird parties pursuant to purchase ordersgadrom time to time. Purcha
order terms range from three months to one yefixest costs, but we do not have guaranteed keng supply arrangements with our suppli
Any material interruption in our ability to purcleasecessary raw materials or subcomponents coudldeaterial adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may not be able to successfully implement ougudsitions strategy, integrate acquired businesg@s our existing business or
make acquired businesses profitable.

One of our strategies is to supplement our integnalvth by acquiring businesses and technologigsctbmplement or augment ¢
existing product lines. This growth has placed, avay continue to place, significant demands onnsamagement, working capital and
financial resources. We may be unable to identifgamplete promising acquisitions for many reasorduding:

e competition among buyer
» the need for regulatory approvals, including anstapprovals; and

» the high valuations of business

Some of the businesses we may seek to acquire enmalginally profitable or unprofitable. For thesmuired businesses to achieve
acceptable levels of profitability, we must imprdbeir management, operations, products and mpetettration. We may not be successful in
this regard and may encounter other difficultiembegrating acquired businesses into our existipgrations.

To finance our acquisitions, we may have to ragsiteonal funds, through either public or privaiesincings. We may be unable to obr
such funds or may be able to do so only on unfdlererms.

Our acquisition and alliance activities could dispti our ongoing business.

We intend to continue to make investments in congsamproducts and technologies, either throughiaitipuns, investments or alliance
Acquisition and alliance activities often invohisks, including: (i) difficulty in assimilating thacquired operations and employees;
(ii) difficulty in managing product co-developmeanttivities with our alliance partners; (iii) diffiity in retaining the key employees of the
acquired operation; (iv) disruption of our ongolmgsiness; (v) inability to successfully integrdie ticquired technologies and operations into
our businesses and maintain uniform standardsralenpolicies and procedures; and (vi) lackingeRkperience necessary to enter into new
product or technology markets successfully. In toldi from time to time, our competitors acquireeoter into exclusive arrangements with
companies with whom we do business or may do bssiimethe future. Reductions in the number of masnvith whom we may do business in
a particular context may reduce our ability to eiriéo critical alliances on attractive terms or#lf and the termination of an existing alliance
by a business partner may disrupt our operations.
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Economic, political and other risks associated wititernational sales and operations could adversaffect our sales.

In fiscal year 2004, revenues from shipments madsiade of the United States accounted for approtéima 1% of our revenues, 40%
fiscal year 2005 and 42% in fiscal year 2006. @frvenues generated during fiscal year 2006 flapieents made to customers outside of
the United States, 46% represented sales madedkidgaries based in United States to foreign custsprand the balance represented sales
generated by foreign subsidiaries. Since we seihiteof our products worldwide, our businessessalgect to risks associated with doing
business internationally. We anticipate that reesrfuiom international operations will continue épiresent a substantial portion of our total
revenue. In addition, many of our manufacturinglitées, and therefore employees, suppliers, reapprty, capital equipment, cash and other
assets are located outside the United States. diogpy, our future results could be harmed by aetgrof factors, including:

» changes in foreign currency exchange rates;
» changes in a count's or regior's political or economic conditions, particularlydaveloping or emerging marke
» longer payment cycles of foreign customers andadiffy of collecting receivables in foreign juristions;
» trade protection measures and import or exporh$itey requirement:
» differing legal and court systerr
» differing tax laws and changes in those laws;
« difficulty in staffing and managing widespread age@ns;
» differing labor laws and changes in those laws;
» differing protection of intellectual property andanges in that protection; a
» differing regulatory requirements and changes asé¢hrequirements.
Our products may infringe on the intellectual propg rights of others, and resulting claims agaings could be costly and prevent

us from making or selling certain products.

Third parties may seek to claim that our produat$ @perations infringe their patent or other irteial property rights. In addition, we
may find it necessary to initiate litigation in erdo protect our patent or other intellectual mp rights. Under either circumstance, we may
incur significant expenses. In addition, claimdhofd parties against us could result in awardsulifstantial damages or court orders that could
effectively prevent us from making, using or seliour products in the U.S. or abroad.

Our competitors may seek to challenge the intelledtproperty rights on which some of our new and regromising products are
based.

As we introduce any new and potentially promisingdact, companies possessing competing technologigsbe motivated to ass:
infringement claims in order to delay or diminishtgntial sales and challenge our right to markehqroduct. Lengthy and costly litigation
may be necessary in order to defend against thasesc

Our ongoing success is dependent upon the continagdilability of certain key employees.

We are dependent in our operations on the contiaveiability of the services of our employees, snahwhom are individually key t
our current and future success, and the availglufinew employees to implement our growth plangadrticular, we are dependent upon the
services of Deepak Chopra, our Chairman of the @o&Directors, President and Chief Executive GffioVe have entered into a 5-year
employment agreement
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with Mr. Chopra, which expires July 18, 2010 andmaintain a $13.0 million policy of key man lifestrance on the life of Mr. Chopra. The
market for skilled employees is highly competitiespecially for employees in technical fields. Vghour compensation programs are intended
to attract and retain the employees required far lte successful, ultimately, we may not be abletain the services of all of our key
employees or a sufficient number to execute orptans. In addition, we may not be able to contitiuattract new employees as required.

Substantial government regulation in the United $a and abroad may restrict our ability to sell ooredical monitoring and
anesthesia systems.

The FDA and comparable regulatory authorities meifn countries extensively and rigorously regutaie medical monitoring an
anesthesia systems, including related developnuinitees and manufacturing processes. In the Wn8etes, the FDA regulates the
introduction of medical devices as well as the nfacturing, labeling and record-keeping proceduceséich products. We are required to:

» obtain clearance before we can market and sellcakdevices

» satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllagesales and promotional materials;

« comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

* undergo rigorous inspections.

Our future products may not obtain FDA clearanceadimely basis, or at all. Our medical monitorangd anesthesia systems must also
comply with the laws and regulations of foreign ewies in which we develop, manufacture and maskeh products. In general, the extent
and complexity of medical device regulation is easing worldwide. This trend is likely to continared the cost and time required to obtain

marketing clearance in any given country may ineeegs a result. Our products may not obtain anggsacy foreign clearances on a timely
basis, or at all.

Once any of our medical monitoring and anestheg@tems is cleared for sale, regulatory authoritigy still limit the use of such
product, prevent its sale or manufacture or recairecall or withdrawal of such product from therkegiplace. Following initial clearance from
regulatory authorities, we continue to be subjeatxtensive regulatory requirements. Governmeiitaailies can withdraw marketing cleara
due to our failure to comply with regulatory stardtaor due to the occurrence of unforeseen probfetimsving initial clearance. Ongoing
regulatory requirements are wide-ranging and gqwamong other things:

* annual inspections to retain CE mark for sale ofipcts in the European Union;
» product manufacturing;

» supplier substitutior

e product changes;

» process modification:

* medical device reporting; and

» product sales and distributic

Our failure to comply with environmental regulaticnmay create significant environmental liabilitiend force us to modify our
manufacturing processes.

We are subject to various foreign and U.S. fedetate and local environmental laws, ordinancesragdlations relating to the us
storage, handling and disposal of certain hazardobstances and wastes used or generated in thdaofanming and assembly of our products.
Under such laws, we may become liable for the cafstemoval or remediation of certain hazardousstarices or wastes that have been or are
being disposed of
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offsite as wastes or that have been or are belagsed on or in our facilities. Such laws may inglisbility without regard to whether we

knew of, or caused, the release of such hazarddisiaces or wastes. Any failure by us to compth wiesent or future regulations could
subject us to the imposition of substantial firmsspension of production, alteration of manufantyprocesses, or cessation of operations, any
of which could have a material adverse effect anbmsiness, financial condition and results of atiens.

We may be exposed to potential risks relating t@ mternal controls over financial reporting and auability to have our
independent registered public accounting firm atteés these controls.

As directed by the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002, the Securities and Exchange C@sion adopted rules requiring public companie
include in their annual reports an assessmenteoéttectiveness of the company’s internal contowisr financial reporting. In addition, the
independent registered public accounting firm angdit public company’s financial statements mugsato and report on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the companygmial controls over financial reporting, as wallthe operating effectiveness of the
company'’s internal controls over financial repagtiiVe evaluate our internal controls over finanoéglorting in order to allow our
management to report on, and our independent eegispublic accounting firm to attest to, our intrcontrols.

We expect to continue to expend significant resesiio complying with the documentation and testimgcedures required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. However, there will agman ongoing risk that we will not comply with af its requirements.

If our independent registered public accountingnfdiffers from us in its interpretation of the régunents imposed on us by the
Sarbane®©xley Act of 2002, or if it is not satisfied withupinternal controls over financial reporting orthwthe level at which such controls
documented, operated or reviewed, we may be delay@thg reports with the Securities and Excharf@mmmission, our independent
registered public accounting firm may decline testtto our management’s assessment or it may #&gualified report. In addition, if our
independent registered public accounting firm iahle to rely on our internal controls over finahcgporting in connection with its audit of
our financial statements and if it is unable toidealternative procedures in order to satisfyifis@to the material accuracy of our financial
statements and related disclosures, it is posgibkewe could receive a qualified or adverse apiition in connection with those financial
statements.

Accordingly, we may not receive a favorable refiann our independent registered public accounting fegarding our internal controls
over financial reporting and the operating effestigss of our internal controls over financial réipgr If we identify material weaknesses in
our internal controls over financial reporting that cannot remediate in a timely manner or if weeiee an adverse report from our
independent registered public accounting firm wébpect to our internal controls over financialoimg, investors and others may lose
confidence in the reliability of our financial statents and the market for our Common Stock couladversely affected.

Our operations are subject to certain risks and @rtainties associated with the listing in the Unit&ingdom of common stock of
Spacelabs Healthcare

In October 2005, we announced the initial publiewfg in the United Kingdom of 13.5 million prewisly unissued shares of comn
stock (representing approximately 20% of its t@alied and outstanding shares) of Spacelabs Haedthee newly formed subsidiary composed
of the business operations of our Healthcare dimisThese shares currently trade under the tigkabsl “SLAB” on the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM), a market administered by tondon Stock Exchange. The value of these shamesconsequently the value of the
shares in Spacelabs Healthcare that we retainkaviop the placing, is subject to stock price fluations as well as fluctuations in the British
pound, the currency in which the shares trade. vrdorn in the performance of equity markets inlthdted Kingdom generally, or on the
AIM specifically, could depress the value of theaBglabs Healthcare shares that we own.
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We receive significant amounts of research and depenent funding for our security and inspection ggsns from government
grants and contracts. We may not continue to reeedomparable levels of funding for future producédelopment

The U.S. government currently plays an importafg o funding the development of certain of ourwétg and inspection systems and
sponsoring their deployment at airports, portslaordier crossings. However, in the future, additioasearch and development funds from the
government may not be available to us. If the govemt fails to continue to sponsor our technologiesnay have to expend more resources
on product development or cease development ddioettchnologies, which could adversely affectlmusiness. In addition, any future grants
to our competitors may improve their ability to éep and market competing products and cause @tiommers to delay purchase decisions,
which could harm our ability to market our products

Our Articles of Incorporation and other agreement®ntain provisions that could discourage a takeover

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize our BoafdXirectors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares dfelPred Stock in one or more series
fix the rights, preferences, privileges and resitiits granted to or imposed upon any wholly unidssieares of Preferred Stock, to fix the
number of shares constituting any such series@fig the designation of any such series, withautHer vote or action by shareholders. The
terms of any series of Preferred Stock, which mmajude priority claims to assets and dividends spetial voting rights, could adversely af
the rights of the holders of our Common Stock dmdeby reduce the value of our Common Stock. We mavpresent plans to issue shares of
Preferred Stock. The issuance of Preferred Stamkpled with the concentration of ownership in tivectors and executive officers, could
discourage certain types of transactions invohangctual or potential change in control of our pany, including transactions in which the
holders of Common Stock might otherwise receiveearium for their shares over then current pricéisgivise dilute the rights of holders of
Common Stock and may limit the ability of such steiders to cause or approve transactions whighrttay deem to be in their best intere
all of which could have a material adverse effectiee market price of our Common Stock. We havgace a stockholder rights plan, adopted
in 2000, under which our shareholders are enttdgulirchase shares of Preferred Stock under ceartammstances. The stockholder rights |
may have the effect of impeding or preventing d¢erpes of transactions involving a change in oarf our company that could be benefi
to the shareholders.

Our Articles of Incorporation limit the liability d its directors, which may limit the remedies we @ur shareholders have available.

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that, purstismthe California Corporations Code, the liakilitf our directors for monetal
damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extentnssible under California law. This is intendecktiminate the personal liability of a direc
for monetary damages in an action brought by ud) ouar right, for breach of a director’s dutiesu® or our shareholders and may limit the
remedies available to us or our shareholders. fifaigision does not eliminate the directors’ fidugiduty and does not apply to liabilities for:
(i) acts or omissions that involve intentional noisduct or a knowing and culpable violation of Igi#);acts or omissions that a director belie
to be contrary to the best interests of our compgaryur shareholders or that involve the absengmof faith on the part of the director;

(iii) any transaction from which a director derivad improper personal benefit; (iv) acts or omissithat show a reckless disregard for the
director’s duty to the our company or our sharebrddn circumstances in which the director was awar should have been aware, in the
ordinary course of performing a director’s dutieka risk of serious injury to our company or ochaseholders; (v) acts or omissions that
constitute an unexcused pattern of inattentiondahaunts to an abdication of the director’s dutgtio company or our shareholders;

(vi) certain transactions or the approval of tratisas in which a director has a material finanai¢rest; and (vii) expressly imposed by stz
for approval of certain improper distributions teaseholders or certain loans or guarantees.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of June 30, 2006, we owned five facilities. Thege located in Hawthorne, California (combingzhraximately 88,000 square fee
They are used by each of our Security, HealthcadeGptoelectronics and Manufacturing divisionsddministrative, manufacturing,
engineering, sales and marketing functions. They abnstitute our corporate headquarters. We asoome building in Salfords, England
(approximately 59,000 square feet). Our Security ldealthcare divisions use this facility for maraifaing, engineering, sales and marketing
functions. Additionally we own a facility in Oce&prings, Mississippi (approximately 19,000 squaet)f Our Security and Optoelectronics
and Manufacturing divisions use this facility foanufacturing, engineering, sales and marketingtfons.

As of June 30, 2006, we leased all of our otheitifi@s. The following table lists our principal pbical properties (e., facilities greater
than 30,000 square feet):

Approximate
Square Footag

Location Description of Facility Expiration

Camarillo, California Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing and 60,000 2010
service for our Optoelectronics and Manufacturingsibn

Hawthorne, California Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing and 41,600 2009
service for our Security divisic

Santa Clara, California (: Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketingio 36,000 2006
Security divisior

North Andover, Massachuse Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketingio 35,200 2010
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisi

Issaquah, Washington (2) Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing and 202,600 2014
service for our Healthcare divisic

Feucht, Germany (3) Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing and 74,500 2006-
service for our Healthcare divisic 2008

Hyderabad, India (4) Manufacturing and engineering for our Security, 45,800 2009
Healthcare and Optoelectronics and Manufacturing
divisions

Johor Bahru, Malaysia (5) Manufacturing, engineering sales and service for ou 96,600 2006-
Security and Optoelectronics and Manufacturingsiiivis 2007

(1) This lease of the 36,000 square foot facility imt&eClara, California expires in December 2006 .réntty, we do not intend to renew tl
lease and expect to move into a larger facilityrbe

(2) This lease of the 202,600 square foot facilityssaquah, Washington is composed of two lease®igaime facility. One is a 107,000
square foot facility lease and the other is a 9 &fuare foot facility lease. Both leases expirBécember 201«
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(3) This lease of the 74,500 square foot facility i€, Germany is composed of three leases in tine $acility: (i) two 27,800 square fo
facility leases that expire in October 2006 andg(ill8,900 square foot facility lease that expine2008. We expect to renew the two
leases that expire in October 2006 on substansaiylar terms

(4) The lease of the 45,800 square foot facility in elybad, India is composed of three leases in the & in a nearby facility: (i) a 19,8t
square foot facility lease that expires in 2009,8i19,600 square foot facility lease that expire8009 and (iii) a 6,400 square foot
facility lease that expires in 20C

(5) The lease of the 96,600 square foot facility inafdBahru, Malaysia is composed of four leases énsélime or in nearby facilities: (i)
76,000 square foot facility lease that expires @c@€mnber 2006, (ii) a 17,000 square foot faciligske that expires in January 2007 and
(i) two 1,800 square foot facility leases thaper in October 2006. We expect that both the 7® £ifuare foot facility and 17,000 squ
foot facility leases will be renewed on similarrtes. We intend to renew one of the 1,800 squarefémility leases for an additional six-
month period, but do not currently intend to rertber other 1,800 square foot facility lea

We believe that our facilities are in good conditend are adequate to support our operations édfiotieseeable future. We currently
anticipate that we will be able to renew the ledbasare scheduled to expire in the next few yearerms that are substantially the same as
those currently in effect. However, even if we weo able to renew one or more of the leases, Weueethat suitable substitute space is
available to relocate any of the facilities. Acdagly, we do not believe that our failure to renamy of the leases that are scheduled to exp
the next few years will have a material adverseatfbn our operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In November 2002, -3 Communications Corporation brought suit agaissnuhe District Court for the Southern Distri¢tNew York
seeking a declaratory judgment that L-3 CommuracatiCorporation had not breached its obligationsstooncerning the acquisition of
PerkinElmer’s Security Detection Systems Businéés.asserted counterclaims against L-3 Communicat@orporation for, among other
things, fraud and breach of fiduciary duty. On M&ly 2006, the jury in the case returned a verdictr favor and awarded us $125 million in
damages. The jury found that L-3 CommunicationspGration had breached its fiduciary duty to us bad committed fraud. The jury
awarded us $33 million in compensatory damagesb8@dmillion in punitive damages. In addition, tlieyj also found that we had breached a
confidentiality agreement and awarded L-3 Commuigoa Corporation nominal damages of one dollaB. Communications Corporation is
seeking to have the verdict reduced or set aside.

During 2003 and 2004, we were informed that Scigkmglications International Corporation (“SAIC”) thanade statements to
prospective buyers of our gamma ray mobile detacticstem product that our product infringed upospertified SAIC patents. In April 2004,
we received a letter from SAIC specifying a patgmn which SAIC claimed our product infringed. Gany to SAIC’s claim, the patent cited
by SAIC actually distinguished the technology usedur product as a different, pre-existing tecloggl We therefore filed a lawsuit in the
U.S. District Court, Central District of Californfar declaratory judgment. SAIC has since countainted for patent infringement, citing the
same patent and unfair competition.

In March 2004, certain individuals named us andsuosidiary, Spacelabs Medical, as well as a haldpitated in Bexar County, Texas,
in a petition claiming that the individuals suffdrajuries in March 2003 caused, in part, by a d@&fe monitoring system manufactured by
Spacelabs Medical. The amount of the claim hayeiobeen specified. The petition was filed in ti& 2 Judicial District Court in Bexar
County, Texas.

In April 2004, certain individuals named our sulisiy, Spacelabs Medical, as well as several oth&artlants, in a petition that alleges,
among other things, that a product possibly manufad by Spacelabs Medical failed to properly mam# hospital patient thereby contribut
to the patient’s death in November 2001. The amofitite claim has not yet been specified. The ipetivas filed in the 23t Judicial District
Court, Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana.
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In February 2005, Electromedical, a Greek distidoutompany, filed an action in the courts of Geeelaiming that Spacelabs Medical
orally agreed to appoint Electromedical as Spaséktciusive Greek distributor, but failed to do Etectromedical claims that it incurred
significant expenses as a result of Spacelab®@etind demands Euro 872,414 (approximately $lllibmas of June 30, 2006) in
compensation.

In October 2005, Security Detection Systems, liedfa complaint alleging that certain “Metor” bchpeople screening systems sold by
our Security division infringe a specified pateetchby Security Detection Systems, Inc. The tsad¢heduled to commence on April 16, 2007
in the U.S. District Court for the Western DistridtTexas, El Paso Division. Without admitting lilily or wrongdoing by either party, on
July 31, 2006, the parties settled the matter disimyj all related claims and counterclaims. Unkertérms of the settlement we will pay
$100,000.

We are also involved in various other claims am@dl@roceedings arising out of the ordinary cowfseusiness which have not been
previously disclosed in our quarterly and annupbres. In our opinion after consultation with legaluinsel, the ultimate disposition of such
proceedings will not have a material adverse eff@cbur financial position, future results of ogenas, or cash flows.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitandards (“SFAS”) No. 5, “Accounting for Contergies,” we have not accrued
for loss contingencies relating to the above matbecause we believe that, although unfavorableomes in the proceedings may be possible,
they are not considered by management to be prelmalvteasonably estimable. If one or more of timeatters are resolved in a manner adverse
to us, the impact on our results of operationgrfgial position and/or liquidity could be material.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

31



Table of Contents

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock Market and Other Information
Our Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Stock Matknder the symbol “OSIS.”
The following table sets forth the high and lowesglices of a share of our Common Stock as reptigethe NASDAQ Stock Market on

a quarterly basis for the fiscal years ended Jn@@05 and June 30, 2006. The prices shown refieatdealer prices, without retail markup,
markdown or commission and may not necessarilyesepit actual transactions.

2005: High Low

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $19.97 $14.41
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $23.4( $15.5(
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $22.7(C $16.0¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $17.7¢ $13.8(
2006: High Low

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $18.44 $14.41
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $19.3¢ $14.6(
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $23.3¢ $18.1:
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $21.3¢ $16.6(

As of September 20, 2006, there were approximdi@0/holders of record of our Common Stock. This bendoes not include benefic
owners holding shares through nominees or in “sStresme.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends since the comstion of our initial public offering in 1997 aiadhticipate that we will retain any
available funds for use in the operation of ourihess. We do not currently intend to pay any casigdends in the foreseeable future. Our
Board of Directors will determine the payment diufie cash dividends, if any. Certain of our curtesrtk credit facilities restrict the payment
of cash dividends and future borrowing may conginilar restrictions.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum Number
of Shares
Total Number of Shares That May Yet Be
Purchased as Part of Purchased under
Total Number of Average Price Publicly Announced the Plans or
Period Shares Purchase Paid per Share Plans or Programs Programs (1)

April 1, 2006 to April 30, 200! — — — 1,330,92:
May 1, 2006 to May 31, 20( — — — 1,330,97.
June 1, 2006 to June 30, 2C — — — 1,330,97:

Total — — — 1,330,97:

(1) In March 1999, our Board of Directors authorizestack repurchase program for the repurchase ob @mtillion shares of our Common
Stock. In September 2004, we increased the nunflsranes available for repurchase under the stglrchase program by 1 million
shares. At June 30, 2006, 1,330,973 shares weilalaledor repurchase under the progr:
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Equity Compensation Plans
The following table provides information concernimgr equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities tc Weighted-average future issuance under
be issued upon exercis exercise price of equity compensation
of outstanding options outstanding options plans (excluding securitie

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

(@ (b) (c)
Equity compensation plar
approved by security
holders (1, 1,778,67: $ 17.9¢ 517,57:
Equity participation plans
not approved by securi
holders — — —

Total 1,778,67 $ 17.9¢ 517,57:

(1) Includes shares of our Common Stock issuable upercise of options from our 1987 Incentive Stocki@pPlan and our 1997 Sto
Option Plan
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected cordaikd financial data as of and for each of thefiseal years ended June 30, 2006 ar
derived from our consolidated financial statemefite consolidated financial statements as of J@@05 and 2006, and for each of the y
in the three-year period ended June 30, 2006 naheded elsewhere in this Annual Report on FornK1The following data should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Aséyof Financial Condition and Results of Operatfceind the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhehési‘\nnual Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended June 30

2002 2003 2004 (1) 2005 (1) 2006

(in thousands, except share and per share dat
Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Revenue! $ 124,23 $ 182,64 $ 247,06 $ 385,04: $ 452,68t
Cost of goods sol 85,90¢ 122,66 163,71: 243,41! 276,02t
Gross profil 38,32: 59,98: 83,357 141,62t 176,66:
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 21,641 29,16( 54,16: 116,24! 138,42¢
Research and developmt 6,43¢ 8,86t 14,63¢ 30,531 35,83¢
Goodwill amortizatior 402 — — — —
Management retention bonus — — 1,10¢ 1,82¢ 623
Restructuring costs (: — — 1,061 — 80C
Total operating expens 28,48 38,02t 70,96 148,60t 175,69(
Income (loss) from operatiol 9,83¢ 21,95¢ 12,39 (6,980) 971
Other income (expense
Gain on sale of marketable securities — 1,767 37¢€ — 34¢
Write-off of deferred acquisition costs ( — (60¢) — — —
Write down of equity investments ( — (1,439 (247) (182 —
Other income (7 — — — — 47E
Interest expens (659) (380) (283) (807) (1,559
Interest incomu 814 1,16¢ 863 19¢ 267
Income (loss) before income taxes and minc
interest 10,00( 22,47( 13,10: (7,779 504
Provision (benefit) for income tax 3,00(¢ 6,521 3,31¢ (5,309 1,09(
Income (loss) before minority intere 7,00( 15,94¢ 9,78¢ (2,469 (58¢)
Minority interest (79) (15€) 17C 69 (1,772)
Net income (loss $ 6,921 $ 15,79 $ 9,95¢ $ (2,39%) $ (2,359
Net income (loss) available to comm
shareholders (dilutec $ 6,921 $ 15,79 $ 9,95¢ $ (2,507 $ (2,739
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 0.6% $ 1.1 $ 0.6¢ $ (0.1%) $ (0.149
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 0.6C $ 1.0¢ $ 0.6t $ (0.15) $ (0.17)
Weighted average shares outstanding (dilu 11,478,37 14,513,37 15,236,39 16,222,99 16,516,65
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Year Ended June 30

2002 2003 2004 (1) 2005 (1) 2006

(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Datz¢

Cash and cash equivale $ 67,60¢ $ 94,24¢ $ 39,87¢ $ 14,62 $ 13,79¢
Working capital 115,63: 141,91¢ 147,54 130,37! 162,15t
Total asset 175,35¢ 229,53¢ 331,80: 347,12( 403,49¢
Long-term debi 4,46% 1,83¢ 32 4,852 5,48:
Total debi 7,08¢ 4,467 2,55 21,10 17,59:
Total shareholde’ equity (8) 135,73¢ 180,39 227,48. 223,62 248,94

(1) Results of operations for the fiscal years ended B0, 2004 and 2005, and our financial positioafakine 30, 2004 and 2005
incorporate the effect of several acquisitionsluding that of Spacelabs Medical. See Item 7. “Mgamaents Discussions and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operati”

(2) Represents an expense resulting from retentiogatimbins of key personnel of Spacelabs Medical tk@ryear ended June 30, 2006, the
expense had the effect of decreasing income fragnatipns by $0.6 million, and net income and nebine available to common
shareholders by $0.4 million. For the year endew B0, 2005, the expense had the effect of deagasiome from operations by $1.8
million, and net income and net income availabledmmon shareholders by $1.1 million. For the yeated June 30, 2004, the expense
had the effect of decreasing income from operatinn$1.1 million, and net income net income avddab common shareholders by $
million.

(3) Represents charges resulting from consolidatingrasitucturing certain subsidiaries. For the figear ended June 30, 2006, the charge
had the effect of decreasing income from operatiiyn$0.8 million, and net income and net incomeilatsée to common shareholders by
$0.5 million. For the fiscal year ended June 3@4&Qhe charge had the effect of decreasing indoome operations by $1.1 million, and
net income and net income available to common &laéders by $0.8 million

(4) Represents the gain on the sale of marketableifeswlassified as availal-for-sale.

(5) Represents professional fees and other transamtits related to our agreement with L-3 CommurocatiCorporation for the joint
acquisition of certain detection and security besges then owned by PerkinElmer, Inc. In Novemb8g2L-3 Communications
Corporation terminated this transaction prior tassammation

(6) Represents the recognition of an o-thar-temporary impairment of an equity investme

(7) As of June 30, 2006, we had a $25.4 million foreigrrency forward contract outstanding to buy Bhtpounds in anticipation of the C
Mar Reynolds acquisition. Transaction gains duthgyear ended June 30, 2006 include a $0.5 mifjain related to this contract. In
July 2006, the Del Mar Reynolds acquisition cloaad the foreign currency forward contract setttedulting in a fiscal year 2007 loss
$0.1 million.

(8) The increase in fiscal year 2006 includes $26.83onireceived from the issuance of subsidiary stddle increase in fiscal year 20
includes net proceeds of $31.0 million receivedarradprivate placement. The increase in fiscal 2888 includes net proceeds of $20.5
million received under a private placeme

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview
We are a vertically integrated designer and marnufacof specialized electronic systems and compiznier critical applications. W
sell our products in diversified markets, includimgmeland security, healthcare, defense and aarespa

We have three operating divisions: (a) Securitgyjating security and inspection systems; (b) Health, providing medical monitoring
and anesthesia systems; and (c) OptoelectronicMandfacturing, providing specialized electroniengmnents for affiliated end-products
divisions, as well as for applications in the defen
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and aerospace markets, among others. All inter-anypales are eliminated in consolidation. Add@ianformation concerning reporting
segments is available in Note 15 to our consol@ifiteancial statements.

In our Security division, we design, manufacturd ararket security and inspection systems. The mtsdaf this division are used to
inspect baggage, cargo, vehicles and other obfj@ctgeapons, explosives, drugs and other contrabaddo screen people. These systems are
also used for the safe, accurate and efficienfigation of cargo manifests for the purpose of ass® duties and monitoring the export and
import of controlled materials. Overall, these proi fall into four categories: baggage and pansglection, cargo and vehicle inspection, |
baggage screening and people screening.

In our Healthcare division, we design, manufacturd market medical monitoring and anesthesia systéhe products of this division
include network and connectivity solutions, ambagthlood pressure monitors and related servicegelisas cardiac monitoring and
diagnostic services. Additional products includedal hemoglobin saturation monitors and sensocdiding hand-held and wireless
monitoring tools and peripheral bone densitomedesultrasound bone sonometers.

In our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisiomg design, manufacture and market optoelectroniicde and provide value-added
manufacturing services. The products and servitgsodivision are provided to original equipmenénufacturers, as well as to our own
Security and Healthcare divisions. The productsserdices of this division are used in a broad easfgapplications, including aerospace and
defense electronics, security and inspection systemedical diagnostics, computed tomography (Qbgrfoptics, telecommunications,
gaming, office automation, computer peripherals iaddstrial automation. This division also desigmsnufactures and markets weapons
simulation systems and toll and traffic managensgatems.

In fiscal year 2006, revenues from the Securitysitiwm totaled $135.1 million, or approximately 3@¥wour revenues; revenues from the
Healthcare division totaled $220.6 million, or apgmately 49% of our revenues and revenues fronOeelectronics and Manufacturing
division amounted to $97.0 million, or approximgtlL% of revenues.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadifind results of operations is based on our dimladed financial statements, which
have been prepared in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United States.@eparation of these consolidated
financial statements requires us to make judgmemdsestimates that affect the reported amountsswta and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efitancial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. We base our estimates on historical expeei@nd on various other assumptions that we feetiebe reasonable under the
circumstances. As a result, actual results magidifbm such estimates. The following summarizescoitical accounting policies and
significant estimates used in preparing our codsbdid financial statements:

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue upon shipment of products willerand risk of loss passes, and when termsixaed anc
collection is probable. In accordance with the ®ohStaff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenuedggnition” and Emerging Issues Task
Force 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multipleilpsiables,” where installation services, if prowddare essential to the functionality of
the equipment, we defer the portion of revenudHersale attributable to installation until we haeepleted the installation. When terms of
sale include subjective customer acceptance @jtere defer revenue until the acceptance critegarget. Concurrent with the shipment of the
product, we accrue estimated product return reseaxd warranty expenses. Critical judgments madediyagement related to revenue
recognition include the determination of whethenot customer acceptance criteria are perfunctoigamnsequential. The determination of
whether or not the customer acceptance terms afi@engéory or inconsequential impacts the amounttmihg of the revenue we recognize.
Critical judgments also include estimates of wayaaserves, which are established based on tiat@kperience and knowledge of the
product.
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We undertake projects that include the design, ldpweent and manufacture or fabrication of largenptex cargo and vehicle inspection
systems that are specially customized to our custsnspecifications or that involve fixed-site ctrostion. We record sales under such
contracts under the percentage-of-completion meithadcordance with Statement of Position No. 8dcounting for Performance of
Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Caxtt.” We record costs and estimated revenues ges@m work based on the
percentage that incurred costs bear to estimatatidosts, utilizing the most recent estimatesasts. If our current contract estimate indical
loss, we make provision for the total anticipatesslin the current period. Critical estimates madenanagement related to revenue recogr
under the percentage-of-completion method inclhdesstimation of costs at completion and the detextion of the overall margin rate on the
specific project.

We recognize revenues from separate service maimtencontracts ratably over the term of the agre&snEor other services, we
recognize service revenues as we perform the ssnvizeferred revenue for services arises from avpayments received from customers for
services not yet performed. We record billed shiggind handling fees as revenue and the associagésias cost of goods sold.

Accounts Receivable The allowance for doubtful accounts involvesneates based on management’s judgment, reviewddfidual
receivables and analysis of historical bad deb#s.adjust customer credit limits based upon eactomes’s payment history and current credit
worthiness, as determined by credit informationilataée at that time. We monitor collections and payts from our customers and we
maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for eatigd losses resulting from the inability of ourtonsers to make required payments. If the
financial condition of our customers were to detexie, resulting in an impairment of their abilitymake payments, additional allowances
could be required.

Inventory. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or markatst is determined on the first-in, first-out nmhWe write down
inventory for slow-moving and obsolete inventorgéd on assessments of future demands, market ioosditnd customers who may be
experiencing financial difficulties. If these factavere to become less favorable than those pegjeatditional inventory writdowns could b
required.

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance We record a valuation allowance to reduce our dedetax assets when it is more likely
than not, based upon currently available evidenceogher factors, that we will not realize sometiporor all of our deferred tax assets. We
base our determination of the need for a valualtmwance on an on-going evaluation of past andeaievidence, including, among other
things, historical earnings, estimates of futumniegys, the backlog of customer orders and the erpeiming of deferred tax asset reversals.
We charge or credit adjustments to the valuatitonance to income tax expense in the period in twine make these determinations. If we
determine that we will be able to realize our defértax assets in the future in excess of itse@inded amount, then we make an adjustment tc
our deferred tax assets to increase net inconteeipériod that we make this determination. Likewisere determine that we will not be able
realize all or part of our net deferred tax assethe future, then we establish a valuation allogeafor the deferred tax asset and reduce net
income in the period that we make this determimatio

Goodwill.  We account for goodwill and intangible assetadcordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Ottmangible Assets.”
We assess impairment on an annual basis or onteninirbasis if events occur or circumstances chémagereduce the fair value of a reporting
unit below its carrying value. This assessmentireguthat we determine the fair value of each répgunit as compared to its carrying value.
We determine the fair value of our reporting uoitsthe income approach which requires that we smates of future revenues, cash flows
and capital expenditures, as well as market trandsgrowth. We believe these estimates and assomst be reasonable, although they are
inherently unpredictable and uncertain and acesllts may differ from these estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation ExpenseEffective July 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS 123(R) gisive modified prospective approach and
therefore have not restated results for prior piridnder this approach,
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awards that are granted, modified or settled dftér 1, 2005 have been and will be measured analiated for in accordance with SFAS 123
(R). Unvested awards that were granted prior tp JuR005 will continue to be accounted for in ademce with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), as adeeiby SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Basednpensation—Transition and
Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement No. {ZFAS 148"), except that compensation cost willlbeognized in our results of
operations. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS Rp3fe record stock-based compensation as a ckamgenings net of the estimated impact
of forfeited awards. As such, we recognize stockebdecompensation cost only for those stbaked awards that are estimated to ultimately
over their requisite service period, based on #sting provisions of the individual grants.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we accouritedtock-based compensation using the intrinsioesanethod prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accaimg for Stock Issued to Employees,” and relatedrpretations and chose to adopt the
disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, as amere8FAS 148. Under this approach, we discloseadisé of stock option grants and
discounts offered under our Employee Stock PurcRéme based on the vesting provisions of the indial grants, but did not charge it to
expense.

The process of estimating the fair value of stoakdnl compensation awards and recognizing stocldltasepensation cost over their
requisite service period involves significant asptions and judgments. We estimate the fair valugtadk option awards on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-valuation model wuhiequires that we make certain assumptions reggr¢i) the expected volatility in the
market price of our common stock, (ii) dividendlglig(iii) risk-free interest rates and (iv) the joet of time employees are expected to hold the
award prior to exercise (referred to as the expklotdding period). In addition, SFAS 123(R) reqgites to estimate the expected impact of
forfeited awards and recognize stock-based comgienszost only for those awards expected to vésictual forfeiture rates differ materially
from our estimates, stock-based compensation egpemdd differ significantly from the amounts wevhaecorded in the current period. We
periodically review actual forfeiture experiencalanvise our estimates, as necessary. We recotrdzaumulative effect on current and prior
periods of a change in the estimated forfeiture a@tcompensation cost in earnings in the periddeofevision. As a result, if we revise our
assumptions and estimates, our stock-based contimmeapense could change materially in the fut@ee Note 9 (Stock-based
Compensation) to the consolidated financial statési®r a further discussion of stock-based comgators.

Results of Operations

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that followsbased upon the way we analyze our business. SeelNdo the financial statemel
for additional information about business segments.

200£-2005 200¢-2006
% of % of % of
Net Sale: Net Sale: Net Sale: % Change % Change

2004 2005 2006

(Dollars in millions)
Security $117.¢ 48% $123.2 32% $135.1 30% 5% 10%
Healthcare 60.7 25% 1957 51% 220.¢ 49% 222% 13%

Optoelectronics

Manufacturing 84.C 34% 84.€ 22% 125.¢ 28% 1% 49%
Intercompany Revent (15.9 (7% (18.5) (5)% (28.9) (M% 20% 57%
Total Sales $247.1 $385.( $452.7 56% 18%

2006 compared with 2005 Net revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,4006reased $67.7 million, or 18%, to $452.7 roilli
from $385.0 million for the comparable prior-yearipd.
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Revenues for the Security division for the fisceayended June 30, 2006, increased $11.9 milliobQ%, to $135.1 million, from $123
million for the comparable prior-year period. Therease was primarily attributable to a $11.5 woillior 12%, increase in revenues in our
baggage, parcel inspection and people screenirdyprdines, and a $0.4 million, or 1%, increaseswvenues from the cargo and vehicle
inspection product lines.

Revenues for the Healthcare division for the fisesr ended June 30, 2006, increased $24.9 mibioh3%, to $220.6 million from
$195.7 million for the comparable prior-year peridtie increase was primarily attributable to higbatient monitoring sales as well as to the
inclusion of a full year of revenues from Bleasedital Holdings, Limited, a company we acquired @bFuary 2005. The increase in revenues
was partially offset by a decline in sales in pudgametry products.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufactutiwigion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20@8dased $30.9 million, or 47%, to
$97.0 million, from $66.1 millions for the compalalprior-year period net of intercompany eliminasoThe increase was primarily
attributable to higher contract manufacturing aochmercial optoelectronic sales, partially offsetdbgecline in sales of defense
optoelectronics. In addition, during fiscal yeafg0the division recorded intercompany sales of $28llion, compared to $18.5 million in the
comparable prior-year period. Such sales, whichreade to the Security and Healthcare divisionseinginated in consolidation.

2005 compared with 2004 Net revenues for the fiscal year ended Jun@@0% increased by $137.9 million, or 56%, to $884Hillion,
compared to $247.1 million for the fiscal year eshdane 30, 2004.

Revenues for the Security division increased by $aillion, or 5%, to $123.2 million, compared tol#18 million for fiscal year 2004.
The increase was primarily attributable to an iaseein the sales volume of our people screeningrmgsand an increase in service revenues,
offset by lower sales of baggage and parcel ingpesystems to the U.S. Transportation Security histration.

Revenues for the Healthcare division increased36® million, or 222%, to $195.7 million, compareds60.7 million for fiscal year
2004 net of intercompany eliminations. The increaas primarily attributable to the inclusion of tlevenues of Spacelabs Medical, a com|
we acquired in March 2004. The increase was atsibatiable to the inclusion of revenues of Bleasepmpany we acquired in February 2005,
as well as to growth in our pulse oximetry busin®gs revenues for Spacelabs Medical and Bleasthéofiscal year ended June 30, 2005 was
$178.6 million, as compared to $47.2 million foe fiiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufactutimgion decreased by $2.5 million, or 4%, to $6@illion, compared to $68.6
million for fiscal year 2004. This result was pririiadue to lower sales of defense optoelectroriffset partially by increased sales of
commercial optoelectronics.

Gross Profit
The following table provides a summary of our grpeit:

% of % of % of
Net Sale! Net Sale: Net Sale:

2004 2005 2006

(Dollars in millions)

Gross profil $83.4 33. 1%  $141.¢ 36.8% $176.¢ 39.(%

2006 compared with 2005 Our gross profit increased $35.0 million, o250 $176.6 million for the fiscal year ended J30e 2006,
from $141.6 million for the comparable prior-yearipd. Our gross margin increased to 39.0%, frot8%6n the comparable prior-year
period. The increase in gross margin was primaitiisibutable to: (i) improved gross margins in 8ecurity division due to favorable changes
in its product mix and increased sales and (iijéased sales of patient monitoring systems by eaitHcare division, which resulted in
improved gross margins as the division was ablewerage its fixed cost structure coupled with gssful cost reduction initiatives.
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2005 compared with 2004 Our gross profit increased $58.2 million, 0f4,Go $141.6 million, for the fiscal year ended d&0, 2005,
compared to $83.4 million for fiscal year 2004. éApercentage of revenues, gross profit increas8@.8% in fiscal year 2005 from 33.7% in
fiscal year 2004. The increase in gross marginpvasarily attributable to the inclusion of Spaceddfiedical, which generally enjoys higher
gross margins than our other businesses, but ajsermoperating expenses. The increase is alsbwatible to a change in estimated warranty
provision of approximately $2.1 million due to lomtban expected warranty claims on a specific pcbdald by our Healthcare division. The
increase was partially offset by the negative inpgicmargins of cargo and vehicle inspection ptgjendertaken by the Security division,
consisting of either first-of-a-kind projects witlew technologies, or development grants with mihimargins and large up-front engineering
costs. The increase was also partially offset yelosales of defense optoelectronics.

Operating Expenses

% of % of % of 20042005 2005200€
2004 Net Sale! 2005 Net Sale 2006 Net Sale: % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Selling, general and administrati $54.2 21.9% $116.2 30.2% $138.¢ 30.€% 114% 19%
Research and developmt 14.€ 5.9% 30.€ 7.% 35.€ 7.% 11(% 17%

Restructuring change 1.1 0.4% — — 0.8 0.2% NM NM
Management retention bon 11 0.5% 1.8 0.5% 0.6 0.2% 64% (67)%
Total operating expens $71.C 28.1% $148.¢ 38.6% $175.7 38.9% 10% 18%

Selling, general and administrative

2006 compared with 20C.  Selling, general and administrativ* SG&A”) expenses consisted primarily of compensation maghles
marketing and administrative personnel, professiseavice fees and marketing expenses. For fiseat 2006, SG&A expenses increased by
$22.2 million, or 19%, to $138.4 million from $126million for the comparable prior-year period. &percentage of revenues, SG&A
expenses in fiscal year 2006 increased to 30.681) 80.2% in the comparable prior-year period. Tlredase in SG&A expenses in fiscal year
2006 over the comparable prior-year period was amiignattributable to: (i) a $5.1 million increasespending on legal fees primarily in
support of ongoing litigation with L-3 Communicat® Corporation and with Science Applications Inégional Corporation, (ii) a $3.3 million
increase in corporate administrative spending pipett the overall growth of our businesses, (iiipeeign currency exchange loss of $1.8
million, compared to a foreign currency exchangsslof $0.2 million for the comparable prior-yearipé, (iv) the recognition of $4.5 million
in stock compensation expense under SFAS 123(R)hwhas adopted on July 1, 2005 related to emplstek options and employee stock
purchases, (v) a $2.6 million increase due tonkision of the SG&A expenses of Blease for ayalir and (vi) and an increase of
approximately $6.9 million in general sales and gustrative support costs to support the growthllrthree of our business segments. The
increase in SG&A expenses was partially offsethwyimpact of a net decrease in the amount of batledgense recorded for a previously
disclosed international receivable for our cargd @ehicle inspection product line of approximatgly7 million as compared with an amount
expensed in fiscal year 2005.

2005 compared with 2004. For the year ended June 30, 2005, SG&A expensesased by $62.0 million, or 114%, to $116.2lioml,
compared to $54.2 million for fiscal year 2004. éApercentage of revenues, SG&A expenses increasfi2% in fiscal year 2005 from 21.!
in fiscal year 2004. The increase in SG&A experisefiscal year 2005 as compared to the prior-yeafod was primarily attributable to the
inclusion of SG&A expenses of Spacelabs Medicabmpany we acquired in March 2004, Blease, a cognpe@nacquired in February 2005
and Advanced Research & Applications Corp. (simcemed Rapiscan Systems High Energy InspectionoCatipn), a company we acquired
in January 2004. The SG&A expenses of these tromganies totaled $61.7 million for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2005, compared to $16.9
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004e Titrease was also partially attributable to higlades and marketing expenses by our
Security division related to efforts aimed at deypéhg a broader market for cargo and vehicle inspe@nd hold
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baggage screening systems, as well as the establiglof a bad debt reserve of $2.5 million for merinational cargo and vehicle inspection
system receivable. Finally, our corporate group atntributed to the increase in SG&A expensestdingher legal expenses related to two
legal proceedings, implementation expenses incuoedmply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 r@ased administrative headcount,
outside consulting fees and legal settlement cetased to a dispute with the former president mdicelabs Medical. Legal expenses related to
two legal proceedings and implementation experslated to compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley A@GHF2 were $6.6 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005, as compared to $1.@mith the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. Thegerses were partially offset |

collections of approximately $1.8 million in recoies of accounts receivable previously written off.

Research and development

2006 compared with 20C. Research and development expenses includechsedated to new product development and product
enhancement expenditures. For fiscal year 2008arek and development expenses increased $5.8mibii 17%, to $35.9 million, from
$30.6 million for the comparable prior-year peridgd. a percentage of revenues, research and devetdgmpenses were 7.9% in fiscal year
2006, compared to 7.9% in the comparable prior-peaiod. The increase in research and developnxgeinses was primarily attributable to:
(i) incremental spending of approximately $2.5 ioillby our Healthcare division to ramp up for tlevelopment of next generation medical
monitoring products, (ii) $2.4 million in increassepending by our Security division primarily to papt the development of Hold Baggage
Screening systems and (iii) the recognition of $@illion in stock compensation expense under SFAHR) related to employee stock optic
and employee stock purchases which was adoptedlpi , J2005.

2005 compared with 2004 For the year ended June 30, 2005, such expaseased by $16.0 million, or 110%, to $30.6 iwil|
compared to $14.6 million in fiscal year 2004. Asesicentage of revenues, research and developxeenges increased to 7.9% in fiscal year
2005 from 5.9% in fiscal year 2004. The increase=gearch and development spending was partiaéiytalthe inclusion of the research and
development of Spacelabs Medical, a company weizhjin March 2004, Blease, a company we acquindeebruary 2005 and OSI
Laserscan a business we began to operate in Noved08. Research and development expenses for tifresebusinesses amounted to $15.1
million for fiscal 2005, as compared to $4.0 mitlifor fiscal 2004. The increase in research anéld@ment expense was also attributable to
increased spending on our automated hold baggagersog and cargo and vehicle inspection systems.

Restructuring charges. In fiscal year 2006, we consolidated manufaeotuprocesses and facilities of certain businesstsn each of
our Security and our Optoelectronics and Manufaegudivisions. These consolidations resulted imeatpx restructuring charge of $0.8
million, consisting primarily of: (i) lease obligah charges of $0.6 million, (ii) a property andigament write-off of $0.1 million and
(ii) severance and other expenses of $0.1 milliorfiscal year 2004, we consolidated manufactugracesses and facilities of certain
businesses of our Healthcare and OptoelectronitdveEmufacturing divisions. These consolidationsiltesl in a praax charge of $1.1 millior
consisting primarily of write-offs of equipment atedhsehold improvements of $1.0 million that westired during the period. We recorded
these charges as restructuring charges in our idatsal financial statements for the fiscal yeadeshJune 30, 2004. In fiscal years 2006 and
2004, we calculated these charges in accordanbeSFHAS No. 144, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-¢i/Assets” and SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities.” In $ical year 2005, we incurred no such restructurivegges.

Management retention bonus. In March 2004, we completed the acquisitioispécelabs Medical. As a result of the acquisitios,
assumed management retention bonus agreementsyfpeksonnel of Spacelabs Medical. These retebtioises vested over a two year
period. We expensed $1.1 million, $1.8 million &@6 million in the three years ended June 30, 22085 and 2006, respectively. As of
June 30, 2006, we had no further obligations utitese agreements.
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Non-Operating Income and Expenses

% of % of % of 20042005 20052006
2004 Net Sale: 2005 Net Sale: 2006 Net Sale: % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Gain on sale of marketable securi $0.3 0.2% $— — % $0.2 — % NM% NM%
Write down of equity investmen (0.2 0.)% (0.2 0.)% — — % (26)% NM %
Other income — — % — — % 0.5 0.1% NM% NM%
Interest incomt 0.9 0.3% 0.2 0.1% 0.2 — % (771% 36%
Interest expens (0.3 (0.)% (0.8 (0.2% (1.6 (0.9% 185% 93%
Total nor-operating income (expens $0.7 0.3% $(0.§) (0.9% $(0.5) (0.49% NM% NM%

Gain on sale of marketable securities. In fiscal year 2006, we realized a gain on sélmarketable securities of approximately $0.3
million related to the disposition of shares welacgf of a private company in connection with thpa&labs Medical acquisition. We had no
such sales in fiscal year 2005. In fiscal year 2002 realized a gain on sale of marketable seeardf approximately $0.3 million.

Write down of equity investments. In each of fiscal years 2005 and 2004, we asxbia write down of equity investments of $0.2
million.

Other income. In fiscal year 2006, we entered into a $25.4iaoni foreign currency forward contract to buy Bst pounds in
anticipation of the Del Mar Reynolds acquisitiomr@istent with SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivatilestruments and Hedging Activities,”
we have concluded that this contract did not quétif hedge accounting treatment and should insbedlooked as an unrealized gain as of
June 30, 2006. The amount of the unrealized gag@b million. In July 2006, the Del Mar Reynoltsjuisition was completed and the
foreign currency forward contract settled, resgltim a fiscal year 2007 loss of $0.1 million. Iadal 2005, no other income was recognized.

Interest income. In fiscal year 2006, we earned interest incof®0.3 million, compared to $0.2 million in fiscgdar 2005. The
increase in interest income for fiscal year 2006 diae to the increasing interest rates. For figeal 2005, we earned interest income of $0.2
million, compared to $0.9 million for fiscal yea®@4. The decrease in interest income for fiscal 2685 was due to the decrease in interest
earning deposits as compared with the prior yeaslle

Interest expense. In fiscal year 2006, we incurred interest exgeeaf $1.6 million, compared to $0.8 million ind& year 2005. The
increase in expense was primarily attributabld)tar{ increase in borrowings in the current yeasupport our working capital requirements
and (i) rising interest rates. In fiscal year 2p06r interest expense was $0.8 million, compapedbt3 million in fiscal year 2004. The incre:
in expense was due to an increase in borrowin§jsdal year 2005 as compared to fiscal year 2004.

Provision (benefit) for income taxes In fiscal year 2006, we recorded income taxemse of $1.1 million, or 216.3% of pre-tax
income, compared to $5.3 million of income tax ener (68.3%) of pre-tax loss in fiscal year 200%e increase in the effective tax rate was
primarily attributable to (1) the inclusion of inté/e stock options expense in total compensatigreese due to the adoption of SFAS 123(R)
in fiscal year 2006, which does not qualify forma tleduction resulting in a 146.4% increase toefi@ctive tax rate and (2) the repatriation of
dividend income from Malaysia which qualified far 85% exemption from federal income taxes whichilted in a 71.3% increase to our
effective tax rate. Our effective tax rate is adlependent on the mix of income from U.S. and foréigations due to rate tax differences
between countries.

In fiscal year 2005, we recorded an income tax fieoe$5.3 million, compared to a tax provision®8.3 million for fiscal year 2004. As
a percentage of income before provision for incoaxes and minority interest, the benefit for incaiaees was 68% for fiscal year 2005,
compared to a provision for income taxes of 25.3%
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for fiscal year 2004. Included in the tax benddit fiscal year 2005 is approximately $3.5 milliohbenefit due to the outcome of a study
conducted with the assistance of our outside taisats to determine available research and devedoptax credits. In addition, our effective
tax rate is dependent on the mix of income/lossftdS. and foreign locations due to tax rate diffexes between countries.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and equivalents as of June 30, 2006 were $ii8i@n, a decrease of $0.8 million from $14.6 lioih as of June 30, 2005.

Net cash used in operating activities for the figear ended June 30, 2006 was $12.2 million. Eehaised primarily consisted of (i) a
net loss of $2.4 million offset in part by adjustitefor non-cash items such as depreciation andtemaion of $14.2 million, stock-based
compensation expenses of $5.4 million, provisiarddsses on accounts receivable of $2.8 millioth mmority interest in net income (loss) of
subsidiary of $1.8 million, (ii) an increase in @ntory of $13.7 million and accounts receivabl&®1.7 million due to the timing of production
and product shipments, (iii) an increase in otkeeeivables of $4.3 million. Cash used in opera#iatyvities was offset in part by an increase in
accounts payable of $9.1 million, an increase ferled revenue of $3.2 million and an increasetireoaccrued expenses and current liabil
of $3.0 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $16.3ianilfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, witichsisted primarily of capital
expenditures of $16.0 million required to suppb#g dverall growth of our businesses.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $28illion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20086ick primarily consisted of cash
received of $26.3 million from the initial publidfering in October 2005 of a minority interest ipé&elabs Healthcare. We utilized a portion of
these proceeds to repay approximately $4.9 mitioour short-term borrowings.

Stock Repurchase Progral

Our Board of Directors has authorized a stock refmase program under which we may repurchase u@®®00 shares of our comm
stock. During fiscal year 2006, we did not repusghany shares under this program. As of June 3®,20330,973 shares were available for
additional repurchase under the program. We rdigdreasury shares as they are repurchased asrd tbem as a reduction in the number of
shares of common stock issued and outstandingricansolidated financial statements.

Credit Agreements

In May 2005, we entered into a second amendedestdted credit agreement with Bank of the Westclwhiovided for a $50.0 millio
senior revolving line of credit, including a letigfrcredit, foreign exchange facility and an acdigs credit facility, which were secured by
substantially all of the assets of our U.S. sulasids and our stock ownership in two significamefgn subsidiaries.

At June 30, 2006, $10.2 million was outstandingarrtte revolving line of credit and $11.2 milliomsvissued and outstanding under the
letter of credit facility at an interest rate o¥8%, as of June 30, 2006.

On July 18, 2006, we entered into a Third Amendatl Restated Credit Agreement with Bank of the Wastamended, the agreement
provides for a $35 million senior revolving line akdit, including a letter of credit and foreigxckange facility, each of which are secured by
substantially all of our U.S. assets, including stack ownership of 80% of Spacelabs Healthcaterést on the revolving loans is based, at
our option, on either the bank’s prime rate plugaif.5% (based on our financial performance),rothe British Bankers Association Interest
Settlement Rate for deposits in U.S. dollars plusou2.5% (based on our financial
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performance). We have made customary represergati@arranties and covenants in the Third AmendeldRestated Credit Agreement,
including certain financial covenants, such as ta@ng a specified tangible net worth; ratio afaldiabilities to effective tangible net worth;
ratio of earnings before interest and taxes tadstepaid in cash; pre-tax loss limitations; anpited expenditure limitations, among others. The
agreement expires on July 18, 2009.

In order to provide our Healthcare division witseparate line of credit, we bifurcated our arrangrvith Bank of the West. As a res
on July 18, 2006, Spacelabs Healthcare also eniet@a Credit Agreement with Bank of the West. Hgeeement provides for a $10 million
senior revolving line of credit, including a lettef-credit and foreign exchange facility, and a $2million loan to fund the purchase of the Del
Mar Reynolds cardiology division of Ferraris GrdabC, a company registered in England and Wales.Credit Agreement is secured by
substantially all of the assets of the U.S. subsi@$ of our Healthcare division. Interest on taeolving loans is based, at our option, on either
the bank’s prime rate, plus up to 0.5% (based @ac8pbs Healthcare’s financial performance), othenBritish Bankers Association Interest
Settlement Rate for deposits in U.S. dollars plusou2.5% (based on Spacelabs Healthcare’s fineperformance). Spacelabs Healthcare has
made customary representations, warranties anchaat®in the Credit Agreement, including certairaficial covenants such as maintaining a
specified tangible net worth; ratio of current asde current liabilities; ratio of earnings befangerest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatios
non-financed capital expenditures and dividendd paideclared to interest paid plus the currentipoof long-term debt and capitalized lease
obligations; and ratio of indebtedness to earnbgfere interest taxes depreciation and amortizatiorong others. The agreement expires on
July 18, 2009.

Our Rapiscan Systems Pte. Ltd. subsidiary in Siogapas entered into a revolving line of credieagnent with the Singapore branch of
an Indian bank. This line of credit provides forigas types of short term borrowing of up to 4.9#lion Singapore dollars (approximately
$3.1 million at June 30, 2006). Borrowings under lihe of credit bear interest at the bank’s priate (9.0% at June 30, 2006) plus from 1.0%
to 1.25% depending on the type of loan. Borrowingger the line of credit are secured by the asdedar Rapiscan Systems Pte. Ltd
subsidiary. At June 30, 2006, there were no amaoauttstanding under the revolving line of credit.jon Medical Pte. Ltd subsidiary in
Singapore has entered into a revolving line of itr@greement with the Singapore branch of an Inbamk. This line of credit provides for
secured overdraft/inventory borrowings up to 1.8iam Singapore dollars (approximately $1.0 milliahJune 30, 2006). Borrowings under the
line of credit bear interest at the bank’s prirate (9.0% at June 30, 2006) plus 1.25% underirtlieeof credit are secured by the inventory of
Dolphin Medical Pte. Ltd. subsidiary. At June 3008, there were no amounts outstanding under treviag line of credit. The credit
agreements for our Rapiscan Systems Pte. Ltd.diabgiand our Dolphin Medical Pte. Ltd. subsidiarg guaranteed by us up to 3.9 million
Singapore dollars (approximately $2.5 million ahgB0, 2006) in total. These facilities expireamdary 2007 and we believe that they will be
renewed on similar terms.

Our Advanced Micro Electronics AS subsidiary hateesd into a loan agreement with a Norwegian bhakprovides for revolving line
of credit borrowings of up to 10,000,000 Norweglaaners (approximately $1.6 million at June 30, &0®Borrowings under this line of credit
bear interest at a variable rate, which was 4.5%uaé 30, 2005 and 5.25% at June 30, 2006. Borgsainder this line of credit are secured by
certain assets of Advanced Micro Electronics. Ate]J80, 2006, there were no amounts outstandingruhigdine of credit. This facility expire
in March 2007 and we believe that it will be rendvea similar terms.

In December 2004, our Rapiscan Systems subsidiahei United Kingdom entered into a bank loan o8$8illion with a United
Kingdom based bank to fund the acquisition of land buildings in Salfords, England. We co-locatedain of our Security and Healthcare
division operations in this facility. The loan spayable over a twenty-year period, with quartpdyments due of £34,500 (approximately
$63,800 at June 30, 2006). Outstanding borrowirgs mterest at three-month LIBOR (5.9605% at B(he2006) plus 1.2% and are payable
on a quarterly basis. Of our outstanding balan@e3 fillion is due during the next twelve monthsl dine balance of $4.5 million is due over a
long-term basis.
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Our Rapiscan Systems subsidiary in the United Kangelso has a loan agreement with a United Kingtased bank that provides for
an overdraft facility up to a maximum amount ofZ8Lmillion (approximately $2.3 million at June ZM06) outstanding at any one time. Such
amounts are secured by certain assets of our Rap®gstems subsidiary in the United Kingdom. AteJ86, 2006, £0.4 million (approx $0.7
million) was outstanding under the overdraft fagiliOutstanding borrowings bear interest at a batse(4.5% at June 30, 2006) plus 1.35% per
annum. The agreement also provides foB2% million (approximately $6.0 million at June, ZD06) facility for tender and performance bo
and a £1.0 million (approximately $1.9 million an& 30, 2006) facility for the purchase of foreexthange contracts and letters of credit. At
June 30, 2006, nothing was outstanding under forexghange contracts and letters of credit. Thasiétfes are secured by certain assets of
our Rapiscan Systems subsidiary in the United Kamg@nd we have further guaranteed these obligatiprie £1.0 million (approximately
$1.9 million at June 30, 2006). As of June 30, 2@X7 million (approximately $4.9 million at Ju@@, 2006) was outstanding under the
performance bond facility. These facilities expirédpril 2007 and we believe that they will be reresl on similar terms.

Our Opto Sensors subsidiary in Malaysia has a agmaement with a Malaysian bank that provides f@rdraft borrowings of up to
3.0 million Malaysian ringgits (approximately $G18llion at June 30, 2006). Borrowings under the lof credit bear interest at the bank’s base
lending rate (6.25% at June 30, 2006) plus 1.75%erést is payable monthly. As of June 30, 200Gamounts were outstanding under this
agreement. Borrowings under this loan agreemergerered by certain assets of our Opto Sensorgdsaysin Malaysia and are guaranteed
by us up to 3.0 million Malaysian ringgits (appnmetely $0.8 million at June 30, 2006). This fagilixpires in March 2007 and we believe
it will be renewed on similar terms.

Our Opto Sensors subsidiary in Malaysia also haagagement with a Malaysian bank that provided iomillion Malaysian ringgits
(approximately $4.6 million at June 30, 2006) unal@erformance bond facility. As of June 30, 2@08&, million Malaysian ringgits
(approximately $0.6 million at June 30, 2006) weutstanding under this facility. The agreement jutes for overdraft borrowings up to
5.0 million Malaysian ringgits (approximately $Imllion at June 30, 2006). Borrowings under therdvaft facility bear interest at the bank’s
base lending rate (6.25% at June 30, 2006) plEd.. At June 30, 2006, no amounts were outstandindgmthe overdraft facility. The
agreement also provides an import line of creditaup.0 million Malaysian ringgits (approximatel®.$ million at June 30, 2006). At June 30,
2006 no amounts were outstanding under the impwmrtdf credit. Borrowings under this loan agreernestsecured by certain assets of our
Opto Sensors subsidiary in Malaysia and are gueedrty us up to 14.2 million Malaysian ringgitsgagximately $3.9 million at June 30,
2006). This facility expires in January 2007 andbheéeve that it will be renewed on similar terms.

Our Rapiscan Systems subsidiary in Finland hagyegeanent with a Finnish bank that provides forr@ilion euros (approximately
$0.7 million at June 30, 2006) under a tender artbpmance bond facility. As of June 30, 2006, ®iflion euros (approximately $0.3 milliol
were outstanding under this facility. The agreenadst provides for a foreign currency overdrafilfacup to 0.5 million euros (approximately
$0.6 million at June 30, 2006). At June 30, 20@amounts were outstanding under the facility. Baings under these facilities bear interest
rate at the bank’s prime lending rate (3% at Jun€2B806) plus 1.0%. These facilities expire in fealoy 2007 and we believe they will be
renewed on similar terms.

Our Spacelabs Medical subsidiary has an arrangewitma bank in the United States that providesujpto $0.1 million in letters of
credit and $0.4 million in overdraft borrowings.€elbverdraft borrowings portion bears interest attink’s prime rate (8.25% at June 30,
2006) plus 3%. There were no outstanding lettergedit or outstanding amounts under the overdm@ftowing portion of the facility as of
June 30, 2006. The facility is guaranteed by us.

Our Spacelabs Medical subsidiary has an agreeni#mtvbank in the United States that provides adoidd of $0.8 million that was
required in connection with a tender related togbtential sale of products in a foreign countrige®id bond is secured by a money market
account in the amount of $0.8 million. The bid baxgired on July 22, 2006.
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We believe that cash from operations, existing @ashlines of credit will be sufficient to meet aash requirements for the foreseeable
future.

Other Contractual Obligations and Commitments

In fiscal year 2005, we committed to enter into Heases for computer equipment associated withsienkease agreement previou
entered into with Dell Financial Services. The reaftase agreement provided for the leasing of coengquipment over a period of 36
months. We have recorded the new leases that soeiated with the master lease agreement as clgaitds. The master lease agreement
permits us to lease up to $1.0 million in equipmést of June 30, 2006, $0.2 million was outstandingder these capital leases.

In November 2004, we entered into an agreementavitmdependent contractor for the design and naatwfe of a patient monitor for
our Spacelabs Medical subsidiary. Under the agraeme are required to buy a minimum number of mweifrom the manufacturer during
each year of the term of the agreement at a fixig pWe may provide one year’s notice to termirtateagreement without cause at any time
following the completion of the second year of thiem of the agreement. Given this termination riglir minimum commitment under this
agreement amounts to three years of purchaseshwdtals approximately $8.9 million. We expectake delivery on the first units under this
agreement in fiscal year 2007.

Under the terms and conditions of the purchaseeaggats associated with the following acquisitiams,may be obligated to make
additional payments:

In August 2002, we purchased a minority equityrieéein CXR Limited, a United Kingdom based reskamed development compa
that develops real time tomography systems. In 2004, we increased our equity interest in CXRppreximately 75% and in December
2004 we acquired the remaining 25%. As compensadidine selling shareholders for this remainingiest we have agreed to make certain
royalty payments based on sales of CXR’s prodéasof June 30, 2006, no royalty payments had baemee.

In November 2002, we acquired all of the outstagdiapital stock of Ancore Corporation (since rendiRapiscan Systems Neutronics
and Advanced Technologies Corporation), a SanteaC@alifornia based company. During the five ydallewing the close, contingent
consideration is payable based on the sales dinent its products. The contingent consideratondpped at $34.0 million. As of June 30,
2006, no earn-out payments had been earned.

In January 2004, we completed the acquisition ofékated Research & Applications Corp. (since renaRegaiscan Systems High
Energy Inspection Corporation), a privately heldhpany located in Sunnyvale, California. During sie@en years following the close,
contingent consideration is payable based on itsavenues, provided certain requirements are Tiegt.contingent consideration is capped at
$30.0 million. As of June 30, 2006, no earn outrpagts have been earned and paid.

In February 2005, we completed the acquisition lebBe. During the three years following the clesstingent consideration is payable
based on Blease’s net revenues, provided certginregnents are met. The contingent consideraticaped at £6.25 million (approximately
$11.6 million as of June 30, 2006). As of JuneZfM6, no earn-out payments had been earned.
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The following is a summary of our contractual obtigns and commitments at June 30, 2006 (in thalsan

Payments Due by Period

Less thar
Aft
Contractual Obligations Total 1year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 yeez;rs
Total debt (excluding capital lease obligationg) $17,34: $11,86( $127¢ $ 667 $ 3,53i
Capital lease obligatior $ 248 $ 248 $ — $ — $ —
Operating lease $51,08( $10,07C $14,75C $10,75¢  $15,50¢
Purchase obligatior $ 894( $298 $596( $ — $ —
Defined benefit plan obligatic $ 4206 $ 44z $ 135 $ 781 $ 2,84¢
Total contractual obligatior $81,817 $25,60( $22,12¢ $12,20: $21,89:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total
Amou'nts
Committed Less thar Over
Other Commercial Commitments 1year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
Standby letters of crec $12,05¢ $654¢ $5506 $ — $ —
Performance bonc $ 581¢ $227: $201¢ $153 $ —
Total commercial commitmen $17,87¢ $8821 $752( $153: $ —

(1) We have presented the outstanding balance of $4illion on bank lines of credit at June 30, 2006dae within less than one yeai
order to conform to the classification in the acpamying consolidated financial statements. In &aiditour total debt obligations exclu
interest costs due to their variable nati

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2006, we had no off balance sheahgements other than those previously disclosefased in Item 303(a)(4) «
Regulation S-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligas, an Interpretation of FASB Statem
No. 142 (“FIN 47”). This interpretation clarifies that@nditional retirement obligation refers to a leghligation to perform an asset
retirement activity in which the timing and/or methof settlement are conditional on a future etleat may or may not be within the contro
the entity. The obligation to perform the assdteatent activity is unconditional even though utaimty exists about the timing and/or method
of settlement. Accordingly, an entity is requiredécognize a liability for the fair value of a ditional asset retirement obligation if the fair
value of the liability can be reasonably estimafgtk liability should be recognized when incurrgenerally upon acquisition, construction or
development of the asset. FIN 47 is effective nerlthan the end of fiscal years ending after Ddemi5, 2005. The adoption of FIN 47 had
no impact on our financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FASB Statement No, 1Adcounting Changes and Error Corrections, aae@mnent of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement N’ (“SFAS No. 154"). Previously, APB Opinion No. 2fAccounting Changes” and FASB Statement No. 3,
“Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Finan@thtements” required the inclusion of the cumukgfect of changes in accounting
principle in net income of the period of the chan§EAS No. 154 requires companies to recognizeaagin accounting principle, including
change required by a new accounting pronouncemlieanthe pronouncement does not include specifitsitian provisions retrospectively to
prior period financial statements. SFAS No. 15dffective for accounting changes and correctionsradrs made in fiscal years beginning ¢
December 15, 2005. We have not yet determinechtpadt that this interpretation will have on our solidated financial statements.
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In June 2005, the FASB issued an exposure draftppbposed standard entitled “Business Combinati@neeplacement of FASB
Statement No. 141". The proposed standard, if aghptould provide new guidance for evaluating aewbrding business combinations and
would be effective on a prospective basis for bessncombinations whose acquisition dates are afterJanuary 1, 2007. Upon issuance of a
final standard, which is expected in 2006, we eihluate the impact of this new standard and fecebn the process for recording business
combinations.

In September 2005, the FASB ratified Emerging Isstiesk Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-13, “AccountingParchases and Sales of
Inventory with the Same Counterparty” (“EITF 04-L3ITF 04-13 provides guidance on whether two orerinventory purchase and sales
transactions with the same counterparty shouldd®ead as a single exchange transaction within ¢bees of APB No. 29, “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactiol” In addition, EITF 04-13 indicates whether nonmiamg exchanges of inventory within the same linbudiness
should be recognized at cost or fair value. EITFLB4vas effective as of April 1, 2006. There hasrbeo impact on our financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatian K8, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxXeEhis Interpretation clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes geized in the financial statements in accordantk RASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” This interpretation is effectfee fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 have not yet determined the impact
this interpretation will have on our consolidatetaficial statements.

Related-Party Transactions

In 1994, we, together with an unrelated companmyméal ECIL-Rapiscan Security Products Limited, af@ienture organized under the
laws of India. We own a 36% interest in the joiahture, our chairman and chief executive officensw 10.5% interest, and the president of
Rapiscan Systems owns a 4.5% ownership interestin@al investment was $108,000. For the yeamdeghJune 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006 our
equity earnings in the joint venture amounted td7600, $213,000 and $432,000 respectively, ané wetuded in SG&A expenses. During
the year ended June 30, 2001, we increased oial inkestment by $39,000. Our ownership interestained at 36% as all the shareholders
increased their respective investments proporte@naie, our chairman and chief executive officed #he president of Rapiscan Systems
collectively control less than 50% of the boardiiwéctors voting power in the joint venture. Asesault, we account for the investment unde
equity method of accounting. The joint venture feamed for the purpose of the manufacture, assensklyice and testing of security and
inspection systems and other products. Some ofwhsidiaries are suppliers to the joint ventureéngar which in turn manufactures and sells
the resulting products. Sales to the joint venpaener for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20085 2and 2006 were approximately $677,000,
$178,000 and $96,000, respectively.

We have contracted with entities owned by membkoainBoard of Directors to provide messenger $@wj auto rental and printing
services. Included in cost of sales, selling, galneend administrative expenses for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006, are
approximately $70,000, $60,000 and $60,000 for evggsr service and auto rental, respectively, ai3d0®D, $67,000 and $79,000 for printing
services, respectively.
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UNAUDITED QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following tables present unaudited quarterhaficial information for the four quarters endedel8f, 2005 and 2006 (in thousant

Revenue:
Costs of goods sol

Gross profil
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative exper
Research and developmt
Management retention bon
Total operating expens
Income (loss) from operatiol
Write down of equity investmel
Interest income (expen—net
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes \mglority interes!
Provision (benefit) for income tax
Minority interest

Net income (loss
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk

Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh

Quarter Ended

September 3C December 31 March 31,

June 30,

2004 2004 2005 2005

(Unaudited)

$ 87,64« $ 102,53: $94,15: $100,71<
53,85¢ 66,07¢ 60,97¢ 62,507
33,79( 36,45 33,17¢ 38,20¢
24,79 25,59¢ 30,16¢ 35,69:
6,67( 7,06¢ 7,30¢ 9,49t
54¢ 54¢ 28¢ 43€
32,017 33,21( 37,75¢ 45,62t
1,77¢ 3,24: (4,587 (7,419

— — 182 —
33 5 (12€) (523)
1,811 3,247 (4,889 (7,942
57C 78¢ (1,967 (4,707

69 — — —
$ 131 $ 2456  $(2929 $ (3,239
$ 006 $ 01 $ (019 $ (0.20
$ 006 $ 01  $ (0.19 $ (0.20
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Quarter Ended

September 3C December 31
March 31, June 30,
2005 2005 2006 2006
(Unaudited)
Revenue! $ 101,87( $ 117,13¢ $108,09: $125,58¢
Costs of goods sol 64,91° 71,99¢ 65,01¢ 74,09(
Gross profil 36,95 45,13¢ 43,07 51,49¢
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative exper 33,41 33,51¢ 33,80¢ 37,69:
Research and developmt 8,731 8,70( 8,851 9,557
Restructuring charge 80C — — —
Management retention bon 521 51 51 —
Total operating expens: 43,467 42,26¢ 42,707 47,25(
Income (loss) from operatiol (6,514 2,87: 36€ 4,24¢
Gain on sale of investme — 34¢ — —
Other income — — — 47¢
Interest expen—net (53)) (330) (145) (285)
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes @niigority interes: (7,045 2,892 221 4,43¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax (2,85€) 1,861 (820) 2,90¢
Minority interest — (94¢€) (30 (79¢)
Net income (loss $ (4,189 $ 85 $ 1,011 $ 73E
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (0.26) $ 0.01 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ (0.26) $ 0.0C $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks, whichrarerent in our financial instruments and arise ftoansactions entered into in t
normal course of business. We may enter into diévivdinancial instrument transactions in ordentanage or reduce market risk in connec
with specific foreign-currency-denominated trangars. We do not enter into derivative financialtiosent transactions for speculative
purposes.

We are subject to interest rate risk on our stemtitborrowings under our bank lines of credit. Barings under these lines of credit do
not give rise to significant interest rate risk &dgse these borrowings have short maturities andarewed at variable interest rates.
Historically, we have not experienced material gainlosses due to interest rate changes.

Foreign Currency

The accounts of our operations in each of the falig countries are maintained in the following @nties: Singapore (Singap¢
dollars), Malaysia (Malaysian ringgits), United igolom (UK pounds sterling), Norway (Norwegian kra)etndia (Indian rupees), Hong Ko
(Hong Kong dollars), China (Chinese yuan renminBgnada (Canadian dollars) and Cyprus (Cypriot geurThe accounts of our operations
in each of the following countries are maintaineeiros: Austria, Finland, France, Germany, Greackltaly. Foreign currency financial
statements are translated into U.S. dollars atotimates, with the exception of revenues, cosdseapenses, which are translated at average
rates during the reporting period. Gains and lossgslting from foreign currency transactions a@uded in income, while those resulting
from translation of financial
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statements are excluded from income and accumudat@edcomponent of shareholder’s equity. We indudensaction losses of approximately
$0.2 million in income for fiscal year 2005 and &nillion for fiscal year 2006. A hypothetical 108fhange in the relevant currency rates at
June 30, 2006 would not have a material impactwrfinancial position or results of operations.

Use of Derivatives

Our use of derivatives consists primarily of foreExchange contracts and interest rate swaps. \Waase forward contracts to hedge
foreign exchange exposure related to commitmenasdaire inventory for sale and to reduce our expoassociated with acquisitions. We do
not use the contracts for trading purposes. Asiné B0, 2006, we had a $25.4 million foreign cucyeforward contract outstanding to buy
British pounds in anticipation of the Del Mar Relawacquisition. There were no foreign exchangdreets or interest rate swaps outstanding
as of June 30, 2005.

Importance of International Markets

International markets provide us with significanb\gth opportunities. However, the following everdmong others, could adversely
affect our financial results in subsequent perigasiodic economic downturns in different regiofishe world, changes in trade policies or
tariffs, wars and other political instability. Fitre year ended June 30, 2006, overall foreign noyrdéuctuations relative to the U.S. dollar had
an immaterial effect on our consolidated revenunekrasults of operations. Despite changes in monetaicy in Malaysia, including the de-
pegging of the Malaysian ringgit to the U.S. dallae believe that our foreign currency exposurblalaysia will not be significant in the
foreseeable future. We continue to perform ongaoieglit evaluations of our customers’ financial dtiod and, if deemed necessary, we
require advance payments for sales. We monitora@uanand currency conditions around the world taleate whether there may be any
significant effect on our international sales ie fhture. Due to our overseas investments andebessity of dealing with local currencies in
our foreign business transactions, we are at rigtk i@spect to foreign currency fluctuations.

Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a mateémiglact on our results of operatiol

Interest Rate Risk

All highly liquid investments with maturity of theemonths or less are classified as cash equivadetsecorded in the balance sheet at
fair value. Short-term investments are comprisekigii-quality marketable securities.

The principal maturity and estimated value of aurg-term debt exposure as of June 30, 2005 a@law$ (in thousands):

Maturity
2011 and
thereafter )
Fair
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total Value
Long-term debi
Secured long term loan and capital lease obliga: $49¢ $50¢€ $267 $247 $247 $ 3,58¢ $5,351 $5,351
Average interest ral 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2% 6.2%
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The principal maturity and estimated value of aung-term debt exposure as of June 30, 2006 amla®/$ (in thousands):

Maturity

2012 and

thereafter Fair
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total Value

Long-term debt
Secured long term loans and capital lease obliga $1,251 $62¢ $654 $40z $26E $ 3,537 $6,73¢ $6,73¢
Average interest ral 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1%

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

We make reference here to the Index to Consolidéiteghcial Statements that appears on p&1 of this report. The Report
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm fidetoitte & Touche LLP, the Report of IndependengReered Public Accounting Firm
from Moss Adams LLP, the Consolidated Financiatéteents and the Notes to Consolidated Financiéé®nts listed in the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements, which appeanhew on page F-2 of this report, are incorpordigdeference into this Item 8.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On March 23, 2006, Deloitte & Touche LLP resignsdar independent registered public accountants.r@&signation was accepted
the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

The reports of Deloitte & Touche LLP on our condated financial statements for the years ended 3002004 and 2005 did not cont
an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, anchsteports were not qualified or modified as toentainty, audit scope or accounting
principle, except as discussed in the followingteece. Deloitte & Touche LLP’s report on our Ju®e B005 consolidated financial statements
included an explanatory paragraph related to teatement of the June 30, 2003 and 2004 pro fototk sompensation fair value disclosures.
In connection with its audit of the effectivene$®or internal control over financial reporting @fsJune 30, 2005, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatif the Treadway Commission,
Deloitte & Touche LLP expressed an unqualified apiron our assessment of the effectiveness ofraarrial control over financial reporting,
and an adverse opinion in its report dated Septe@&e2005 on the effectiveness of our internatti@mver financial reporting due to two
material weaknesses as more fully described beltv.Audit Committee of our Board of Directors dissed the subject matter of the adverse
opinion with Deloitte & Touche LLP prior to the Sember 28, 2005 report. We authorized Deloitte &dfe LLP to respond fully to any
inquiries of its successor concerning the subjeatten of the September 28, 2005 report and any otladters.

During the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2005wodgh the subsequent interim period through the détheir resignation, there were
no disagreements between Deloitte & Touche LLPwndn any matter of accounting principles or pcadj financial statement disclosure or
auditing scope or procedure, which disagreemefmstiresolved to Deloitte & Touche LLP’s satisfact would have caused it to make
reference to the subject matter of the disagreemergnnection with its reports, other than asaésed in this paragraph. In connection with
Deloitte & Touche LLP’s review of our interim fineial statements for the quarter ended Septembe2(8Bl, we had a disagreement with
Deloitte & Touche LLP, which was resolved to Deiei& Touche LLP’s satisfaction prior to the filimf our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for that period. The disagreement related to th@iegttion of accounting principles used to recogmavenue upon shipment of x-ray scanning
equipment to a third-party warehouse on Septem®e2@4. We recorded adjustments to our finant&éments for the three-month period
ended September 30, 2004, in order to decreasauewand cost of sales by $1.4 million and $1 milli@spectively. The Audit Committee of
our Board of Directors discussed such disagreemigntDeloitte & Touche LLP. We authorized Deloif€eTouche LLP to respond fully to the
inquiries of any successor accountant concerniagtibject matter of this disagreement.
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In connection with its audit for fiscal year 20@¢loitte & Touche LLP advised us that it believhdttthe following matters constituted
material weaknesses. These material weaknessesepemted in Item 9A of our Form 10-K for that fdgear.

1) We identified certain computational errors im aanual income tax provision and related income¢aeivable and payable and
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesifzal year 2005. These errors resulted fromfecidacy in the operation of controls
requiring the reconciliation of the components of mcome tax provision to appropriate supportioguinentation. Given the
significance of the tax account balances and tkerate of sufficient mitigating controls, these deficies represent a material weakness
in internal control over financial reporting.

2) We identified certain transactions recordedeagmue by one of our Canadian subsidiaries in ¢neg ended June 30, 2005 that
did not meet the criteria for revenue recognitiosiich period. These errors resulted from a defigien the operation of controls
requiring the supervisory review of year-end revetransactions to ensure proper cutoff at year €ne.errors associated with these
transactions totaled approximately $1.4 million.

During the three months ended December 31, 20@batiditional material weaknesses were identifiefbbews:

1) Income Taxe—During the calculation of our tax provision, we didt correctly apply FASB Interpretation No. “ Accounting
for Income Taxes in Interim Periods,” which resdlte a material error in the tax provision for theee and six month periods ended
December 31, 2005. Additionally, we did not corkeepply FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting focéme Taxes,” with respect to
the three month period ended December 31, 200%if®adly, we did not provide for deferred tax lifitles in connection with the sale of
newly issued subsidiary stock.

2) Financial Reporting and Disclosure—Subsequetitegassuance of our unaudited consolidated firsrstatements for the six
months ended December 31, 2004, we determinedtinatonsolidated statement of cash flows for tRersinths ended December 31,
2004 incorrectly reflected cash lease incentives fisancing activity. The cash lease incentivesutthhave been classified as an
operating activity. We corrected this presentatiothe financial statements filed on Form 10-K tioe year ended June 30, 2005. Our
proposed statement of cash flows for the six moettted December 31, 2005, included a comparatersent of cash flows for the six
months ended December 31, 2004. In that propos¢ehsént of cash flows for the comparable prior-yesaiod, we failed to make a
correction to the classification of the cash leasentives. This presentation was corrected pddinalization of our Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended December 31, 2005. As presentedriR@m 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 20@5comparative statement of
cash flows for the six months ended December 304 20operly classified the cash lease incentivemagperating activity. Additionally,
our financial reporting and disclosure controléefdito detect that we had incorrectly classified$8illion of deferred rent, including the
liability recorded in conjunction with the cashdeancentive detailed above, and a portion of dederevenues as current liabilities in the
proposed December 31, 2005 consolidated balanes. Sftds presentation was corrected prior to thalization of our Form 1@ for the
quarter ended December 31, 2005. As presentedriRam 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 20€frred rent and a portion of
deferred revenues are presented as non-curreititikeb

We have undertaken measures to address eachmbtieeal weaknesses described above. However, tie®iTouche LLP has not
reviewed such measures.

In performing their audit of our financial statenefor the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 an8 264 in their reviews of interim
financial statements, Deloitte & Touche LLP alswiadd us of the following significant deficienciesits internal control over financial
reporting, which are described here as furthedassce. These significant deficiencies, taken iidiially or in combination, do not rise to the
level of material weakness.
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With the exception of the items identified withpest to the three months ended December 31, 2005awe undertaken measures to
address the items described below. However, Del&itTouche LLP has not reviewed such measures.

Significant Deficiencies identified for the fisogar ended June 30, 2005:

1) Review of Obsolete and Slow Moving Invent—At one subsidiary location, our process for idsyitiff and reviewing exce:
inventory was based on a system-generated comgytert that did not accurately calculate poterdialess inventory and lacked
supervisory review for the “formulaic” reasonablssef the report.

2) Review of Detail Job Cost Reports and Supporingumentatio—Our designed controls include the review of projebtcost
reports and supporting detail. Deloitte & TouchePLhoted a lack of documented evidence of certathede controls at two subsidiary
locations.

3) Goodwill Impairment Analys—Deloitte & Touche LLP noted that although we appiately concluded that further impairme
tests were not required, our reporting unit cagywalue computation did not properly take into ¢desation certain inter-company loan
balances which were long-term in nature, and acation of the net assets at one subsidiary latatio

4) Asset Impairment Analys—An assessment of certain impairment indicatorg)@leith the related conclusions, were
formally documented.

5) Pro Forma Stock-Based Compensation Calculatioftse-methodology we employed to calculate pro fostoak-based
compensation did not conform to generally acceptambunting principles with regard to the requirethtbat the recognition of
compensation over the service period equal to atsdbat, on a cumulative basis, are no less thapaintion of service provided during
the vesting period.

6) Performance of Reconciliations—At certain intgfonal subsidiaries, account reconciliations andew of account balances had
not been properly documented.

7) Application of U.S. Generally Accepted AccoumgtiRrinciples—Miscellaneous accounting errors werted at certain
international subsidiaries.

8) Revenue Recogniti—At one subsidiary location, the methodology we emet for revenue recognition with regard to mué-
element transactions did not conform to generaltyepted accounting principles.

9) Inventory and Cost of Sales; Accounts PayabteEpenses—Deloitte & Touche LLP noted that indhgregate, we had
inventory related controls which were not operagffgctively, and, in the aggregate, we had sevarabunts payable related controls
which were not operating effectively.

Significant Deficiencies for the three months en8egtember 30, 2005:

1) Financial Reporting and Disclos—In connection with the adoption of Statement Fin@n&ccounting Standards No. 123(f
“Share-Based Payments,” we excluded certain disobssrequired by Securities and Exchange Commisaffi Accounting Bulletin
Topic 14H. In addition, changes subsequent to #ientce sheet date in our debt structure were sotadied.

2) Financial Closing Process and Journal Entry &evi-An entry related to deferred taxes in the amofi®651,000 was not
reviewed in accordance with our stated policy sgbeat to posting to the general ledger, and they eveis mis-posted.

3) Accounts Payable and Expenses—There was an jrapooitoff related to certain expenses for which a ligyp#ihould have bee
recorded in the amount of approximately $65,000oite & Touche LLP noted and previously communéchsimilar errors as of June
30, 2005 and deemed such errors to represent ificagih deficiency in the aggregate at the corppainsolidated level. As such, Delo
& Touche LLP indicated its belief that the potehtiasstatement associated with this deficiency mase than inconsequential.
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4) Revenue Cut-off—There was an improper cut-dfitesl to revenue associated with a sale of demenitovy prior to the balance
sheet date. Revenue in the amount of approxim&&8y000 was not recorded. Deloitte & Touche LLRedand previously
communicated similar errors as of June 30, 2005d@eaned such errors to represent a significantidefty in the aggregate. As such,
Deloitte & Touche LLP indicated its belief that thetential misstatement associated with this detficy was more than inconsequential.

Significant Deficiencies for the three months enBed¢ember 31, 2005:

1) Goodwill Impairment Analysis—We did not have fatient documentation evidencing the basis for @ecision to perform the
impairment test at the segment level.

2) Revenue Recognition—There was an improper dutetdted to revenue associated with a sale of teaémce services. Revenue
in the amount of approximately $22,000 in the thremth period ended September 30, 2005 and $1H0be three month period ended
December 31, 2005 was not recorded. Deloitte & Tieud_P had noted and had previously communicatadeagi errors as of June 30,
2005 and September 30, 2005 and deemed such &rmesresent a significant deficiency in the aggtegAs such, Deloitte & Touche
LLP believed the potential misstatement associafétthis deficiency was more than inconsequential.

Except as described above, no reportable evertssasibed in paragraph (a)(1)(v) of Item 304 of Ratjon S-K occurred during the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 2005 andghrelarch 23, 2006. We requested that Deloitte &ChauLLP furnish us with a letter
addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commissiting whether or not it agrees with the aboa&estents. A copy of such letter, dated
March 29, 2006, was filed as Exhibit 16.1 to ourr€at Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2006.

On April 20, 2006, the Audit Committee of our BoarfdDirectors appointed Moss Adams LLP as our irhefent registered public
accounting firm for fiscal 2006. We did not conswith Moss Adams LLP during the years ended Jun€804 and 2005, and through April
20, 2006, on any matter which was the subject gfdisagreement or any reportable event as defim&kgulation S-K Item 304(a)(1)(iv) and
Regulation S-K Item 304(a)(1)(v), respectively oorthe application of accounting principles to adfied transaction, either completed or
proposed, or the type of audit opinion that mighténdered on our financial statements. Moss AddrRshas no financial interest in our
company and neither it nor any member or employékeofirm has had any connection with our compemthe capacity of promoter,
underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer angloyee.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2006, the end of the period covbsethis report, our management, including our CEieécutive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, reviewed and evaluated the dffeness of our disclosure controls and proced(asslefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedj Such disclosure controls and proceduresesigued to ensure that material
information we must disclose in this report is neleml, processed, summarized and filed or submitteal timely basis. Based upon that
evaluation, two material weaknesses were ident{tieth described below), and, as a result, our gemant, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our discims controls and procedures were not effectivef dsiime 30, 2006.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaiatheguate internal controls over financial repgrti@ur internal controls over financ
reporting include the policies and procedures pleatain to (a) the maintenance

55



Table of Contents

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurateti/fairly reflect the transactions and dispositiohsur assets; (b) the recording of transactions
as necessary to permit preparation of financiaéstants in accordance with generally accepted atitwuprinciples; (c) the making of recei
and expenditures only in accordance with authadratof our management and directors; and (d) teeemtion or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition oktsthat could have a material effect on the firerstatements. We recognize that because of
inherent limitations, internal controls over fingdaeporting may not prevent or detect misstateimefso, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject taidiethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with policies or procedures may deteat@rAccordingly, internal controls over finanadi@porting cannot provide absolute
assurance of achieving financial reporting objegiv

As of June 30, 2006, our management, with the @patiion of our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&ncial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting. This evaluation was based on the éwork in “Internal Control—Integrated
Framework” published by the Committee of Sponsofimganizations of the Treadway Commission. Thewatan included an assessment of
the design of our internal controls over financegorting and testing of the operational effectegnof our internal controls over financial
reporting. Our management, Chief Executive Offaed Chief Financial Officer reviewed the resultshdir evaluation with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors and determitiet as of June 30, 2006, there were material wessas in our internal controls over
financial reporting. As defined by the Public Comp#&ccounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard [8pa material weakness is a
significant control deficiency or a combinationsignificant control deficiencies that results iet& being more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimriizial statements will not be prevented or detedtetght of the material weaknesses, our
management, Chief Executive Officer and Chief FaianOfficer have concluded that, as of June 30@620ve did not maintain effective
internal controls over financial reporting. Mossahals LLP, an independent registered public accogriitim that audited the financial
statements included in this Annual Report, haseidsts attestation report on our management’s assad of our internal controls over
financial reporting, which appears on page 57 i rigport.

As a result of its assessment, management idehtfiie following control deficiencies that represeraterial weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, &00

1) In our testing of information technology contrabe determined that controls over systems charsgegement, progra
development, end-user computing, and systems aaoés®lated monitoring were inadequately desigmetlimplemented. In assessing
these control deficiencies, we determined thattheas an incomplete adoption of recognized indugtgdards resulting in the lack of a
comprehensive internal control framework over infation technology; we determined that there wask tf adequate oversight by
experienced managers knowledgeable and fully empagh the design and implementation of effectiw®imation technology controls;
we determined there was a lack of a comprehensai@ng program related to information technologyitrols supporting our internal
controls over financial reporting; and we deterrditigat the evaluation and testing of informatiochtelogy controls was insufficient a
was conducted by personnel who lacked the compegtegrded to fully evaluate this area.

2) In our overall testing of internal controls, determined that there was a weakness in the margtand oversight component
our control environment. We found that there waslifficient and inappropriate verification of therfpemance of certain review controls
and inadequacies in the documentation supportiosgticontrols. Although we did not identify an erirofinancial reporting as a result of
these observations, we determined that a mateeakmess in our monitoring and oversight controtsvigent. Therefore, we determined
that the design and operation of our control emritent did not sufficiently promote effective intahcontrol over financial reporting.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirng

As reported in Item 9A of our Annual Report on Fdt6-K for fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we deterchthat the following materi:
weaknesses in internal control over financial répgrexisted as of June 30, 2005:

1) We had identified certain computational errorsur annual income tax provision and related inedax receivable, payabl
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesigzal year 2005. These errors resulted fromfacigacy in the operation of controls
requiring the reconciliation of the components of mcome tax provision to appropriate supportieguimentation; and

2) We had identified certain transactions recoraedevenue by one of our Canadian subsidiaridsiperiod ended June 30, 2(
did not meet the criteria for revenue recognitiosiich period. These errors resulted from a defigien the operation of controls
requiring the supervisory review of year-end revetransactions related to ensure proper cutoféat gnd. The errors associated with
these transactions totaled approximately $1.4 onilln product sales revenue.

As reported in Item 4 of our Quarterly Report omd.0-Q for the three months ended December 315,200 determined that the
following material weaknesses in internal contre¢iofinancial reporting existed as of DecemberZ5:

1) During the calculation of our tax provision, diel not correctly apply FASB Interpretation No.“Accounting for Income Taxe
in Interim Periods,” which resulted in a materiedoe in the tax provision for the three and six rioperiods ended December 31, 2005.
Additionally, we did not correctly apply FASB Statent No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” witdspect to the thremonth perioc
ended December 31, 2005. Specifically, we did motide for deferred tax liabilities in connectiorithvthe sale of newly issued
subsidiary stock.

2) Subsequent to the issuance of our unauditedbtidated financial statements for the six monthdeshDecember 31, 2004, we
determined that our consolidated statement of flasls for the six months ended December 31, 20@drirctly reflected cash lease
incentives as a financing activity. The cash léasentives should have been classified as an dpgrattivity. We corrected this
presentation in the financial statements filedun Annual Report on Form 1R-for the year ended June 30, 2005. Our proposedraen
of cash flows for the six months ended DecembefB@5 included a comparative statement of cashsflimwvthe six months ended
December 31, 2004. In that proposed statementstf ffaws for the comparable prior-year period wieethto make a correction to the
classification of the cash lease incentives. Thés@ntation was corrected prior to finalizatioritef Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended December 31, 2005. As presemtibe iQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quasteted December 31, 2005, the
comparative statement of cash flows for the six tin@ended December 31, 2004 properly classifieddish lease incentives as opera
activity. Additionally, our financial reporting ardisclosure controls failed to detect that we hambirectly classified as current liabilities
$6.0 million of deferred rent, including the liabilrecorded in conjunction with the cash leasesimive detailed above, and a portion of
deferred revenues in the proposed December 31, @@¥olidated balance sheet. We corrected thigptatson prior to the finalization
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartetesl December 31, 2005. As presented in the QllaReport on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended December 31, 2005, deferred rend gidtion of deferred revenues are presented asunoant liabilities.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial io#fr determined that the weaknesses identified elagwf December 31, 2005,
occurred, in part, because we did not have adegeasonnel with adequate technical training coringrrelevant accounting principles and
associated financial reporting implications in jglac effectively assess and disclose the propenenting and reporting principles of significi
transactions concerning lease accounting and atioguior income taxes.
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We have made the following changes in our intecoalrol over financial reporting to remediate tlefidencies noted above. These
changes occurred during fiscal year 2006 and hignéfisantly strengthened our internal control ofieancial reporting:

Income Taxes:

We formalized tax account reconciliation and revigacedures and improved documentation standabdsselprocedures inclu
obtaining and reviewing, on a quarterly basis, @olgial tax account analysis from each operatingsslidory.

We added an additional tax accounting staff merahdrsupplemented our corporate tax departmentwitfftax consultants. The
additional employee and the consultants participatee preparation of our tax account analysisveithg our Tax Director to perfor
a higher level review of this documentatis

We engaged the services of an international pagéounting firm to assist in the preparation of aanual income tax calculations,
including assistance at selected internationalidigs&s. This, in combination with the foregoirgmediation effort, provides us with
significantly stronger technical tax accounting fsoip.

Revenue Recognition:

We refined pr-existing controls, including specific examinatidincastomer purchase orders and delivery documetdted tc
shipments near period-end, and now perform manageiene! reviews of revenue cut-off proceduresluding an inspection of
selected delivery documen

We supplemented training regarding our pre-existevgnue recognition policies and revenue cut-offtl procedures at the
Canadian subsidiary and at selected other intenmatsubsidiaries. In addition, we reinforced tke of a checklist control document
designed to address per-end cu-off procedures, including revenue recognitior-off procedures

We hired, at certain of our international subsi@igrfinancial controllers and accounting staffwgreater experience.
We hired an International Accounting Manager torege and train the accounting staff at certainuofimternational subsidiaries.

Financial Reporting:

We now provide additional training and supervisidrexisting personnel in the financial close angbréing process

We now subscribe to an on-line tax and accountisgarch database to provide more efficient andteféetax, accounting and
securities law research and compliance tools fertysour accounting and financial reporting persbr

We hired additional personnel who are qualified explerienced in corporate financial close and mappprocesses.

We refined our review processes over significant @musual transactions for proper accounting treatpincluding requiring a
additional layer of management revie

We have tested the operation of the above coratolarious times during fiscal year 2006 and fothain effective.

Subsequent to June 30, 2006, we have begun otptake the following actions to address the mateveaknesses in internal controls
over financial reporting identified as of June 3006 and described above.

We will evaluate the adequacy of our personnel seging information technology controls and theingstf those controls.
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*  We will provide additional training of our persomeerseeing information technology controls anel tisting of those control
*  We will enhance the information technology portafrinternal control framework to that of a recogrdzandustry standard.
» We will develop and implement a global informatieehnology strategic pla

*  We will implement enhanced information technologyigies and procedures specifically with regardsytstem’s change
management, program development,-user computing, and access controls and relatedtoniowg.

It will take time to put in place the rigorous canis and procedures desired by our managementwmBoard of Directors. We cannot at
this time estimate how long it will take to com@éhe steps identified above. Our management wiltinue to evaluate the effectiveness of
overall control environment and will continue tdime existing controls as they, in conjunction witie Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fine©fficer, think necessary.

Other than the remediation efforts discussed altbveee have been no changes in our internal coote financial reporting that
occurred since the beginning of fiscal year 2086l(ding during the fourth quarter of fiscal ye@08) that have materially affected or are
reasonably likely to materially affect our intermaintrol over financial reporting. Our managemeantiuding our Chief Executive Officer and
our Chief Financial Officer, have discussed theseés and remediation efforts in detail with theliBCommittee of our Board of Directors.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:
Hawthorne, California

We have audited management’s assessment, incloded accompanying Management’s Report on InteZoatrol Over Financial
Reporting, that OSI Systems, Inc. and subsidiafths,“Company”) did not maintain effective intelcantrol over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2006, because of the effect of the mateeiaknesses identified in management’s assesdmsat! on criteria establishediiernal
Control—Integrated Framewotiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and ftsrassessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on managemesssessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahdating the design and operating effectivenessitgirnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary girtuenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pars performing similar functions, and effected lhy tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statein accordance with generally accepted acaogiptiinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amrdtirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlanfial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the positl of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatbtected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

A material weakness is a significant deficiencycombination of significant deficiencies, that résin more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual orimténancial statements will not be prevented diedted. The following material weaknesses
have been identified and included in managemestsssment: (1) controls over change managemengtaonalevelopment, end-user
computing, and systems access and related momjteséne inadequately designed and implemented.desaig these control deficiencies,
management determined that there was an incomgadietietion of recognized industry standards resuitirte lack of a comprehensive intet
control framework over information technology; thdgtermined that there was a lack of adequate ig¥edsy experienced managers
knowledgeable and fully engaged with the designiamglementation of effective information technologgntrols; they determined there
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was a lack of a comprehensive training prograntedlto information technology controls supporting mternal controls over financial
reporting; and they determined that the evaluadioh testing of information technology controls wasufficient and was conducted by
personnel who lacked the competency needed to éujuate this area; and (2) management deternttis¢dhere was a weakness in the
monitoring and oversight component of the controlienment. They found that there was insufficiantl inappropriate verification of the
performance of certain review controls and inadetpsain the documentation supporting those contAsdsa result they determined a material
weakness existed in their monitoring and oversigintrols was evident. They determined that thegteand operation of their control
environment did not sufficiently promote effectivgernal control over financial reporting.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that tingp@oy did not maintain effective internal contrekofinancial reporting as of
June 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all materiapects, based on the criteria establishddternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ommission. Also in our opinion, because ofdffect of the material weaknesses
described above on the achievement of the objextifiéhe control criteria, the Company has not neéied effective internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2006, basederctiteria established Internal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements and financigkstant schedule as of and for the year ended Jur2086, of the Company and our report
dated September 20, 2006 expressed an unqualffiatbo on those financial statements and finarstiaiement schedule.

MOSS ADAMS LLI

Los Angeles, Californi

September 20, 2006

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&gtement relating to the 20
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2006.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&gtement relating to the 20
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2006.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEME NT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&gtement relating to the 20
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Stateneanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2006.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&gtement relating to the 20
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2006.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tgtement relating to the 2006
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2006.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(&) The following documents are filed as partri$ report:

1. Financial Statements Please see the accompanying Index to Consetiddnancial Statements, which appears on pagefr-1
the report. The Report of Independent Registerdaiéd®Accounting Firm, the Consolidated Financiagt®ments and the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements listed in theXid Consolidated Financial Statements, which appeginning on page F-2 of this
report, are incorporated by reference into ltenb@va.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

No other financial statement schedules are predexsi¢he required information is either not apfieaor included in th
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits. See Item 15(b) belo\

(b) Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the accompanying ExHitdlex immediately following the signature page filed as part of, or a
incorporated by reference into, this report.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules Reference is made to Item 15(a)(2) above.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of OSI Systems, Inc. and Subsidiarie$ &sne 30, 2006 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, sharehokelguity and cash flows for the year ended June2806. Our audit also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the inde8c¢hedule II. These financial statements and filgstatement schedule are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibilitg isxpress an opinion on these financial statemamddinancial statement schedule based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightiq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes exangnbn a test basis, evidence supporting the amantt disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accountingipt&s used and significant estimates made by neanagt, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatoidit provides a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements referrealove present fairly, in all material respedis,¢onsolidated financial position of OSI
Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 20@bthe consolidated results of its operationscasth flows for the year ended June 30,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles. Also, in our opinion, suchdircial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidatedritial statements taken as a whole, presentg, ferdll material respects, the information set
forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
effectiveness of OSI Systems, Inc. and Subsidiarnésnal control over financial reporting as aing 30, 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission, and our report
dated September 20, 2006 expressed an unqualifietbn on management’s assessment of the effe@sgeaf the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting and an adverse opinionteneffectiveness of the Company’s internal corakar financial reporting because of
material weaknesses.

MOSS ADAMS LLP
Los Angeles, California
September 20, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:
Hawthorne, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of OSI Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries'@bepany”)as of June 30, 20C
and the related consolidated statements of opestihareholders’ equity, and cash flows for ed¢heotwo years in the period ended June 30,
2005. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed in the index at Item 15. THemcial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’aagament. Our responsibility is to express an opioin these financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinaficial position of OSI Systems, Inc. i
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005, and the redlilts @perations and its cash flows for each oftthe years in the period ended June 30, 20(
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America. Also, in opinion, such financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the bamicolidated financial statements taken as a wipodsents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Los Angeles, California
September 28, 2005
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Marketable securities, availa-for-sale

Accounts receivable—net of allowance for doubtftd@unts of $4,682 and $2,996 at June 30, 2005 @06, :

respectively

Other receivable

Inventories

Income taxes receivab

Deferred income taxe

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current assets

Property and equipment, r
Goodwill

Intangible assets, n
Investment:

Deferred income taxe
Other asset

Total

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Bank lines of credi

Current portion of lon-term deb

Accounts payabl

Accrued payroll and related expen:

Deferred income taxe

Income taxes payab

Advances from custome

Accrued warrantie

Deferred revenu

Other accrued expenses and current liabil

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred ren
Accrued pensiol
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interest
Commitment and contingencies (Note

SHAREHOLDER?¢ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, no par va—authorized, 10,000,000 shares; no shares issumatstanding at June 30, 2005 ¢
2006
Common stock, no par value—authorized, 40,000,0@0es; issued and outstanding, 16,193,239 and 4,86D
shares at June 30, 2005 and 2006, respec!
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive inca

June 30,

2005 2006
$ 14,62: $ 13,79¢
81€ 10C
89,22 119,41¢
5,34k 9,701
107,44 120,60
5,51¢ 2,54¢
10,53 13,75:
4,16~ 3,80¢
283
237,67 724
30,97« 42,52
28,69 29,06¢
47,285 44,04¢
1,36¢ 1,78¢
10¢ 331
1,01¢ 2,021
$347,12( $403,49¢
$ 15,752 $ 10,85}
49¢ 1,251
41,12: 54,28:
13,38! 14,24+
2,191 2,18¢
1,60¢ 42t
2,56k 2,961
6,641 7,22¢
6,01¢ 9,31«
17,52 18,82«
107,29¢ 121,56¢
4,852 5,48:
5,46¢ 5,37¢
1,81¢ 2,28(
3,541 7,50¢
50¢ 2,60¢
123,49: 144,82(
— 9,731
169,40¢ 193,69¢
52,56¢ 50,20¢
1,65t 5,041




Total shareholde’ equity 223,62 248,94°

TOTAL $347,12(  $403,49¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#stents
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended June 30

2004

$ 247,06¢

2005

$ 385,04:

2006

$ 452,68t

REVENUES
COST OF GOODS SsOLlI 163,71. 243,41! 276,02!
GROSS PROFI 83,351 141,62t 176,66:
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative exper 54,16! 116,24! 138,42¢
Research and developmt 14,63¢ 30,531 35,83¢
Management retention bon 1,104 1,82¢ 623
Restructuring charge 1,061 — 80C
Total operating expens 70,96+ 148,60t 175,69(
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION: 12,39: (6,980 971
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Gain on sale of marketable securi 37€ — 34¢
Impairment of equity investmen (247) (182) —
Other income — — 47E
Interest incomt 863 19¢€ 267
Interest expens (283 (807) (1,559
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES AN
MINORITY INTEREST 13,10: (7,779 504
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXE! 3,31¢ (5,309 1,09(
MINORITY INTEREST 17C 69 1,772
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 9,95¢ $ (2,395 $ (2,35¢)
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic $ 0.6¢€ $ (0.15) $ (0.19
Diluted $ 0.6% $ (0.15) $ (0.17)
SHARES USED IN PER SHARE CALCULATION
Basic 14,733,70 16,222,99 16,516,65
Diluted 15,236,39 16,222,99 16,516,65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsents.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

Common
; Accumulated
Retainec Other
Number of Earnings Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shares Amount (Loss) Income (Loss) Income Total
BALANCE—June 30, 200 14,519,90 $135,88:- $ 45,00t $ (490 $ — $180,39¢
Exercise of stock optior 177,24« 1,23¢ — — — 1,23¢
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 907 — — — 907
Shares purchased under employee stock purchasepr 16,28: 217 — — — 217
Issuance of common stock and warrants under prplatemen 1,500,001 30,97¢ — — — 30,97¢
Adjustment for minority interes — 912 — — — 91z
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — 9,95¢ — 9,95¢ 9,95¢
Other comprehensive inco—translation adjustmel — — — 2,41¢ 2,41¢ 2,41¢
Unrealized loss on available for sale secu—net of tax — — — 564 564 564
Change in fair value of derivative instrume—net of tax — — — 64 64 64
Minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — (164) (164) (164)
Comprehensive incomnr $ 12,83¢
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,213,42 170,12¢ 54,96: 2,39: — 227,48
Exercise of stock optior 201,89¢ 1,49: — — — 1,49:
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 90= — — — 90t
Shares purchased under employee stock purchasepr 42,43¢ 701 — — — 701
Stock repurchased and retir (264,52) (3,82)) — — — (3,827)
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — (2,39 — $ (2,395 (2,39%)
Other comprehensive Ic—translation adjustmel — — — (660) (660) (660)
Unrealized gain on available for sale secur—net of tax — — — 10¢ 10¢ 10¢€
Minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — (185) (18%) (185)
Comprehensive los $ (3,139
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,193,23 169,40t 52,56¢ 1,65¢ — 223,62°
Exercise of stock optior 246,02! 1,652 — — — 1,65
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 13z — — — iLEE
Shares purchased under employee stock purchasepr 74,25( 1,22¢ — — — 1,22¢
Exercise of stock warran 84,847 1,27: — — — 1,27:
Stock buy back of subsidia — (2C) — — — (10)
Stock compensation exper — 5,35¢ — — — 5,35¢
Issuance of subsidiary sto — 18,71* — — — 18,71
Deferred tax on issuance of subsidiary st — (4,059 — — — (4,054
Comprehensive Incom — — — —
Net loss — — (2,35¢) — (2,35¢) (2,35¢)
Other comprehensive inco—translation adjustmel — — — 3,352 3,352 3,352
Reclassification of unrealized gain on availablesale
securitie—net of tax — — — (10¢) (10€) (10¢)
Minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — 14z 142 14z
Comprehensive incorr $ 1,02¢
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,598,36 $193,69¢ $ 50,20¢ $ 5,041 $248,94°
I

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stock based compensation expe
Impairment of equity investmen
Provision for losses on accounts receiv:
Gain on sale of marketable securit
Minority interest in net income (loss) of subsigi:
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated iaffis
Tax effect of stock option bene
Deferred income taxe
Restructuring charge
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equiprn
Changes in operating assets and liabi—net of business acquisitio
Accounts receivabl
Other receivable
Inventories
Income taxes receivab
Prepaid expense
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related expen
Income taxes payab
Advances from custome
Accrued warrantie
Deferred revenu
Other current and lor-term liabilities

Net cash used in operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of investments and markesauluritie:
Purchases of investments and marketable sect
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipr
Acquisition of property and equipme
Acquisition of business—net of cash acquire
Proceeds from sale of minority inter:
Intangible and other asst

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds (payments) from bank lines of ct
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Payments on lor-term debt
Payments on capital lease obligatit
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warramiseanployee stock purchase p
Purchase of treasury sto
Proceeds from issuance of subsidiary s
Proceeds from private placem

Net cash provided by financing activiti
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CAS

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS¢—Beginning of yea

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of yeal

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIO
Cash paid (received) during the year -
Interest
Income taxe:
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON CASH INVESTING ACTIVIES
Equipment purchased under capital lease obliga
Capital expenditure in accounts paya
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Years Ended June 30

2004 2005 2006
$ 9,95¢ $ (2,395 $ (2,35¢)
5,70¢ 10,63¢ 14,19(
= — 5,35¢
247 182 —
287 4,00¢ 2,79:
(376) — (349)
(270) (69) 1,771
102 (219) (432)
907 90E 133
(1,450 (3,369) (3,709
1,061 — 80C
40 (12) 18¢
(16,629 (5,459 (31,674
(4,559 2,12¢ (4,269
(15,117 (8,635) (13,687
4 (5,487 3,10¢
(1,03%) (379) 34z
11,11 4,83¢ 9,07¢
2,342 327 647
(210) (1,48) (1,199
3,46¢ (9,600 397
(1,339 (2,999 497
(4,287) 3,64¢ 3,207
(509) 564 2,96¢
(10,415 (12,859 (12,197
5,25€ — 921
— = (719)

8 58 43
(5,409 (16,829 (16,020
(77,517 (11,450 (311)
2,00¢ — 18¢
27 (1,409 (430)
(75,622 (29,617 (16,329
715 14,99: (4,92¢)
= 4,74C 2,00¢
(2,639 (1,799 (482)
= (260) (299)
1,45( 2,19z 4,15;
= (3,829) —
— — 26,28(
30,97¢ — =
30,50; 16,04¢ 26,73:
1,165 1,17¢ 95€
(54,367 (25,256 (822
94,24¢ 39,87¢ 14,62
| | |
$ 39,87¢ $ 14,62¢ $13,79¢
$ (587) $ 59t $ 1,43¢
$ 3,77¢ $ 3,79¢ $ 3,00¢
— $ 73C —
— — $ 2,53(
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
Acquisition of OSI Defense Systems, LLC

In August 2003, the Company acquired certain agsptesenting the military las-based training business of Schwartz Ele-Optics for
approximately $3.7 million, including acquisitionsts. The acquisition was made through a newly éokrholly-owned subsidiary, OSI
Defense Systems, LLC (“OSI Defense”). The followtagle shows the allocation of the purchase piitéhpusands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $ 102
Goodwill 3,157
Customer relationshir 44%
Liabilities assume: (43

Total $3,661

Acquisition of OSI Electronics, Inc.

In October 2003, the Company acquired the assetsyanufacturing services company specializingiifase mount technology lines and PC
board assembly operations for approximately $41bamiincluding acquisition costs. The acquisitimas made through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, OSI Electronics, Inc. (“OSI Electrorijcd he following table shows the allocation of therchase price (in thousands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $ 5,48:
Customer relationshiy 40
Liabilities assume: (1,050

Total $4,47:

Acquisition of OSI Laserscan

In November 2003, the Company acquired substan@dliiof the assets of Schwartz Electro-Optics bmakruptcy court supervised auction for
approximately $1.6 million including acquisitionsts. The business operates under the name OSlscaseiThe following table shows the
allocation of the purchase price (in thousands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $ 67€
Goodwill 411
Developed technolog 30C
Customer relationshiy 25C
Liabilities assumei (37)

Total $1,60(
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
Acquisition of J&D Engineering through Rapiscan Searity Products Limited
In December 2003, the Company acquired substanllbf the assets of J&D Engineering (UK) Limité*J&D Engineerin”) for
approximately £460,000 (or approximately $0.8 milli including acquisition costs.

The acquisition was made through a wholly ownedslidry, Rapiscan Security Products Ltd. (sincaneed Rapiscan Systems Limited)
(“Rapiscan UK"). The following table shows the al&ion of the purchase price (in thousands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $43E
Goodwill 38t
Total $82(

Acquisition of the remainder of RapiTec, Inc.

In January 2004, minority shareholders of RapiTec, (‘RapiTe(’) accepted an offer by the Company to purchase afestof RapiTe
common stock held by them. As a result of the tratisn, the Company now wholly owns RapiTec. Coasition paid for the share purchase
transaction consisted of an initial cash paymertpgiroximately $820,000, of which $536,000 wascalted to goodwill, and a second cash
payment of approximately $279,000 paid in fiscalry2005, which has also been recorded as goodwill.

Acquisition of Advanced Research & Applications Cop.

In January 2004, the Company completed the acoprisif all of the outstanding capital stock of Adead Research & Applications Co
(“ARACOR") (since renamed Rapiscan Systems Highrgpnénspection Corporation), a privately held comp#cated in Sunnyvale,
California. Consideration for the acquisition cated of an initial cash payment of approximately .$Imillion (net of cash acquired),
including acquisition costs. Furthermore, during seven years following the close, contingent amrsition is payable based on ARACOR'’s
net revenues, provided certain requirements are Thetcontingent consideration is capped at $30amilAs of June 30, 2006, no earn out
payments have been earned or paid. The followiblg tshows the allocation of the purchase pricéh@usands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $ 2,50¢
Goodwill 8,30z
Developed technolog 14,30(
Customer relationshir 70C
Liabilities assume: (2,176
Deferred taxe (6,037%)

Total $17,60:

Intangible assets acquired have the following wieigkaverage useful lives: Developed Technology—e4&ry, Customer Relationships—5
years.

F-9



Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Acquisition of Spacelabs Medical, Inc.

In March 2004, the Company completed the acquisitibcertain assets and liabilities of Spacelabdibtd, Inc. “ Spacelabs Medic”) from
Instrumentarium Corporation, now a subsidiary oh&al Electric Company, for approximately $47.9limil in cash (net of cash acquired),
including acquisition costs (see Note 3).

The following table shows the allocation of the ghase price (in thousands):

Current assets (net of ca $ 65,66
Fixed asset 1,80¢
Developed technolog 5,66(
Tradename 5,92t
Customer relationships/backls 3,28(
Other lon¢-term asset 2,11t

Total asset 84,45
Current liabilities (36,529
Total $ 47,92¢

Intangible assets acquired have the following udefes: Developed Technology—10 years; Customdattmnships/Backlog—10 years.
Acquired intangible assets include amounts assitméédenames that are not subject to amortization

Acquisition of CXR Limited

In August 2002, the Company purchased a minorigrést in CXR Limited“CXR"), a United Kingdom based research and develop
company that develops products able to generadg ¥arages of fast moving objects. In June 2004Qbmpany invested an additional
$810,000 in CXR. The Company further purchasedeshiaeld by third parties for a total of $550,000which $75,000 was allocated to
goodwill and $475,000 was allocated to amortizatfengible assets. With these additional investsighe Company increased its equity
investment in CXR to approximately 75%. In Decem®@d4, the Company purchased the remaining 25%efiteAs compensation to the
selling shareholders for this remaining interdst, Company has agreed, for a period of 18 yearaat@ royalty payments based on sales of
CXR’s products.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Acquisition of Blease Medical Holdings Limited

In February 2005, the Company completed the adgunisof all of the outstanding capital stock of 8se Medical Holdings Limitec“Bleas(’)
for approximately $9.3 million in cash (net of castyuired), including acquisition costs. The detaation of purchase price in connection v
the acquisition cost was finalized in fiscal ye@08. This resulted in no change from the prelimjredlocation done in fiscal year 2005.
Furthermore, during the three years following tlese, contingent consideration is payable baseBlease’s net revenues, provided certain
requirements are met. The contingent consideradicapped at £6.25 million (approximately $11.6lionl as of June 30, 2006). The following
table shows the allocation of the purchase pricgh@usands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $ 6,134
Goodwill 4,25(
Customer relationshir 75C
Tradename 1,20
Developed technolog 2,50(C
In-process research and developn 30C
Liabilities assume: (4,96%)
Net deferred income tax (887)

Total $9,27¢

Acquired in-process research and development wargietl to expense as of the acquisition date inrdaoce with FASB Interpretation No. 4,
“Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 to BusinegSembinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method.”

The Blease acquisition resulted in the recognitibgoodwill, which the Company believes is primgaltributable to projected operating
synergies of the combined businesses includingiutiyj Spacelabs Medical’s distribution channels erplanding the Company’s portfolio of
products into additional areas of hospitals.

Intangible assets acquired have the following udefes: Developed Technology—10 years; Customdattmships—7 years. Acquired
intangible assets include amounts assigned to tradees that are not subject to amortization.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financistents.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General—OSI Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries is a velyitategrated, worldwide provider of security aimdpection systems, medic
monitoring and anesthesia systems, and optoeléctienices and value-added subsystems.

The Company designs, manufactures and marketsityeand inspection systems worldwide to end usedeuthe “Rapiscan Systems”
brand name. Rapiscan Systems products are usesipect baggage, cargo, people, vehicles and otects for weapons, explosives, drugs
and other contraband. These systems are also aistitefverification of cargo manifests for the mse of assessing duties and monitoring the
export and import of controlled materials.

The Company’s medical monitoring and anesthesigesysbusinesses design, manufacture and markeptioeucts worldwide to end
users under several brand names. The Company’satedonitoring systems, network and connectivitiyBons, ambulatory blood pressure
monitors and related services are sold under thac¢&abs Medical” brand name. The Company'’s ansistisgstems and components are sold
primarily under the “Blease” brand name. The Comyfmarterial hemoglobin saturation monitors andsses, including hantteld and wireles
monitoring tools, are sold primarily under the “Pbin” brand name and its peripheral bone densiteraetnd ultrasound bone sonometers are
sold under the “Osteometer” brand name.

The Company'’s optoelectronic devices and value-@dddésystems are used in a broad range of apphlsatincluding aerospace and
defense electronics, security and inspection systemedical diagnostics, fiber optics, telecommutiics, gaming, office automation, compt
peripherals and industrial automation. The Compesigns and manufactures optoelectronic devicevaune-added subsystems worldwide
for others through original equipment manufactameangements, as well as for its security and na¢e@iguipment businesses.

Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements includeatt@unts of OSI Systems, Inc. and its subsidiafi#significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have beaimated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confbriwith accounting principles generally acceptedtie United
States of America requires management to make a&stihand assumptions that affect the reported aimofiassets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the financial statements and the redamounts of revenues and expenses durir
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

Restatement—The Company determined that it incorrectly clasdifipproximately $6.0 million of deferred rentateld liabilities,
including the cash lease incentive, and a portiosteterred revenues, as current liabilities ircitesolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2005.
Although the Company does not believe that thesgsdication errors are material, it has corretedclassification and has restated the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as ofayrN05 for purposes of comparison.

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have been made to ydar amounts to conform to the current year’s priadgion.

Cash Equivalents—The Company considers all highly liquid investngeptirchased with maturities of three months or desaf the
acquisition date, to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities—Marketable securities consist of equity securitiagegorized as available-for-sale and carriediatvflue.
Unrealized holding gains and losses on marketaaergies are included in accumulated other comgmeive income until realized. Fair value
of marketable securities is determined by the qliotarket prices of each marketable security. Fopgaes of determining gross realized gains
and losses, the cost of the securities sold isthagen specific identification.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Net realized gains on sales of available-for-sataigties amounted to $0.4 million, $0.0 milliomds$0.3 million for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The allowance for doubtful accounts involves eates based on management’s judgment, review o
individual receivables and analysis of historicadl lebts. The Company adjusts customer creditdib@sed upon each customer’s payment
history and current credit worthiness, as deterthinecredit information available at that time. T®empany continuously monitors collectic
and payments from its customers and maintains atoes for doubtful accounts for estimated lossadting from the inability of its
customers to make required payments. If the firmzindition of the Company’s customers were tedetate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowesenay be required.

Inventory —Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or markist is determined on the first-in, first-out med. The Company writes
down inventory for slow-moving and obsolete inveptbased on assessments of future demands, mar@itions and customers who may be
experiencing financial difficulties. If these facdaare less favorable than those projected, additioventory write-downs may be required.

Property and Equipmernt—Property and equipment are stated at cost lesgradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiaiod
amortization are computed using the straight-ling accelerated methods over the estimated useéd tf the assets. Amortization of
leasehold improvements is calculated on the strdigh basis over the shorter of the useful lifdled asset or the lease term.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets-The Company reviews lonig+ed assets for impairment whenever events or gésim circumstanc
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset nwybe recoverable. If the sum of the expectedéutash flows, undiscounted and without
interest charges is less than the carrying amduthiecasset, the Company recognizes an impairnogstidased on the estimated fair value o
asset.

Income Taxes—Deferred income taxes are provided for tempor#fgrgnces between the financial statement andnrectax basis of
the Company’s assets and liabilities, based onteddax rates. A valuation allowance is providecwit is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred income tax assetswait be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Company'’s financial instruments consist prilgasf cash, marketable securities, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and debt instrum€&htscarrying values of financial instruments, ottien debt instruments, are representative
of their fair values due to their short-term matias. The carrying values of the Company’s longrtelebt instruments are considered to
approximate their fair values because the intesss of these instruments are variable or compatalzurrent rates offered to the Company.

Derivative Instruments—The Company may, from time to time, purchase fpreixchange contracts, in order to attempt to reduc
foreign exchange transaction gains and lossesjter mto interest rate swaps. As of June 30, 28@6Company had a $25.4 million foreign
currency forward contract outstanding to buy Bhitiunds in anticipation of the Del Mar Reynoldgusition. Transaction gains during the
year ended June 30, 2006 included a $0.5 million gdated to this contract. In July 2006, the Dlelr Reynolds acquisition was comple!
and the foreign currency forward contract setttedulting in a fiscal year 2007 loss of $0.1 millieelated to this contract.

Restructuring charges—The Company periodically consolidates processddailities of its subsidiaries. The Company retsothe
associated charges as restructuring charges arulatak them in the consolidated
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financial statements in accordance with SFAS Nd, T¥npairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets"daBFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Exit or Disposal Activities.” In fiscal year 2008he Company consolidated manufacturing processt$aailities of certain businesses within
each of the Security and Optoelectronics and Matufang divisions. These consolidations resulted pre-tax restructuring charge of $0.8
million, consisting primarily of: (i) lease obligah charges of $0.6 million, (ii) a property andigament write-off of $0.1 million and

(ii) severance and other expenses of $0.1 millioriiscal year 2004, the Company consolidated rfeasturing processes and facilities of
certain businesses of the Healthcare and Optoetectr and Manufacturing divisions. These consalitat resulted in a pre-tax charge of $1.1
million, consisting primarily of write-offs of egpiment and leasehold improvements of $1.0 milliat there retired during the period.

Revenue Recognitior~The Company recognizes revenue upon shipmentoolfugts when title and risk of loss passes, and wérens
are fixed and collection is probable. In accordanith the terms of Staff Accounting Bulletin No.4,0'Revenue Recognition,” and Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, “Revékxuangements with Multiple Deliverables,” wheretatation services, if provided, are
essential to the functionality of the equipmeng plortion of revenue for the sale attributablentiallation is deferred and recognized when the
installation service is provided. In an instancesrehterms of sale include subjective customer daoep criteria, revenue is deferred until the
acceptance criteria are met. Concurrent with thgnsént of the product, the Company accrues estunateduct return reserves and warranty
expenses. Critical judgments made by managemeaieceto revenue recognition include the deternomatif whether or not customer
acceptance criteria are perfunctory or inconsedaleihe determination of whether or not the custoarceptance terms are perfunctory or
inconsequential impacts the amount and timing vémnee recognized. Critical judgments also inclustereates of warranty reserves, which are
established based on historical experience and leuige of the product.

The Company undertakes projects that include tBggdedevelopment and manufacture or fabricatiolagfe complex cargo and vehicle
inspection systems that are specially customizexdistomer’s specifications or that involve fixetesionstruction. Sales under such contracts
are recorded under the percentage-of-completiohadeh accordance with Statement of Position Nel8Accounting for Performance of
Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Caxtt.” Costs and estimated revenues are recordedrgs performed based on the
percentage that incurred costs bear to estimatatidmsts utilizing the most recent estimates stsdf the current contract estimate indicates a
loss, provision is made for the total anticipatesslin the current period. Critical estimates madeanagement related to revenue recognition
under the percentage-of-completion method inclhéeestimation of costs at completion and the detetion of the overall margin rate on the
specific project.

Revenues from separate service maintenance cantrectecognized ratably over the term of the ageess. For other services, service
revenues are recognized as the services are pedoDeferred revenue for services arises from agbvpayments received from customers for
services not yet performed.

Freight —The Company records billed shipping and handleesfas revenue and associated costs as cost f gadd

Research and Development CostsResearch and development costs are those coatisd¢b the development of a new product, process
or service, or significant improvement to an exigtproduct, process or service. Such costs argetido operations as incurred. Grants for
research and development are recorded as revetive freriod earned, and the related costs arefidasis cost of goods sold.
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Stock-Based Compensatier-On July 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statemehinaincial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123(®hich requires that it measure and recognizmpensation expense for all share-
based payment awards made to employees and dggeictduding employee stock options and employeekspurchases under employee stock
purchase plans, based on estimated fair values.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Comaomsssued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SABTL) relating to SFAS 123
(R). The Company has applied the provisions of 8B in the adoption of SFAS 123(R) and adopted SE2ZRR) using the modified
prospective transition method, which requires thliaation of the accounting standard as of JulQD5, the first day of the current fiscal
year. Prior to July 1, 2005, the Company applieddAmting Principles Board Opinion No. Z‘Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (“APB 25”). The consolidated financitdtements as of and for the year ended June 36, 28flect the impact of SFAS 123(R).
In accordance with the modified prospective tramsitnethod, the Company has not restated its cinlzget financial statements for prior
periods to reflect, and they do not include, thpant of SFAS 123(R).

SFAS 123(R) requires companies to estimate thevédire of share-based payment awards on the dgteuof using an option-pricing
model. The value of the portion of the award tkatltimately expected to vest is recognized as res@ever the requisite service periods in
the consolidated statement of operations. Pritinecadoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company accoufttegtock-based compensation using the
intrinsic value method prescribed in APB 25, arldtesl interpretations and chose to adopt the discésonly provisions of SFAS 123, as
amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-BaS€empensation—Transition and Disclosure—an amentofd~ASB Statement
No. 127 (“SFAS 148"). Under this approach, the Comparsctiised the cost of stock option grants and dissooffiered under our employee
stock purchase plan, based on the vesting prowsibthe individual grants, but did not chargeiekpense.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized dhengeriod is based on the value of the portioshafrebased payment awards tha
ultimately expected to vest during the period. 8tbased compensation expense recognized in thelkdeted statement of operations for the
year ended June 30, 2006 included compensatiomsgger shar-based payment awards granted prior to, but notgsted as of, June 30,
2005, based on the grant date fair value estiniatadcordance with the pro forma provisions of SR£3 and compensation expense for the
share-based payment awards granted subsequemet®0Ju2005 based on the grant date fair valumattd in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) requires forfeiturepeécestimated at the time of grant and revisetkdessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. In the foona information required under SFAS 123 for pleeiods prior to fiscal year
2006, forfeitures were accounted for as they oeclrr

Concentrations of Credit Risk—-The Company’s financial instruments that are egdde concentrations of credit risk consist prityari
of its cash, cash equivalents, available-for-saestments and accounts receivable. The Compatrictesnvestments in cash equivalents to
financial institutions with high credit standingt 2une 30, 2005, approximately 53% of the Compacgsh equivalents were held at two
financial institutions. At June 30, 2006, approxieta 56% of the Company’s cash equivalents werd hetwo financial institutions. Credit
risk on accounts receivable is minimized as a tedithe large and diverse nature of the Compamydrldwide customer base. No one custc
accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivabtevenues as of June 30, 2005 or 2006. The Coymeiorms ongoing credit evaluatic
of its customers’ financial condition and maintaail®wances for potential credit losses. In additithne silicon-based optoelectronic devices
manufactured by the Company that serve as a driticaponent in most of the Company’s subsystenesparchased primarily from one
vendor. For cost, control and efficiency reasons,@ompany generally
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purchases raw materials and subcomponents frongkesiendor though they generally qualify secongtees for most of their raw materials
and critical components or have identified alteersdurces of supply.

Foreign Currency Translation—The accounts of the Company’s operations in Can@gparus, China, Hong Kong, India, Malaysia,
Norway, Singapore and the United Kingdom are maiethin Canadian dollars, Cypriot pounds, Chinasgny Hong Kong dollars, Indie
rupees, Malaysian ringgits, Norwegian kroners aril. [gounds, respectively. The accounts of the Camiseoperations in Austria, Finland,
France, Germany, Italy and Greece are maintainedrios. Foreign currency financial statementsrarestated into U.S. dollars at fiscal year
end rates, with the exception of revenues, costeapenses, which are translated at average rategydhe reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from foreign currency transactions a@uded in income, while those resulting from tratisin of financial statements are excluded
from income and included as a component of accuenlether comprehensive income. Transaction lossegproximately $0.4 million, $0.2
million and $1.8 million, were included in the colidated statement of operations for the fiscaryemded June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively.

Earnings (Loss) per Share— Basic earnings per share is computed by dividieigincome available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstguddiring the period. Diluted earnings per shaisputed by dividing net income
available to common shareholders by the sum ofvighted average number of common and dilutiverg@bcommon shares outstanding.
Potential common shares consist of the shareshiksupon the exercise of stock options or warrantier the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share for the figeals ended June 30 (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Three years ended June 30,

2004 2005 2006
Net income (loss $ 9,95¢ $ (2,39%) $ (2,35%)
Effect of dilutive interest in subsidiary sto — (207 (380)
Income (loss) available to common sharehols $ 9,95¢ $ (2,507 $ (2,739
Weighted average shares outstan—basic 14,733,70 16,222,99 16,516,65
Dilutive effect of stock options and warral 502,69¢ — —
Weighted average of shares outstan—diluted 15,236,39 16,22239‘ 16,516,65
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 0.6¢ $ (0.1%) $ (0.19
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ 0.6t $ (0.1%) $ (0.17)

As of June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006, 1,314,863937@% and 3,018,428, respectively, of potentiallytive shares associated with stock
options and stock warrants, collectively, wereinotluded in diluted earnings per common share ¢aticins because to do so would have been
antidilutive.

Spacelabs Healthcare Public Offering

In October 2005, Spacelabs Healthcare, a recemttyefd subsidiary comprising the business operatibtise Compar’s entire

Healthcare division, completed an initial publidesing of approximately 20% of its total
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issued and outstanding common stock. The newle&S8pacelabs Healthcare shares trade under tlee sighabol “SLAB” on the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM), a market administered bg t ondon Stock Exchange. The newly issued shagarbtrading on the AIM on
October 31, 2005. The shares in Spacelabs Headtlicar are now trading on AIM were not offeredhie tUnited States. Under rules and
regulations promulgated by the Securities and BxgbaCommission, U.S. Persons (as such term isaetbfinRegulation S promulgated under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) were pitalitfrom participating in this offering.

As a result of the initial public offering, the Cpany recorded minority interest in Spacelabs Health of $7.6 million, representing
approximately 20% of the issued and outstandingeshia Spacelabs Healthcare. The Company treageiditral public offering as a capital
transaction in accordance with SAB 51. The placagylted in $26.3 million in proceeds, net of exqeEn

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets-SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assétequires testing goodwill for
impairment on an annual basis and on an interirislife@n event occurs or circumstances changentlagtreduce the fair value of a reporting
unit below its carrying value. The Company perfodnts annual impairment test during the secondtquaf fiscal years 2004, 2005 and 2006
and concluded that there was no impairment of gabfiw the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 2808 2006.

Provision for Warranties—The Company offers its customers warranties ont m@slucts sold to them. These warranties typically
provide for repairs and maintenance for a specitiiee period. Concurrent with the sale of produatprovision for estimated warranty
expenses is recorded with a corresponding incrieasest of goods sold. This provision is adjustedqdically based on historical and
anticipated experience. Actual expenses of repaider warranty, including parts and labor are obditg this provision when incurred.

Provision for
Warranties
(in thousands

Balance on June 30, 20 $ 2,782
Additions 2,71¢
Increase as a result of acquisitic 7,71¢
Reductions for warranty repair co: (4,029
Balance on June 30, 20 9,19(
Additions 5,55¢
Increase as a result of acquisitic 464
Revisions to prior estimatt (2,14¢
Reductions for warranty repair co: (6,429
Balance on June 30, 20 6,641
Additions 6,60¢
Increase as a result of acquisitic —

Reductions for warranty repair co: (6,026
Balance on June 30, 20 $ 7,22¢

New Accounting Pronouncements-ta March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 4&ccounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligas,
an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143" (“FIR). This Interpretation clarifies that a condital retirement obligation refers to a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement actiirityvhich the timing and/or method of settlement@veditional on a future event that may or
may not be within
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the control of the entity. The obligation to perfothe asset retirement activity is unconditionarethough uncertainty exists about the timing
and/or method of settlement. Accordingly, an eriityequired to recognize a liability for the failue of a conditional asset retirement
obligation if the fair value of the liability carelreasonably estimated. The liability should begeized when incurred, generally upon
acquisition, construction or development of theeadsIN 47 is effective no later than the end stéil years ending after December 15, 2005.
The adoption of FIN 47 had no impact on the Comfsafigancial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FASB Statement No, 1Adcounting Changes and Error Corrections, aae@mnent of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement N¢’ (“SFAS No. 154”). Previously, APB Opinion No. 20Accounting Changes” and FASB Statement No. 3,
“Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Finan@thtements” required the inclusion of the cumukgfect of changes in accounting
principle in net income of the period of the chan§EAS No. 154 requires companies to recognizeaagin accounting principle, including
change required by a new accounting pronouncemiean\the pronouncement does not include specifisitian provisions retrospectively to
prior period financial statements. SFAS 154 isa@ffe for accounting changes and corrections afremimade in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. The Company has not yet detethtire impact this interpretation will have on oansolidated financial statements.

In June 2005, the FASB issued an exposure draftppbposed standard entitled “Business Combinati@neeplacement of FASB
Statement No. 141.” The proposed standard, if aghptould provide new guidance for evaluating awbrding business combinations and
would be effective on a prospective basis for bessncombinations whose acquisition dates are aftarJanuary 1, 2007. Upon issuance of a
final standard, which is expected to occur in cdéer2006, the Company will evaluate the impachaf hew standard and its effect on the
process for recording business combinations.

In September 2005, the FASB ratified Emerging Issteesk Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-13, “AccountingParchases and Sales of
Inventory with the Same Counterparty” (“EITF 04-L3EITF 04-13 provides guidance on whether two orerinventory purchase and sales
transactions with the same counterparty shoulddsed as a single exchange transaction within ¢bpe of APB No. 29, “Accounting for
NonmonetanTransactions.” In addition, EITF 04-13 indicatesetifer nonmonetary exchanges of inventory withinsgn@e line of business
should be recognized at cost or fair value. EITFLB4vas effective as of April 1, 2006. There hasrbro impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatian M8, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxeEhis Interpretation clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes geized in the financial statements in accordandb WASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” This Interpretation is effectfee fiscal years beginning after December 15, 200 Company has not yet determined the
impact that this interpretation will have on then@many’s consolidated financial statements.

2. JOINT VENTURES AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS

In January 1994, the Company, together with anlate@ company, formed EC-Rapiscan Security Products Limited, a joint ven
organized under the laws of India. The CompanyQbmpanys chairman and chief executive officer, along veittother director and officer
the Company have a 36%, 10.5% and 4.5% ownerstapest, respectively, in the joint venture. The @any’s initial investment was
$108,000. The Company and its directors and officetlectively control less than 50% voting powéthe board of directors in the joint
venture. As a result, the Company accounts foirthestment under the equity method of accountirg jbint venture was formed for the
purpose of manufacturing, assembling, servicingtasting x-ray
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inspection systems and other products. Some dtémepany’s subsidiaries are suppliers to the joémiture partner. The joint venture partner
utilizes the technology purchased from the Compasybsidiaries to manufacture products which aiktsahe joint venture. Sales to the joint
venture partner by subsidiaries of the Companyndutfie fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 2005 @@ &ere approximately $0.7 million,
$0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

In August 2002, the Company invested $775,000 tolmse a minority equity interest in CXR, a UK-lshsesearch and development
company that develops real time tomography systé&imsinvestment was accounted for under the equéthod of accounting. As a result of
adopting FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidatmfrivariable Interest Entities,” the Company begansolidating this investment during
fiscal year 2004. In June 2004, the Company indeateadditional $810,000 in CXR. The Company latechased shares held by third parties
for a total of $550,000 and thereby increaseditsrést in CXR to 75%. In December 2004, the Compaquired the remaining 25% interest.
As compensation to the selling shareholders faramaining interest, the Company agreed, for mgef 18 years, to make royalty payments
based on sales of CXR'’s products. There were nlo sales during the fiscal years ended June 30, 802606. As a result of this transaction,
CXR is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

In July 2002, the Company purchased from Imagihmelogies, Inc. (“Imagis”},166,667 shares of its common stock (approximaied
of its then-outstanding stock), 2-year warrantpuochase 291,667 additional shares of Imagis constark (approximately 1.5% of its then-
outstanding stock) at a price of $1.50 per shadecantain ancillary rights, for an aggregate pusehgrice of $1.75 million. Imagis develops
facial recognition software for security applicatso The investment is classified as available-fde-and as a result of the long term nature of
this investment, is included in other assets inattompanying consolidated financial statementsthfiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and
2004, based on the continued trading of Imagis comstock below the original purchase price for@grged period of time, other than
temporary impairments in the carrying value of thigestment totaling $1,433,000 and $247,000, respdy (pre-tax), were recognized.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 2002866, the Company’s equity in the earnings (losséf)e ECIL-Rapiscan Security
Products joint venture amounted to approximate®/i¥pmillion, $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respgaely, and is included in selling, general
and administrative expenses.

In connection with the acquisition of Spacelabs Maldsee Note 3), the Company acquired 19.95%@®idsued and outstanding shares
of Tempus Software, Inc., a privately-held compéifempus”). In June 2004, QuadraMed Corp., a putdimpany (“QuadraMed”purchase
all of the issued and outstanding shares of Termpwescchange for the Tempus shares, the Compaeyet $902,000 in cash as well as
restricted shares in QuadraMed. The Company atssved an additional $115,000 in cash and appraeiyn®1,000 additional unregistered
shares in QuadraMed, both of which were placedéstyow pending the resolution of certain purchagee adjustments.

In fiscal year 2005, the fair value of the Compan@uadraMed shares had decreased based on the prac&eof QuadraMed'’s shares
that were publicly traded. In accordance with SF¥& 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Dahd Equity Securities” (“SFAS 11§”
the Company concluded that an other-than-tempataciine in the value of its QuadraMed shares hadmed and recorded a write down of
$182,000 in its consolidated statements of oparatids of June 30, 2005, the market price of QUéddrhs shares had recovered and the
Company determined that the value of its Quadradtedes had risen by $154,000, which representsritealized gains subsequent to the
write down of such investment at March 31, 2005adnordance with SFAS 115, this recovery has beesrded as a component of other
comprehensive income.
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The Company sold its QuadraMed shares in fiscal 866. Net proceeds from the sale were $806,080tengain on the sale was
$160,000. The gain of $160,000, before tax, inalltie realization of $134,000 of previously unreeadi gain in accumulated other
comprehensive income. During fiscal year 2006 ctsh and shares held in escrow were released @atmpany, resulting in the recognition
of an additional gain of $0.2 million.

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

In October 2000 and May 2001, the Company inveateddditional $182,000 and $100,000, respectitelincrease the Company’s
equity percentage in OSI Medical to 74.8%. The Canypmerged OSI Medical into a newly formed subsidi®olphin Medical, Inc.
(“Dolphin”) in March 2002. Dolphin had been formedSeptember 2001 when the medical device busifede Company’s UDT Sensors,
Inc. (since renamed OSI Optoelectronics, Inc.) sliday was contributed to Dolphin in exchange ftock in Dolphin. In December 2003, the
Company entered into a Stock Purchase and Optioaehgent with Conmed Corporation, whereby Conmegb@ation purchased a 9%
interest in Dolphin and an option to purchase fathe remaining shares of Dolphin. In addition, @ed Corporation and Dolphin entered into
a distribution agreement, which provides Conmed@Gation with distribution rights for certain Doliphproducts within certain defined
territories. The Company currently owns approxinya@% of Dolphin. The Company received $2,000,006onnection with the above-
mentioned agreements of which $800,000 is defeyved the five-year term of the distribution agreeine

In fiscal year 2000, the Company formed RapiTeanagority-owned subsidiary. In January 2004, thearity shareholders of RapiTec
accepted an offer by the Company to purchase atestof RapiTec common stock held by them. As @tre§the transaction, the Company
now wholly owns RapiTec. Consideration paid for share purchase transaction consisted of an iciisth payment of approximately $820,
paid in fiscal year 2004, of which $536,000 wasedked to goodwill, and a second cash paymentmbapnately $279,000 paid in fiscal
2005, which amount was also allocated to goodwal of June 30, 2006, the Company has approxim&&lp,000 in goodwill recorded for
this acquisition, none of which is tax deductible.

In November 2002, the Company acquired all thetanting capital stock of Ancore (recently renamegiBcan Systems Neutronics ¢
Advanced Technologies Corporation), a Santa Claadifornia based privately held high-technology eleper and provider of advanced
inspection systems for aviation security, port bodder inspection and counter-terrorism to enhane€Company’s cargo and vehicle
inspection system offerings. Consideration paidfieracquisition consisted of a combination of @mpany’s common stock (“Common
Stock”) and cash. At the close of the acquisitibe, Company paid $2,000,000 in cash, and issue@3d@shares of its Common Stock valued
at $5,749,000. Expenses associated with the atiquisiere approximately $120,000, and have beelnded in the total purchase price. As of
June 30, 2006, the Company has approximately $£0029n goodwill recorded for this acquisition, oof which is tax deductible. The
acquisition agreement contains certain provisian@fiditional contingent purchase price payments.

In fiscal year 2003, additional contingent cashrpagts of $2,574,000 were made to former Ancoreksialders based on Ancore
meeting certain performance criteria and has beeoded in the allocated purchase price. In aduljtituring the five years subsequent to the
acquisition, upon each commercial sale of a Putsesd Neutron Analysis (“PFNA”) inspection systelte Company will pay former Ancore
stockholders an earn-out of 6% of the price ofRR&A system, up to $750,000 per system, in eithehor stock, at the Company’s election.
The PFNA earn-out payments are capped at an adgrefy@34,000,000. As of June 30, 2006, no earrpayinents have been earned or made.
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In August 2003, the Company acquired certain aseptesenting the military laser-based trainingress of Schwartz Electro-Optics,
Inc. for $3.7 million, including acquisition cosfBhe acquisition was made through a newly formewliy-owned subsidiary, OSI Defense.
The acquired business develops and manufacturésalaengagement simulation systems, man-worn ldstrctors, small arms transmitters,
controller guns and a variety of targeting systéonshe defense industry. As of June 30, 2006 Gbmpany had approximately $3,157,000 in
goodwill recorded for this acquisition which is td&ductible. In November 2003, the Company acqustdastantially all of the remaining as:
of Schwartz Electro-Optics, Inc. in a bankruptcurtsupervised auction. The Company paid approxémail,600,000, including acquisition
costs. The acquired assets comprise a businetgefdesign, manufacture and sale of laser-base¢ensgsised in traffic and toll management,
precision agricultural management, and precisioppimay and surveying. The business, located in @daFRlorida, now operates under the
name OSI Laserscan. The acquisition was made thr@&j Defense. As of June 30, 2006, the Companyppoximately $411,000 in
goodwill recorded for this acquisition which is tdeductible.

In October 2003, the Company acquired the assetsradnufacturing services company specializingiiffase mount technology lines
and PC board assembly operations for approxim&#73,000 including acquisition costs (net of castuired). The acquisition was made
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, OSI Electronics.

In December 2003, the Company acquired substan#llbf the assets of J&D Engineering, a compagistered in England and Wales.
The Company paid approximately £367,000 (or appnaxely $649,000) including acquisition costs. Adiidnal £93,000 (or approximately
$171,000) was paid during the fiscal quarter erfddadch 31, 2004. The acquired assets comprise adsssior the design, sale and
manufacturing of, among other products, metal fimfoe x-ray scanners. The acquisition was madeautitrahe Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Rapiscan Security Products Limited;€rgly renamed Rapiscan Systems Limited).

In January 2004, the Company completed the acourisif all of the outstanding capital stock of ARAR (recently renamed Rapiscan
Systems High Energy Inspection Corporation), agiely held company located in Sunnyvale, Califarfitae acquisition of ARACOR
broadens the Company’s security product portfolitn d\RACOR’s mobile x-ray inspection system, theglea which is designed for container
scanning at busy seaports. Consideration for theisition consisted of an initial cash paymentghrximately $17.6 million (net of cash
acquired), including acquisition costs. Furthermadrging the seven years following the close, caggnt consideration is payable based on
ARACOR's net revenues, provided certain requireman¢ met. The contingent consideration is capp&3@million. As of June 30, 2006, no
earn out payments have been made.

In March 2004, the Company completed the acquisiiiom Instrumentarium Corporation, now a subsidiarGeneral Electric
Company, of certain capital stock and assets datiatj substantially all of the business operatiohSpacelabs Medical. The acquisition price
was approximately $47.9 million in cash (net offcasquired), including acquisition costs. SpaceMbslical is a leading global manufacturer
and distributor of patient monitoring systems fotical care and anesthesia, wired and wirelessordss, clinical information connectivity
solutions, ambulatory blood pressure monitors ardioal data services. In June 2004, the CompariffetbGeneral Electric Company of a
working capital and retention bonus adjustmentlitieguin what the Company believes to be a downveatjdistment of the purchase price in
the amount of approximately $26 million. In SeptemB004, General Electric Company responded thliéves the amount of the downward
adjustment to be $7.8 million. No amounts have lreearded in the financial statements in relatmthe expected reduction in the purchase
price.
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Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreemenfdmpany assumed management retention bonus agresefor key personnel of
Spacelabs Medical. As of June 30, 2006, no funthemmagement retention obligations remained. Theuatand related payments are
summarized in the following table:

Retention Bonus

Accrual

(in thousands)

Balance on June 30, 20 $ 2,60:
Accruals 1,82¢
Payment: (2,37%)
Balance on June 30, 20 2,052
Accruals 625
Payment: (2,675

Balance on June 30, 20 $ —

In February 2005, the Company completed the adepnsdf all of the outstanding capital stock of Bse for approximately $9.3 million
in cash (net of cash acquired), including acquisitosts. As of June 30, 2006, the Company ha®aippately $4.3 million in goodwill
recorded for this acquisition, none of which is theductible. Furthermore, during the three yedteuing the close, contingent consideratio
payable based on Blease’s net revenues, provid&arceequirements are met. The contingent conatiter is capped at £6.25 million
(approximately $11.6 million as of June 30, 2008)e results of operations of Blease have beendeclun the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations since the acquisition date.

Supplemental pro-forma disclosures of the resultgerations for the fiscal years ended June 304 20hd 2005, as though the Spacelabs
Medical and Blease acquisitions had been comphetesf July 1, 2003, are as follows (in thousana®pkper share amounts):

Unaudited
2004 2005
Revenue: $375,56! $395,61(
Net loss before taxe $(14,16%) $ (9,07¢)
Net loss $ (8,819 $ (3,306
Net loss available to sharehold $ (8,819 $ (3,417
Diluted loss per share ( $ (0.5¢) $ (0.2))

(1) Earnings per share is calculated based on 15,236y39 16,222,998 diluted ordinary shares for theafiyears ended June 30, 2004
2005, respectively

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable consisted of the followingttiousands)

June 30,

2005 2006
Trade receivable—net $86,74¢ $115,13:
Receivables related to long term contr—unbilled costs and accrued profit on progress ceteg 2,48: 4,28¢
Total $89,221 $119,41¢
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The unbilled costs and accrued profit at June B062re expected to be entirely billed and col®chering fiscal year 2007.

5. INVENTORIES
Inventory, net consisted of the following (in thauss):

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Property and equipment, r

June 30,
2005 2006
Raw material $ 56,58¢ $ 63,78t
Work-in-process 22,13: 29,96:
Finished good 28,72¢ 26,85¢
Total $107,44: $120,60:
6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the followingtfousands):
June 30,
Estimated
Useful
Lives 2005 2006
Land $ 5,564 $ 5,89¢
Buildings 20 year 6,322 7,37(
Leasehold improvements 3-10
year: 6,513 7,06¢
Equipment 5-
8 year: 23,89( 35,79(
Tooling 3-5
year: 2,911 4,28¢
Furniture and fixtures 8-
10 year 3,32¢ 4,14(
Computer equipment 3-4
year: 12,25: 15,61¢
ERP software 10 year 1,84¢ 2,45¢
Vehicles 3-5
year: 262 35¢
Total 62,89( 82,98¢

(31,916 (40,46%)

$ 30,97« $ 42,52

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 20052806, depreciation expense was approximately ipdlion, $6.6 million and $10.6
million, respectively. Included in computer equipthes approximately $0.7 million of assets undegitd leases.
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7. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfa fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2006sdmdl@ws (in thousands

Consolidatec

Security Healthcare Optoelectronics and

Group Group Manufacturing Group
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,59( $ 1,26¢ $ 6,06¢ $ 23,92
Goodwill acquired during the peric 8 4,44; 27¢ 4,72¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm: (10€) 15C — 44
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,49: $ 5,861 $ 6,344 $ 28,69
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 24C 12¢ — 36¢
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,73: $ 5,99( $ 6,344 $ 29,06¢

Intangible assets which have indefinite lives, #ratefore are not subject to amortization, condisfetrademarks with a gross carrying
value of $7.1 million at June 30, 2005 and 2006.

Intangible assets subject to amortization consisfalle following (in thousands):

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006
Gross Gross
Weighted Carrying Accumulated Intangibles Carrying Accumulated Intangibles
Average Lives Value Amortization Net Value Amortization Net

Software development cos 4 year: $ 3,63¢ $ 1,382 $ 2,252 $ 3,271 $ 1,48(C $ 1,791

Purchased softwal 5 year 327 327 — — — —
Patents 10 year 43¢ 19¢ 24¢ 42C 21t 20t
Core technolog 25 year 9,21z 681 8,53 9,28¢ 1,15¢ 8,13(
Developed technolog 17 year 27,81¢ 3,15¢ 24,65 27,57: 4,58¢ 22,98
Customer relationships/backl 8 year: 5,43¢ 928 4,51¢ 5,462 1,64¢ 3,81¢

$46,86¢ $ 6,66¢ $ 40,20 $46,01¢ $ 9,08¢ $ 36,92¢

Amortization expense for the fiscal years endece B 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $1.7 million, $4l0aniand $3.6 million,
respectively. At June 30, 2006, estimated futurersiation expense is as follows (in thousands):

2007 $ 3,461
2008 3,28¢
2009 3,06¢
2010 3,00¢
2011 2,63¢
2012 and thereafte 21,46:

Total $36,92¢
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Software development costs for software productsetticensed to others, incurred before establgsténhnological feasibility, are
charged to operations. Software development costsried after establishing technological feasipiind purchased software costs are
capitalized on a product-by-product basis untilgheduct is available for general release to custsmat which time amortization begins.
Annual amortization, charged to cost of saleshésgreater of: (i) the amount computed using tkie that current gross revenues for a product
bear to the total current and anticipated futumsgirevenues for that product or (ii) the straigteé-method over the remaining estimated
economic life of the product. During the fiscal ygeanded June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006, the Conuaguitalized software development costs
in the amount of $0.1 million, $1.4 million and ganillion, respectively.

8. LINE-OF-CREDIT BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

In May 2005, the Company entered into a second datkand restated credit agreement with Bank of\test. The agreement provided
for a $50 million senior revolving line of credibcluding a letter-of-credit, foreign exchange fgiand an acquisition credit facility, each of
which were secured by substantially all of the &sefour U.S. subsidiaries and our stock ownershipio significant foreign subsidiaries. In
October 2005, the Company entered into a first aimemt to the second amended and restated crediéragnt. As amended, the agreement
included an asset—based credit facility of up t0 8#llion with revised financial covenants.

As of June 30, 2006, the Company’s borrowing cdpaeas $28.3 million of which $10.2 million was standing under the revolving
line of credit and $11.2 million was issued andstariding under the letter of credit facility.

In order to provide the Company’s majority-owned&dlabs Healthcare subsidiary with a separateoficeedit, the Company bifurcated
its arrangement with Bank of the West. As a resuitJuly 18, 2006, the Company entered into a TAirgnded and Restated Credit
Agreement with Bank of the West. As amended, threergent provides for a $35 million senior revolviimg of credit, including a letter-of-
credit and foreign exchange facility, each of whéch secured by substantially all of the Company’S. assets, including its ownership of €
of the stock of Spacelabs Healthcare. Intereshemavolving loans is based, at the Company’s aptio either the ban&’prime rate plus up-
0.5% (based on our financial performance), or @Bhtish Bankers Association Interest SettlemeatieRor deposits in U.S. dollars plus up to
2.5% (based on the Company’s financial performantde¢ Company has made customary representati@msanties and covenants in the
Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, inefudertain financial covenants, such as maintgirispecified tangible net worth; ratio
of total liabilities to effective tangible net whrtratio of earnings before interest and taxesteréest paid in cash; pre-tax loss limitations; and
capital expenditure limitations, among others. @geement expires on July 18, 2009.

On July 18, 2006, Spacelabs Healthcare also enteted Credit Agreement with Bank of the West. Hyeeement provides for a $10
million senior revolving line of credit, including letter-of-credit and foreign exchange facilitydaa $27.4 million loan to fund the purchase of
the Del Mar Reynolds cardiology division of Fersa@roup PLC, a company organized in England anagvVdlhe Credit Agreement is secu
by substantially all of the assets of the U.S. gliages of the Company’s Healthcare division. iet on the revolving loans is based, at
Spacelabs Healthcare’s option, on either the bagmkrse rate, plus up to 0.5% (based on Spacelab#hi¢are’s financial performance), or on
the British Bankers Association Interest Settlenfatte for deposits in U.S. dollars plus up to 2(b#sed on Spacelabs Healthcare’s financial
performance). Spacelabs Healthcare has made custoepeesentations, warranties and covenants iCtedit Agreement, including certain
financial covenants such as maintaining a spectfiadible net worth; ratio of current assets taenirliabilities; ratio of earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization less
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non-financed capital expenditures and dividendd paideclared to interest paid plus the currentipoiof long- term debt and capitalized lease
obligations; and ratio of indebtedness to earnbefsre interest taxes depreciation and amortizadorong others. The agreement expires on
July 18, 2009. There were no amounts outstandirgf dsne 30, 2006 under this agreement.

The Company’s Rapiscan Systems Pte. Ltd. subsidia®jngapore has entered into a revolving linereflit agreement with the
Singapore branch of an Indian bank. This line efldrprovides for various types of short term bairgy of up to 4.95 million Singapore
dollars (approximately $3.1 million at June 30, @0@orrowings under the line of credit bear ingtrat the banis prime rate (9.0% at June .
2006) plus from 1.0% to 1.25% depending on the tfdean. Borrowings under the line of credit aeewed by the assets of the Company’s
Rapiscan Systems Pte. Ltd. subsidiary. At Jun@B306, there were no amounts outstanding underetr@ving line of credit. This facility
expires in January 2007.

The Company’s Dolphin Medical Pte. Ltd. subsidiarysingapore has also entered into a revolving diheredit agreement with the same
Singapore branch of an Indian bank. This line efldrprovides for secured overdraft/ inventory barings up to 1.6 million Singapore dollars
(approximately $1.0 million at June 30, 2006). Barings under the line of credit bear interest atlihnk’s prime rate (9.0% at June 30, 2006)
plus 1.25%. Borrowings under the line of credit seeured by the inventory of Dolphin Medical Pttl.LAt June 30, 2006, there were no
amounts outstanding under the revolving line oflitr& his facility expires in January 2007. Thedit@greements for Rapiscan Systems Pte.
Ltd and Dolphin Medical Pte. Ltd. are guaranteedhgyCompany up to 3.9 million Singapore dollampf@aximately $2.5 million at June 30,
2006) in total.

The Company’s Advanced Micro Electronics AS (“AME8ubsidiary in Norway has a loan agreement wittoewvegian bank that
provides for revolving line-of-credit borrowings op to 10 million Norwegian kroner (approximatell.& million, at June 30, 2006).
Borrowings under this line of credit bear interatsa variable rate, which was 4.5% and 5.25% a¢ 3n 2005 and 2006, respectively. Interest
is payable quarterly. Borrowings under this lineaddit are collateralized by certain AME assetsJéne 30, 2006, there were no amounts
outstanding under this line of credit. This fagikxpires in March 2007.

The Company’s Rapiscan Systems Limited subsidiatiie U.K. entered into a $5.3 million bank loantfte acquisition of land and
buildings in Salfords, England. The Company codedaertain of its Security and Healthcare divisiperations in this facility. The loan is
repayable over a twenty-year period, with quartpdyments due of3,500 (approximately $63,800 at June 30, 2006)st@uding borrowing
bear interest at 3 month LIBOR (5.96% at June 8062 plus 1.2% and are payable on a quarterly basis

The Company’s Rapiscan Systems Limited subsidiatiié U.K. also has a loan agreement with a U.Ketdank that provides for an
overdraft facility up to a maximum amount of £1/@8lion (approximately $2.3 million at June 30, B)®utstanding at any one time. Such
amounts are secured by certain assets of the safysidt June 30, 2006, £0.4 million (approximat&ly.7 million) was outstanding under this
facility. Outstanding borrowings bear interest abaiable base rate (4.5% at June 30, 2006) pREXA per annum. The agreement also prot
for a £3.25 million (approximately $6.0 million &tine 30, 2006) facility for tender and performabeords and a £1.0 million (approximately
$1.9 million at June 30, 2006) facility for the pbase of foreign exchange contracts and lettecseafit. At June 30, 2006, ho amounts were
outstanding under foreign exchange contracts atetdeof credit. These facilities are secured byaie assets of the subsidiary and the
Company has guaranteed these obligations up torfillion (approximately $1.9 million at June 30,08). As of June 30, 2006, £2.56 million
(approximately $4.9 million at June 30, 2006) wasstanding under the performance bond facility. SEhiacilities expire in April 2007.
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The Company’s Opto Sensors (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhdsidigry in Malaysia has a loan agreement with adylsibn bank that provides for
overdraft borrowings of up to 3.0 million Malaysienggits (approximately $0.8 million at June 3008). Borrowings under the line of credit
bear interest at the bank’s base lending rate $%.@6June 30, 2006) plus 1.75%. Interest is payaiolethly. As of June 30, 2006, no amounts
were outstanding under this loan agreement. Borrgsvuinder this loan agreement are secured by exsaets of the subsidiary and are
guaranteed by the Company up to 3.0 million Malkaysinggits (approximately $0.8 million at June 3006). This facility expires in March
2007.

The Company’s Opto Sensors (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhdsidigry in Malaysia also has an agreement with &l&an bank that provides for
17 million Malaysian ringgits (approximately $4.6llion at June 30, 2006) under a performance baeilify. As of June 30, 2006, 2.2 million
Malaysian ringgits (approximately $0.6 million ain& 30, 2006) were outstanding under this facilitye agreement provides for overdraft
borrowings up to 5.0 million Malaysian ringgits fapximately $1.4 million at June 30, 2006). Borrogsé under the overdraft facility bear
interest at the bank’s base lending rate (6.25%ia¢ 30, 2006) plus 1.75%. At June 30, 2006, nauatsavere outstanding under the overdraft
facility. The agreement also provides an impor laf credit up to 2.0 million Malaysian ringgetgaoximately $0.5 million at June 30, 20C
As of June 30, 2006 no amounts were outstandingruthe import line of credit. Borrowings under thigreement are secured by certain assets
of the subsidiary and are guaranteed by the Comppartig 14.2 million Malaysian ringgits (approximigt&3.9 million at June 30, 2006). This
facility expires in January 2007.

The Company’s Rapiscan Systems Oy (previously knasvMetorex Security Products Oy) has an agreemiéma Finnish bank that
provides for 0.5 million euros (approximately $@nillion at June 30, 2006) under a tender and perémce bond facility. As of June 30, 2006,
0.2 million euros (approximately $0.3 million) wesatstanding under this facility. The agreement alovides for a foreign currency overdi
facility up to 0.5 million euros (approximately $0million at June 30, 2006). At June 30, 2006, mwants were outstanding under the facility.
Borrowings under these facilities bear interest edtthe bank’s prime lending rate (3.0% at Jun€806) plus 1.0%. These facilities expire in
February 2007.

The Company’s Spacelabs Medical subsidiary hagsrangement with a bank in the United States thavigdes for up to $0.1 million in
letters of credit and $0.4 million in overdraft bmwings. The overdraft borrowings portion beargiiast at the bank’s prime rate (8.25% at
June 30, 2006) plus 3%. There were no outstaneiters of credit or outstanding amounts under tleedraft borrowing portion of the facility
as of June 30, 2006. The facility is guaranteethbyCompany.

The Company’s Spacelabs Medical subsidiary hageeement with a bank in the United States thatigesva bid bond of $0.8 million
that was required in connection with a tender eeldab the potential sale of products in a foreigantry. The bid bond is secured by a money
market account in the amount of $0.8 million. The tond expired on July 22, 2006.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following at Jufgi& thousands):

2005 2006
Four-year term loan payable in monthly installmenft$34,710 until paid in full on October 10, 2009.
Interest is due monthly at a rate of 7.8 $ — $1,21¢
Fifteer-year term loan payable in monthly installments &3 until paid in full on July 27, 2020. Inter
is due monthly at a rate of O — 142
Twenty-year term loan payable in quarterly installment£34,500 (approximately $63,800 at June
2006) until paid in full on December 1, 2024. letstris due quarterly at a rate of three-month LIB:
plus 1.2% (7.16% at June, 30, 20! 4,81 4,721
Capital lease obligatior 507 24¢
Other 27 40t
5,351 6,73¢
Less current portion of loi-term deb! 49¢ 1,251
Long-term portion of dek $4,85: $5,48:

Fiscal year principal payments of long-term debbdfadune 30, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

2007 $1,251
2008 62E
2009 654
2010 40z
2011 26E
2012 and thereafte 3,531
Total $6,73¢

9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As of June 30, 2006, the Company maintained tHeviihg four significant stock option plans: (a) th@97 Stock Option Plan, (b) tl
2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option Plan, (c) 0@bZquity Participation Plan (the “2005 Spaceldbalthcare Plan”) and (d) the 2006
Equity Participation Plan (the “2006 Rapiscan Systélan”).

Stock-baseatompensation expense recorded in accordance wils 323(R) for the year ended June 30, 2006 totafguioximately $4.
million, net of tax. The income tax benefit relatecsuch compensation was approximately $1.3 milltockbased compensation expense
been recorded in the consolidated statement oftipas for the year ended June 30, 2006 as fol[awthousands):

Year ended
June 30, 200
Cost of goods sol $ 41¢
Selling, general and administrati 4,46:
Research and developmt 473
$ 5,35¢
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As of June 30, 2006, total unrecognized compensatist related to non-vested share-based compensatangements granted
amounted to: $3.8 million under the 1997 Stock @p#lan, $1.7 million under the 2005 SpacelabstHeate Plan and $1.7 million under the
2006 Rapiscan Systems Plan. The Company expersdgnize these costs over a weighted-averagedoefib.4 years with respect to the
1997 Stock Option Plan, 1.6 years with respedtéo2005 Spacelabs Healthcare Plan and 2.7 yedrsesgipect to the 2006 Rapiscan Systems
Plan.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased payment arrangements amounted to $1.5 mi§i22 million and $2.9 million
for the three years ended June 30, 2004, 2005 @0l Pespectively. The benefit realized in conmectvith tax deductions associated with
option exercises under all share-based paymentgenaents totaled $0.9 million, $0.9 million and1$6nillion for the three years ended
June 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company maintains and administers an emplape& purchase plan under which it has reservegsfaance 500,000 shares of its
common stock. Eligible employees may purchase gddmumber of shares of common stock at a discolap to 15% of the market value of
such stock at pre-determined, plan-defined datasnD the three years ended June 30, 2004, 2002@0@] employees purchased 16,281,
42,439 and 74,250 shares, respectively. The Compangrued liability to the 1998 Plan was $580,86d $618,000 at June 30, 2005 and
2006, respectively. As of June 30, 2006, there \#@@678 shares of the Company’s common stockveddor future issuance under the plan.
The compensation expense associated with this jpleloded in the consolidated statement of openatfor the year ended June 30, 2006, was
not material.

Stock Option Plans

1997 Stock Option Pla—The Company established the 1997 Stock Option iRlday 1997 and authorized the grant of up to 880
shares of common stock in the form of incentive madqualified options. In November 2004, the Conypacreased the number of shares
authorized under the 1997 Stock Option Plan toBE®. Under the 1997 Stock Option Plan, The Compaay grant to its directors and
employees, including those of its subsidiarieseimive and nonqualified options to purchase shairesmmon stock. Under the plan, the
exercise price of nonqualified options may notdsesithan 85% of the fair market value of our comstook on the date of grant. The exercise
price of incentive stock options may not be lesstthe fair market value of our common stock atdhie of grant. The exercise price of
incentive stock options granted to individuals vawn more than 10% of our voting stock may not Iss khan 110% of the fair market value
our common stock on the date of grant. Stock optgmanted under this plan may not be exercised thareten years after the date of grant
(five years after the date of grant if the grardrisincentive stock option to an employee who omnse than 10% of the total combined voting
power of all classes of our capital stock).

Under the 1997 Stock Option Plan, the fair valueasth option award is estimated as of the dateaoftgising a Black-Scholes options
pricing model that uses assumptions detailed inghke below. Expected volatilities are based btead of historical volatilities of the
Company’s common stock and implied volatilitiestefpublicly traded options, as more fully explaii®elow. The expected life represents the
weighted-average period of time that options gréuate expected to be outstanding, giving consiterad vesting periods and historical
exercise patterns. The risk-free rate is baseth®ttS. Treasury yield curve in effect at the tiwhgrant for periods corresponding to the
expected life of the option.

F-29



Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

SAB 107 provides the views of the Securities andnaxge Commission regarding valuation of shareebpagments pursuant to SFAS
123(R). With respect to volatility, SAB 107 clagfi that no single method of estimating volatilgyroper under all circumstances and that to
the extent a company can derive implied volatiased on the trading of its financial instrumemts@ublic market, it may be appropriate to
use both implied and historical volatility in itssumptions. The Company has certain financialunsénts that are publicly traded from which
we can derive the implied volatility. Thereforegb@ing in July 2005, the Company used implied histbrical volatility for valuing its stock
options, whereas it had previously used historoddtility exclusively as the measure. The Comphaleves that implied and historical
volatility is a better indicator of expected voli&§i because it is generally reflective of bothtbiical volatility and expectations of how future
volatility will differ from historical volatility.

The Company determined the fair value of optiossésl during fiscal years ended 2004, 2005 and 26@6 the date of the grant, using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with thddaling weighted average assumptions:

2004 2005 2006
Expected dividen: 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 2.5% 3.4% 4.€%
Expected volatility 77.1% 58.2% 42.&%
Expected life (in years 3.8 3.7 3.8

The following summarizes stock option activity foe fiscal years ended 2004, 2005 and 2006:
Weighted- Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,379,54. $ 11.9¢
Granted 455,76! 19.31
Exercisec (177,24 6.9¢
Expired or cance (5,175 6.74
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,652,88 14.57
Granted 377,00( 19.3¢
Exercisec (201,899 7.3¢
Expired or cance (52,840 14.31
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,775,14 16.41
Granted 354,00( 18.5¢
Exercisec (246,02 7.6€
Expired or cance (73,91¢ 17.51
Converted out of Pla (30,529 20.2¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,778,67i $ 17.9¢ 25 $ 1,87¢
Exercisable at June 30, 20 996,96 $ 17.01 1.5 $ 1,731
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The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievaflistock options granted under the 1997 Stocko@gitlan was $11.03, $8.91 and
$7.04 for the fiscal year ending 2004, 2005 ands2@8spectively. The total intrinsic value of optsoexercised during the fiscal year ending
2006 was $2.9 million.

In fiscal year 2006, the Company converted 30,5&#bos under the 1997 Stock Option Plan into 1,688 0ptions under the 2004
Spacelab Medical Plan. As a result of the convarsadditional compensation expense of $0.4 mili@s recognized in fiscal 2006.

Additional information relating to the 1997 Stockt®@n Plan at June 30, 2006 is as follows:

June 30, 200¢
Options exercisabl 996,96:
Options available for grai 517,57:
Total shares reserved for stock option 3,350,00!

2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option PlaAWe established the 2004 Spacelabs Medical Sto¢lo®Plan in April 2004 under which
the Company authorized the grant of up to 12,5@%@res of Spacelabs Medical common stock indire 6f nonqualified options. Under 1
2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option Plan, the Compgay grant to employees, including those ofutssidiaries, consultants and to the
non-employee directors of Spacelabs Medical, nolifggcaoptions to purchase shares of the Spacelédrdical common stock. Stock options
granted under this plan may not be exercised ninane ten years after the date of grant.

The Company estimates the fair value of each stption award as of the date of grant, using a Blackoles option pricing model that
uses assumptions detailed in the table below. Tdmpany based expected volatilities on the historiokatilities of the publicly traded
common stock of a select peer group of companggsatte similar to Spacelabs Medical. The Compasydedermined the 2006 expected term
assumption under the “Simplified Method” as defie&AB 107, as it lacks historical data and ishiedo make reasonable expectations
regarding future exercise patterns. The risk-fege is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefaceht the time of grant for periods
corresponding with the expected life of the option.

The Company has determined the fair value of optissued during the fiscal year ended 2004, 20032806 on the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model whik following weighted average assumptions:

2004 2005 2006
Expected dividen: 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 2.4% 3.2% 3.2%
Expected volatility 51.5% 51.2% 51.(%
Expected life (in years 3.6 3.€ 3.€
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The following summarizes stock option activity faacal year ended 2004, 2005 and 2006:

Weighted- Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
Outstandin—June 30, 200 —
Granted 4,897,501 0.5¢
Exercisec — —
Cancelec (20,000 0.5¢
Outstandin—June 30, 200 4,887,50! 0.5¢
Granted 4,188,501 0.8C
Exercisec — —
Cancelec (1,152,501 0.5¢
Outstandin—June 30, 200 7,923,501 0.7C
Granted 739,00( 1.1C
Converted in to Pla 1,065,68I 0.5¢
Exercisec — —
Cancelec (242,559 0.7¢
Converted out of Pla (9,485,62) 0.72

Outstandin—June 30, 200 — — — _
Exercisable at June 30, 20 — — — _

The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievalistock options issued under the 2004 Spacéliglolical Stock Option Plan was
$0.23, $0.33 and $0.45 for the three years endeel 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. No ogtimiders under the 2004 Spacelabs
Medical Stock Option Plan exercised their optiongr) the year ended June 30, 2006.

In fiscal year 2006, 30,529 options were conveftech the 1997 Stock Option Plan into 1,065,680apsiof the 2004 Spacelab Medical
Stock Option Plan. As a result of the conversibe,Eompany recognized additional compensation esqpeh$0.4 million for the year ended
June 30, 2006.

On March 6, 2006, all 9,485,621 outstanding optiamder the 2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option Rizne converted into options
under the 2005 Spacelabs Healthcare Plan. As & odshis conversion, no additional compensatigpense was required to be recognized for
the year ended June 30, 2006. The Company doexpett to make any future grants under the 2004edales Medical Stock Option Plan.

2005 Spacelabs Healthcare PlarThe Company established the 2005 Spacelabs Hagdtitan in October 2005 under which it
authorized the grant of up to 10,000,000 sharé&paftelabs Healthcare common stock. Under the 2p88eSabs Healthcare Plan, the
Company may grant to employees, including thostsafubsidiaries, consultants and to the non-engaairectors of Spacelabs Healthcare,
incentive or nonqualified options to purchase shafeSpacelabs Healthcare common stock. Stockrmpticanted under this plan may not be
exercised more than ten years after the date at.gra

The Company estimates the fair value of each ogtieard as of the date of grant using a Black-Schofion pricing model that uses
assumptions detailed in the table below. The Compased expected volatilities on the historicahtitities of the publicly traded common
stock of a select peer group of companies that are
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similar to Spacelabs Healthcare. The Company h&srdined the 2006 expected term assumption uneéeiSimplified Method” as defined in
SAB 107, as it lacks historical data and is unablmake reasonable expectations regarding futwecese patterns. The risk-free rate is based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at ihgetof grant for periods corresponding with theeotpd life of the option.

The Company determined the fair value of the optissued during the year ended June 30, 2006 asatieeof the grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following whted average assumptions:

Year ended

June 30, 200
Expected dividen: 0%
Risk-free interest rat 4.€%
Expected volatility 44.2%
Expected life (in years 3.€

The following table summarizes the 2005 SpaceladmsitHcare Plan’s stock option activities for tharyended June 30, 2006:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
Outstanding at June 30, 20 — —
Granted 390,00( $ 2.4¢
Converted into Pla 5,215,45. 1.2¢
Exercisec (2,547 1.0t
Expired or cance (128,79() 1.1¢4
Outstanding at June 30, 20 5,474,11! $ 1.37 3.3 $ 5,92(
Exercisable at June 30, 20 1,823,12: $ 1.17 3.0 $ 2,32¢

The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievaflistock options granted under the 2005 Spacélaebithcare Plan was $1.00 for the
year ended June 30, 2006, respectively. There meemptions granted prior to fiscal year 2006. Tihtsnsic value of option exercises under
2005 Spacelabs Healthcare Plan during the fisaal geding June 30, 2006 was $3,636.

Additional information relating to the 2005 Spadmldiealthcare Plan’s stock options at June 30, 28(6llows:

June 30,
2006
Options exercisabl 1,823,12:
Options available for grai 4,502,72.
Total shares reserved for stock option f 10,000,00

2006 Rapiscan Systems PlanrThe Company established the 2006 Rapiscan Sy$¥#ansn January 2006 under which it authorized the
grant of up to 10,000,000 shares of Rapiscan Systéoidings common stock. Under the 2006 RapiscateBys Plan, the Company may grant
to employees, including those of its subsidiar@sisultants and to the non-employee directors pidRan Systems Holdings, incentive or
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nonqualified options to purchase shares of the &tapi Systems Holdings common stock. Stock opticaistgd under this plan may not be
exercised more than ten years after the date ot.gra

The Company estimates the fair value of each oeard as of the date of grant using a Black-Schojgion pricing model that uses
assumptions detailed in the table below. The Compased expected volatilities on the historicahtitities of the publicly traded common
stock of a select peer group of companies thasiangar to Rapiscan Systems Holdings. The Compasydetermined the 2006 expected term
assumption under the “Simplified Method” as defie&AB 107, as it lacks historical data and ishiedo make reasonable expectations
regarding future exercise patterns. The risk-fege is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefgceht the time of grant for periods
corresponding with the expected life of the option.

The Company determined the fair value of the optigssued during the year ended June 30, 2006 asetieeof the grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following \ghted average assumptions:

Year ended June 3(

2006
Expected dividen: 0%
Risk-free interest rat 4.7%
Expected volatility 43.1%
Expected life (in years 3.6

The following table summarizes the 2006 Rapiscaste3ys Plan’s stock option activities for the yeatedd June 30, 2006:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
Outstanding at June 30, 20 —
Granted 5,048,00! $ 1.4z
Exercisec —
Expired or cance — —
Outstanding at June 30, 20 5,048,00! $ 1.4z 4.7 —
Exercisable at June 30, 20 — — — —
I L] I

The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievalistock options granted under the 2006 RapiSgatems Plan was $0.43 for the
year ended June 30, 2006. The Company made ncgnadér this plan during prior periods. There wey@ptions exercises under the 2(
Rapiscan Systems Plan during the year ended Juyrg9G6.

Additional information relating to the 2006 Rapiscaystems Plan’s stock options at June 30, 2006llagvs:

June 30,
2006
Options exercisabl —
Options available for grai 4,952,001
Total reserved common stock shares for stock optian 10,000,00
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Pro forma SFAS 123 disclosure

Prior to July 1, 2005 and the adoption of SFAS R33(ve accounted for our employee stock option planapplying the intrinsic val-
based method of accounting prescribed by AccouRiimgciples Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accoung for Stock Issued to Employees,”
and related interpretations (“APB Opinion 25"). Angpthese interpretations, FASB Interpretation Nb.“Accounting for Certain Transactio
involving Stock Compensation, an interpretatio®&B Opinion No. 25,” issued in March 2000, diretttat compensation expense should
generally be determined on the date of grant, hlyt ibthe fair value of the underlying stock exdee the exercise price on such date. We
adopted the disclosure-only requirements of SFASR 1&ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFA23") and SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transitimil Disclosure,” (“SFAS 148"), an amendment to SF&3. These statements
establish accounting and disclosure requiremerig) @sfair-value based method of accounting foclstobased employee compensation plans.
As permitted by SFAS 123 and SFAS 148, we eledemntinue to apply the intrinsic-value based méttiescribed above.

The Company accounted for stock-based awards te@nguioyees in accordance with SFAS 123, as amelgl&FAS 148, and
Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-18, “Accountargequity Instruments That Are Issued to Other TRamployees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services,” whBre¢he fair value of such options is determinedgghe Black-Scholes option pricing
model at the earlier of the date at which the nmpleyee’s performance is complete or a performamoemitment is reached.

As such, prior to July 1, 2005, we applied APB Oqin25 in accounting for substantially all of otock-based awards and, accordingly,
except for certain options issued to non-employagsliscussed above, the Company recognized noestsation cost using the intrinsic value
method for our stock-based compensation in therapaaying financial statements.

If the fair-value-based method had been appliedéasuring stock-based compensation expense uné& £8, as amended by SFAS
148, the pro forma effect on net income and eampeg share would have been as follows (in thousadept per share amounts):

Years Ended June 30

2004 2005
Net income (loss), as reporte $ 9,95¢ $(2,39%)
Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includedanteglpnet incomr-net of relatec

tax effects — —
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense deteroniger the fair value-based

method for all awarc-net of related tax effec (3,509 (4,26%)
Pro forma net income (los $ 6,452 $(6,66%3)
Earnings (loss) per share
Basi—as reporte! $ 0.6¢ $ (0.15)
Basic—pro forma $ 0.44 $ (0.4))
Dilutedc—as reportet $ 0.6f $ (0.1%)
Diluted—pro forma $ 0.41 $ (0.42)
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10. INCOME TAXES

For financial reporting purposes, income beforevion for income taxes and minority interest irtgs the following components |
thousands):

2004 2005 2006
Pre-tax income
United State: $ 2,21% $(12,517) $(6,537)
Foreign 10,89( 4,73¢ 7,037
Total pretax income (loss $13,10: $ (7,779) $ 504
The Company'’s provision (benefit) for income taressists of the following (in thousands):
2004 2005 2006
Current:
Federal $ 75€ $(4,567) $1,43i
State 122 694 504
Foreign 2,691 1,05% 2,54¢
3,56¢ (2,810 4,48¢
Tax effect of stock option benefi 907 90t 13z
Change in valuation allowan — 60¢ 201
Deferred (1,160 (4,013 (3,739
Total provision (benefit) for income tax $ 3,31¢ $(5,309) $ 1,09(

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxethe undistributed earnings of the foreign subsies, as it is the Company’s
intention to utilize those earnings in the fore@perations for an indefinite period of time. At &80, 2006, undistributed earnings of the
foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $24,000. It is not practical to determine the antafrincome or withholding tax that wou
be payable upon the remittance of these earnings.

F-36



Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at June@tsisted of the following (in thousands):

2005 2006
Deferred income tax asse
State income tax credit carry forwai $ 2,75¢ $ 2,86¢
Federal income tax credit carry forwai — 1,31¢
Net operating loss carry forwar 5,84¢ 2,76
Revitalization zone deductiol 967 967
Allowance for doubtful accoun 1,93« 961
Inventory reservi 1,467 2,56¢
Provision for losses on lo-term contract: 27¢€ 10
Inventory capitalizatiol 2,974 4,031
Accrued liabilities 3,40( 1,921
State Tax Rate Adjustme — 62
Other asset 4,38: 7,77C
Total deferred income tax ass 24,00 25,24
Valuation allowanct (2,04%) (2,249
Net deferred income tax ass 21,96 22,991
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Depreciatior (2,70%) (2,240
State income taxe (1,51¢ (1,410
Amortization of intangible asse (10,437 (9,837%)
Spacelabs minority intere — (4,027
Other liabilities (2,396 (1,096
Total deferred income tax liabilitie (17,05¢) (18,609
Net deferred income tax: $ 4,90¢ $ 4,39

As of June 30, 2006, the Company has federal rextatipg loss carry forwards of approximately $7,899 and no state net operating
loss carry forwards. The Company’s federal net afieg losses will begin to expire in the tax yeadiag June 30, 2013.

As of June 30, 2006, the Company had federal coadiyy forwards, including research and developraadtforeign tax credits of
approximately $1,319,000 and state credit carrwéods, including research and development revétbn zone credits, of approximately
$3,832,000. The Company’s federal tax credits aljin to expire in the tax year ending June 301201d the state credit carry forwards will
begin to expire in the tax year ending June 307200

The Company has established a valuation allowaneedordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 108 Valuation allowance relates
to the net operating loss of a subsidiary, suliie&eparate Return Limitation Year rules, an utizedlcapital loss related to a writlewn of ar
equity investment, as well as an acquired capitsd tarry forward. The Company continually revighesadequacy of valuation allowances
releases the allowances when it is determinedttigimore likely than not that the benefits wi# bealized. As of June 30, 2006, the Company
has a tax contingency reserve of approximately $#bfor a variety of specific uncertain tax pasit which is included in income taxes
payable on the consolidated balance sheet.
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The consolidated effective income tax rate diffeosn the federal statutory income tax rate due priy to the following:

2004 2005 2006
Provision for income taxes at federal statutorg 35.(% (35.00% 35.(%
State income taxes and cre—net of federal benef 0.6 (11.0 66.7
Research and development tax cre — (24.1) —
Subpart F incom — 5.6 44.¢
Homeland Investment Act Divider — — 327.¢
SFAS 123(R) stock options adjustm — — 146.4
Foreign income subject to tax at other than fedsetltory rate (7.7) (2.6) (383.9)
Nondeductible expens: 0.9 5.6 126.:
Other — (4.8 (6.7)
Change in valuation allowan: — 7.8 39.¢
Favorable determination of income tax contingen (3.5 (9.9 (279.9
Effective income tax rat 25.2% (68.9% 216.2%

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Lease—The Company leases many of its production andefficilities and certain equipment. Most of thesases provid
for increases in rents based on the Consumer Prilex, or some other benchmarks, and include reheptens ranging from six months to
years. Future minimum lease payments under suskdess of June 30, 2006 are as follows (in thows3e

2007 $10,07¢(
2008 8,01
2009 6,73¢
2010 5,90
2011 4.,85(
2012 and thereafte 15,50¢
Total $51,08(

Total rent expense included in the accompanyingalidated financial statements was $4.5 million,1$8illion and $9.7 million for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 2005 and 208gectvely.

In October 2004, Spacelabs Medical amended twapreglerty leases covering office and manufactufagities in Issaquah,
Washington. Under the amendments, Spacelabs Megitathded the term of such leases by approximaialyears and relinquished certain
options it held to terminate portions of such |sasarly. As a result, the leases now expire in Bdoeg 2014. In consideration, the landlord |
the Company $2.0 million in cash which has beeondied as deferred rent to be amortized over thaireng term of the lease. The leases are
accounted for as operating leases.

Commitments—In November 2004, the Company entered into anemgeat with an original equipment manufacturer teigle and
manufacture a patient monitor for Spacelabs Medida® agreement specifies that Spacelabs Medidiabwy a minimum number of monitors
from the manufacturer during each year of the emttat a fixed price. Spacelabs Medical may prot@enonths’ notice to terminate the
agreement without
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cause after the second year of the contract. Ghisrtermination clause, Spacelabs Medical’s mimmnpurchase commitment under this
agreement is three years of purchases, which tapggoximately $8.9 million. The Company expecttate delivery on the first units under
this contract within the 2007 fiscal year.

In fiscal year 2005, the Company committed to emiter new leases for computer equipment associaigda master lease agreement
previously entered into with Dell Financial Sendc@he master lease agreement provided for thentpaé computer equipment over a period
of 36 months. The new leases that are associatedive master lease agreement have been recordegitas leases. The master lease
agreement permits the Company to lease up to $illibnmn equipment. During fiscal year 2005, ther@pany committed to a total of
approximately $0.7 million of equipment under tagreement and does not currently expect to conangihy additional leases of equipment.
As of June 30, 2006, $0.2 million was outstandindar these capital lease obligations.

Under the terms and conditions of the purchaseeageats associated with the following five acquisisi, the Company may be obligated
to make additional payments:

In August 2002, the Company purchased a minoritytgdnterest in CXR, a U.K. based research ancctipment company that
develops real time tomography systems. In June, 28@4Company increased its equity interest in GXRpproximately 75% and in Decem
2004 the Company acquired the remaining 25%. Aspemrsation to the selling shareholders for this ieimg interest the Company has agr
to make certain royalty payments based on sal€xX&¥'s products.

In November 2002, the Company acquired all thetanting capital stock of Ancore (since renamed &agpi Systems Neutronics and
Advanced Technologies Corporation), a Santa C@aéifornia based company, for its advanced inspadtystems for aviation security, port
and border inspection and counter-terrorism. Caraitbn paid for the acquisition consisted of a boration of the Compang’Common Stoc
and cash of approximately $10.4 million includimgfessional fees associated with the acquisitioraddition, during the five years following
the close, contingent consideration is payabledasehe sales of certain of its products. Theiogent consideration is capped at $34.0
million. As of June 30, 2006, no contingent coneadien has been earned or paid.

In January 2004, the Company completed the acourisif ARACOR (since renamed Rapiscan Systems Higgrgy Inspection
Corporation), a privately held company located imi$yvale, California. Consideration for the acdiosi consisted of an initial cash payment
of approximately $17.6 million (net of cash acqd}éncluding acquisition costs. Furthermore, dgrihe seven years following the close,
contingent consideration is payable based on itsavenues, provided certain requirements are Tiegt.contingent consideration is capped at
$30.0 million. As of June 30, 2006, no contingemrigideration has been earned or paid.

In March 2004, the Company completed the acquisibbSpacelabs Medical from Instrumentarium Corpiora As a result of this
acquisition, the Company assumed management ratembinus agreements for key personnel of Spac®lalgal which could amount to $£
million. These retention bonuses vest over a twaryperiod beginning either October 2003 or MarcbfL®s of June 30, 2005, a balance of
$2.1 million was included in accrued payroll anthted expenses for these retention bonuses. Theo@opnmade all remaining payouts
associated with these retention bonuses duringlfiszar 2006.

In February 2005, the Company completed the adepnspf Blease for approximately $9.3 million inste(net of cash acquired),
including acquisition costs. Furthermore, during three years following the close, contingent adersition is payable based on Blease’s net
revenues, provided certain requirements are met.cohtingent consideration is capped at £6.25anil{approximately $11.6 million as of
June 30, 2006). As of June 30, 2006, no contingemsideration has been earned or paid.

F-39



Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Environmental Contingencies—The Company is subject to various federal, statklacal environmental laws, ordinances and
regulations relating to the use, storage, handlimdydisposal of certain hazardous substances asteswased or generated in the manufacturing
and assembly of our products. Under such lawsCtimapany may become liable for the costs of remowa¢mediation of certain hazardous
substances that have been released on or in ilisiéawmr that have been disposed of off-site aste. Such laws may impose liability without
regard to whether the Company knew of or causedetlease of such hazardous substances. The Corhpargpnducted Phase | environme
site assessments for each of its properties iblttied States at which the Company manufacturedyats. The purpose of each such report is
to identify, as of the date of such report, potrgburces of contamination of the property froratand present activities or from nearby
operations. In certain cases, the Company has ctediturther environmental assessments consisfisgilband groundwater testing and other
investigations deemed appropriate by independente@mmental consultants. The Company believesithatcurrently in compliance with all
material environmental regulations in connectiothvitis manufacturing operations, and that it hasioled all material environmental permits
necessary to conduct business.

During one investigation, the Company discoverabasa groundwater contamination at its Hawthoalifornia facility. The Compar
filed the requisite reports concerning this probleith the appropriate environmental authoritiefiscal year 2001. The Company has not yet
received any response to such reports, and no agetion or litigation is presently pending or thtrened. The Company also has notified the
prior owners of the facility and the present owraard tenants of adjacent properties concerningrblelem and has requested from such pe
agreements to toll of the statute of limitationshwiespect to actions against such parties witheretso the contamination in order that the
Company may focus its attention on resolution ef¢bhntamination problem. The Company’s site wasipusly used for semiconductor
manufacturing similar to that presently conductadhe site by the Company, and it is not preseattywn who is responsible for the
contamination and the remediation. The groundwatatamination is a known regional problem, notiedito the Company’s premises or its
immediate surroundings.

The Company has also been informed of soil andrgheater remediation efforts at a facility thatkesrson Technologies subsidiary
previously leased in Ocean Springs, Mississippisé® Technologies occupied the facility until O&pB003. The Company believes that the
owner and previous occupants of the facility hasmnary responsibility for such remediation and hameagreement with the facility’s owner
under which the owner is responsible for remedatibpre-existing conditions. However, the Companynable at this time to ascertain
whether Ferson Technologies bears any exposurerfoediation costs under applicable environmentallegions. In accordance with SFAS
No. 5,“Accounting for Contingenciesthe Company has not accrued for loss contingemelating to the above environmental matters bec
it believes that, although unfavorable outcomes b®possible, they are not considered by managetméet probable or reasonably estima
If one or more of these matters is resolved in ameaadverse to the Company, the impact on the @oyp results of operations, financial
position and/or liquidity could be material.

Legal Proceedings— In November 2002, 13- Communications Corporation brought suit against@ompany in the District Court for t
Southern District of New York seeking a declaratoggment that L-3 Communications Corporation hatbreached its obligations
concerning the acquisition of PerkinElmer’'s Seguletection Systems Business. The Company assestederclaims against L-3
Communications Corporation for, among other thitigajd and breach of fiduciary duty. On May 24, @0e jury in the case returned a
verdict in the Company’s favor and awarded $12%ionilin damages. The jury found that L-3 Commuriaag Corporation had breached its
fiduciary duty to the Company and had committedidral he jury awarded the Company $33 million in pemsatory damages and $92 million
in punitive damages. In addition, the jury alsorfduhat the Company had breached a confidentiadjtgement and awarded L-3
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Communications Corporation nominal damages of aflad L-3 Communications Corporation is seekindnéwe the verdict reduced or set
aside.

During 2003 and 2004, the Company was informed3$cénce Applications International CorporationAtS”) had made statements to
prospective buyers of the Company’s gamma ray raastection system product that the product inéthgpon unspecified SAIC patents. In
April 2004, the Company received a letter from SAlgecifying a patent upon which SAIC claimed thedoict infringed. Contrary to SAIC’s
claim, the patent cited by SAIC actually distindwgd the technology used in the Company’s produatdifferent, presxisting technology. Th
Company therefore filed a lawsuit in the U.S. Dit€ourt, Central District of California for decktory judgment. SAIC has since counter-
claimed for patent infringement, citing the sameepg and unfair competition.

In March 2004, certain individuals named the Conypamd its subsidiary, Spacelabs Medical, as wedl hespital located in Bexar
County, Texas, in a petition claiming that the indiials suffered injuries in March 2003 causedpant, by a defective monitoring system
manufactured by Spacelabs Medical. The amounteo€lim has not yet been specified. The petitios filad in the 28% Judicial District
Court in Bexar County, Texas.

In April 2004, certain individuals named Spacelbteglical as well as several other defendants, ietiign that alleges, among other
things, that a product possibly manufactured bycBlados Medical failed to properly monitor a hodpi@tient thereby contributing to the
patient’'s death in November 2001. The amount oftthn has not yet been specified. The petition filed in the 215t Judicial District Court,
Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana.

In February 2005, Electromedical, a Greek distidrutompany, filed an action in the courts of Geeelaiming that Spacelabs Medical
orally agreed to appoint Electromedical as Spaséktciusive Greek distributor, but failed to do Etectromedical claims that it incurred
significant expenses as a result of Spacelab®@etind demands Euro 872,414 (approximately $lllibmas of June 30, 2006) in
compensation.

In October 2005, Security Detection Systems, liedfa complaint alleging that certain “Metor” bchpeople screening systems sold by
the Security division infringe a specified pateatchby Security Detection Systems, Inc. On JulyZZI06, the parties settled the matter
dismissing all related claims and counterclaimsdéfrthe terms of the settlement the Company will $E00,000 in fiscal year 2007.

The Company is also involved in various other ckaand legal proceedings arising out of the ordimayrse of business which have not
been previously disclosed in our quarterly and ahmeports. In management’s opinion after consioltatvith legal counsel, the ultimate
disposition of such proceedings will not have aariat adverse effect on the Company’s financialtpms future results of operations, or cash
flows.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitandards (“SFAS”) No. 5, “Accounting for Contérgies,” we have not accrued
for loss contingencies relating to the above matiecause we believe that, although unfavorableomas in the proceedings may be possible,
they are not considered by management to be prelmalveasonably estimable. If one or more of timeatters are resolved in a manner adverse
to us, the impact on our results of operationgroial position and/or liquidity could be material.
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12. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Stock Repurchase Prograrr

In March 1999, the Board of Directors institutestack repurchase program under which the Comparyanthorized to purchase up to a
total of 2,000,000 shares of its Common Stock. Atune 30, 2004, the Company had repurchased 5@@4hares at an average price of $
per share. In September 2004, the Company repwedhd7,500 shares of its Common Stock at an avenaghase price of $14.73 per share
and increased the number of shares available porcease under the stock repurchase program b9,000 shares. In May 2005, the
Company repurchased 157,027 shares of Common Sta@skaverage price of $14.25 per share. At Jup2@®ibB, 1,330,973 shares were
available for repurchase under the stock repurchesgram. The stock repurchase program did not hawaterial effect on the Company’s
liquidity and is not expected to have a materigééafon liquidity in subsequent quarters. The Conypetires the treasury shares as they are
repurchased, and they are disclosed as a reddmimncommon shares in the accompanying consolidatedcial statements.

Warrants

In October 2002, the Company issued and sold areggte of 1,250,000 shares of Common Stock invateriplacement to institutional
investors for an aggregate sales price of $21,600 After agent’s commissions and expenses, neepds to the Company were $20,500,000.
As part of the transaction, the Company issuetieédrivestors warrants to purchase 281,250 additghaes of the CompargyCommon Stoc
at an exercise price of $21.22 per share exer@sattdny time, in full or part, no later than Oa&pB1, 2009. The fair value of the warrants was
estimated at $3,365,000 using the Black-Scholesmptricing model with the following weighted-avgemassumptions: expected option life of
seven years, dividend yield of 0%, volatility ofd8%nd a risk-free interest rate of 3.18%. Thevalue of these warrants is included with the
proceeds from the private placement under the camshares balance as of June 30, 2004 and 2008Cdieany filed a registration
statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exgh&ommission on November 14, 2002 for the purpbsegistering these securities.

In June 2004, the Company issued and sold an aafgref 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock in a gripltcement to institutional
investors for an aggregate sales price of $32,800 After agent’s commissions and expenses, neepds to the Company were $31,000,000.
As part of the transaction, the Company issueti¢drivestors warrants to purchase 337,500 additgireaes of the ComparsyCommon Stoc
at an exercise price of $27.73 per share exer@satdny time, in full or part, no later than Jan@011. The fair value of the warrants was
estimated at $6,152,000 using the Black-Scholesmptricing model with the following weighted-avgemassumptions: expected option life of
seven years, dividend yield of 0%, volatility of%@&nd a risk-free interest rate of 4.45%. Thevalue of these warrants is included with the
proceeds from the private placement under the camshares balance as of June 30, 2004 and 2008Cdieany filed a registration
statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Engh& ommission on October 13, 2004 for the purpbsegistering these securities.

During fiscal year 2006, 84,847 warrants, at exsergirice of $15, were exercised, resulting in metg@eds to the Company of $1,273,000
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The following summarizes pricing and term informatfor warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2006:

Warrants Outstanding

Number Remaining
Outstanding at Contractual Life
Exercise Prices June 30, 2006 (Years)
$21.22 281,25( 3.31
$23.47 621,00( 2.3¢€
$27.73 337,50( 4.92

13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 1994, the Company, together with an unrelatbérotompany, formed ECIL-Rapiscan Security Produictsted, a joint venture
organized under the laws of India. The Company cavB6% interest in the joint venture, the Compawfiairman and chief executive officer
owns a 10.5% interest, and the president of theg@myis Security division owns a 4.5% ownershipriese. The Company’s initial investment
was $108,000. For the years ended June 30, 2008,&® 2006, the Company’s equity earnings indh@ yenture amounted to $317,000,
$213,000 and $432,000 respectively, and were ieclud SG&A expenses. During the year ended Jun2@1l,, the Company increased its
initial investment by $39,000. The Company’s owh@grsnterest remained at 36% as all the sharehslidereased their respective investments
proportionately. The Company, its chairman andfatxecutive officer and the president of Comparg§ésurity division collectively control
less than 50% of the board of directors voting powehe joint venture. As a result, the Compangoamts for the investment under the equity
method of accounting. The joint venture was forrfe@@dhe purpose of the manufacture, assembly, setand testing of security and inspection
systems and other products. Some of the CompanpSdiaries are suppliers to the joint venturergartwhich in turn manufactures and sells
the resulting products. Sales to the joint venpagner for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20085 2and 2006 were approximately $677,000,
$178,000 and $96,000 respectively.

The Company contracts with entities owned by daecof the Company to provide messenger servide,reatal and printing services.
Included in cost of sales, selling, general andiathtnative expenses for the fiscal years endea B 2004, 2005 and 2006 are approximately
$70,000, $60,000 and $60,000 for messenger seamit@uto rental and $73,000, $67,000 and $79,00frifating services, respectively.

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a qualified employee retiremerihgawplan. The plan provides for a contributiontby Company, which i
determined annually by the Board of Directors. ddition, the plan permits voluntary salary reducttmntributions by employees. The
Company contributed $239,000, $1,057,000 and $10062the plan for the fiscal years ended June 30422005 and 2006, respectively.

During 2000, AME established a defined contribufden. The plan provides for contributions by AMEadixed percentage of employ
salaries. Contributions made during the fiscal yemded June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006 by AME werezaimately $149,000, $164,000 and
$201,000 respectively.

A defined benefit plan established by Rapiscane®gstLimited covers certain Rapiscan Systems Lingtagloyees in the U.K. The
benefits under this plan are based on years ofcgeand an employee’s highest 12 months’ compemsatirring the last five years of
employment.

Rapiscan Systems Limited’s funding policy is to make minimum annual contributions required by eyalle regulations based on an
independent actuarial valuation sufficient to pdevfor benefits accruing
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after that date. The following provides a recoatitin of the changes in the plan’s benefit obligathnd fair value of assets for fiscal years
2005 and 2006, and a statement of the funded stata§June 30, 2005 and as of June 30, 2006dirs&nds):

2005 2006
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 3,44¢ $ 4,092
Translation adjustmel (38) 13¢
Service cost 61 33
Interest cost 18¢€ 187
Plan participan’ contributions 14 15
Actuarial loss (gain 42¢ (93
Actuarial loss from settleme — —
Benefits paic (7) (165)
Benefit obligation at end of ye 4,092 4,207
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ 1,79¢ 2,29:
Translation adjustmel (20) 76
Actual return on plan asse 294 26E
Company contribution 21¢ 244
Plan participan’ contributions 14 15
Benefits paic (7) (165)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 2,29: 2,72¢
Funded statu (2,799 (1,479
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 1,68¢ 977
Net amount recognize $ (110 $ (502
Amount recognized in balance sheets consis

Accumulated other comprehensive inco $1,70¢ $ 98C

Accrued pension liabilit (1,819 (1,482

Net amount recognize $ (110 $ (502

2004 2005 2006

Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 60 $ 63 $ 32
Interest cost 16E 19t 18C
Expected return on plan ass (85) (10¢) (123)
Amortization of prior service cos — — —
Settlement cos 20¢€ — —
Recognized actuarial lo: 13¢ 11€ 121
Net periodic benefit co: $48E $ 26€ $ 21C

The accumulated benefit obligation for the RapisBgstems Limited defined benefit plan was approxaiya$4.1 million as of June 30,
2005 and $4.2 million as of June 30, 2006.
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Plan Assumptions

2008 200¢
Weighted average assumptions at -end:
Discount rate 5.0% 5.2%
Expected return on plan ass 6.4% 6.7%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0% 3.C%

The long term return on assets has been derivedtiie weighted average of assumed returns on ddbk major asset categories. The
weighted average is based on the actual proposfi@ach major asset class held, rather than a bearé&hportfolio of assets. The expected
returns for each major asset class have been ddrive a combination of both historical market retuand current market data as well as the

views of a range of investment managers.

Rate of compensation increase was estimated at 808bJune 30, 2005. As of June 30, 2006 thetdireof the Rapiscan Systems
Limited defined benefit plan have assumed rateoaiensation increase to be 3.0% to reflect projectenpensation for the employees in the
Rapiscan Systems Limited covered by the plan.

Plan Assets and Investment Policy

Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006
Proportion of Expected Rat¢ Proportion of Expected Ratt
Fair Value of Return Fair Value of Return
Equity securitie: 52.6% 8.C% 58.5% 8.C%
Debt securitie: 44.2% 4.6% 37.5% 5.C%
Other 3.1% 4.C% 4.C% 4.C%
Combined 100.(% 6.4% 100.(% 6.7%

The defined benefit plan’s assets are investedémge of pooled investment funds that provide s€te a diverse range of asset classes.
The investment objective is to maximize the investtireturn over the long term without exposingftived to an unnecessary level of risk.
Within this objective, it is recognized that betefiill be secured by the purchase of annuitighe@time of employee retirement.

The benchmark of the Trustees of the Rapiscan Sgstémited defined benefit plan is to hold assetally in the proportion 50% equ
securities and 50% debt securities. This propoigailowed to fluctuate with market movements andot formally rebalanced. The equity
holdings are maintained in a balanced fund, withdlcision on whether to hold U.K. equities or bi- equities being under the control of
the investment manager. Typically this proportisrlose to 65% U.K. and 35% non-U.K. equities. @bt securities are predominantly from
the U.K., with 70% held in U.K. government bondat$y and the balance held in corporate stock.

Day-to-day equities selection decisions are deéghyt the investment manager, although these angoned against performance and
risk targets. Due to the nature of the pooled futttsre are no significant holdings in any singlenpany (greater than 5% of the total assets).
The investment strategy is reviewed on a regulaisb@ased on the results of the liability studies.
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Projected Benefit Payments
The following table reflects estimated benefitsipants, based upon the same assumptions used tamadas benefit obligation and r
pension cost, as of June 30, 2006 (in thousands):

Pension Benefit

Fiscal Period

July 1, 2006 to June 30, 20 $ 44z
July 1, 2007 to June 30, 20 35
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 20 10C
July 1, 2009 to June 30, 20 37
July 1, 2010 to June 30, 20 744
July 1, 2011 to June 30, 20 603

Company Contribution

Currently, the agreed Company contribution rat23id% of pensionable salaries, plus $4,400 per mavith death-in-service insurance
premiums being paid in addition. If the Companytdbations continue at the current rate, the edthaotal Company contributions for the
fiscal year 2007 will be $225,700.

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosaiesit Segments of an Enterprise and Related Intaynig“SFAS No. 131”).The
Company has reflected the provisions of SFAS Nd.ih3he accompanying consolidated financial stetesifor all periods presented. The
Company operates in three identifiable industrynsemts, (a) security and inspection systems (“Sscdivision”), (b) medical monitoring and
anesthesia systems (“Healthcare division”), anabftdelectronic devices and manufacturing (“Optcetics and Manufacturing division”).
The Company also has a corporate segment (“Corgidtthat includes executive compensation and ged#ier general and administrative
expenses, expenses related to stock issuancesgaiddudit and other professional service feeshmtated to product segments. Both the
Security and Healthcare divisions comprise primagitd-product businesses whereas the businesas Optoelectronics and Manufacturing
division comprises business that primarily supmlynponents and subsystems to original equipment faetuers, including to businesses of
the Security and Healthcare divisions. Sales batvwdddsions are at transfer prices that are eqaiviaio market values. All other accounting
policies of the segments are the same as desdribféote 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Padigi
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The following tables present the operations andtiflable assets by industry segment (in thousands)

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segments asse
Capital expenditure

Depreciatior

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segment asse
Capital expenditure

Depreciatior

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

2004

Optoelectronics

and
. Healthcare  Manufacturing Eliminations ~ Consolidatec
Security
Division Division Division Corporate
$117,74¢  $ 60,69t $ 68,62 $ — $ — $ 247,06
$ — $ — $ 1538 $ — $(1538) $ —
$117,74¢ $ 60,69 $ 84,01( $ —  $ (1538) $ 247,06¢
$1047¢ $ 83 $ 10,117 $(7,74) $ (5360 $ 12,39
$134,66! $112,88¢ $ 47,267 $39,59¢ $ (2,61¢ $ 331,80:
$ 91C $ 191« $ 1,167 $ 141 $ — $ 5,40/
$ 1,762 % 351 $ 161€¢ $ 23¢ $ — $ 3,96¢
2005
Optoelectronics
and ]
. Healthcare  Manufacturing Eliminations Consolidatec
Security
Division Division Division Corporate
$123,19°7 $195,69¢ $ 66,14¢ $ — $ — $ 385,04:
$ — $ — 8 18,41 $ — $ (18,41) $ —
$123,19° $19569¢ $ 8455¢ $ — $ (18,41) $ 385,04
$ (5439 $ 839« $  6,15¢ $(15420 $ (675 $ (6,980
$143,16¢ $127,90¢ $ 57,44¢ $21,60: $ (3,009 $ 347,12
$11,41C $ 398 $ 258 & (399 $ — $ 17,58¢
$ 2,78 $ 167¢ $ 182« $ 324 $ — $ 6,61C
2006
Optoelectronics
and )
S . Healthcare  Manufacturing Eliminations Consolidatec
ecurity
Division Division Division Corporate
$135,08¢ $220,62: $ 96,970 $ — $ — $ 452,68t
$ — $ — $ 2889 $ — $(2889) $ —




Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segment asse
Capital expenditure

Depreciatior

$135,08¢ $220,62: $ 12587( $ —  $ (28,89) $ 452,68
$ (640) $1466( $ 1250: $(24,78) $ (768 $ 971
$169,19° $149,19¢ $  74,02¢ $T,70< $ (8,637 $ 403,49
$ 563 $ 5912 $ 346: $ 1,000 $ — $ 16,02
$ 4966 $ 305 $ 2120 $ 417 $ — $ 10,56¢
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The following tables present the revenues and ifigole assets by geographical area (in thousands):

2004
Total
North Eliminations Consolidatec
America Europe Asia
Revenues
External customer reveni $181,56¢ $49,077 $16,42. % — $ 247,06¢
Revenue between product segme 3,512 — 11,87( (15,387 —
Total revenue $185,08: $49,077  $28,29: $ (15,38) $ 247,06
Long-lived asset: $ 80,787 $ 7,69¢ $ 1,63¢ $ 90,12/
2005
o Totgil
North Eliminations Consolidatec
America Europe Asia
Revenues
External customer reveni $293,87: $69,61¢ $21,55. % — $ 385,04
Revenue between product segme 7,67¢ — 10,73 (18,417 —
Total revenue $301,55( $69,61¢ $32,28¢ $ (18,417 $ 385,04
Long-lived asset: $ 81,53( $25,42t $ 2,38: $ 109,33t
2006
o Totgil
North Eliminations Consolidatec
America Europe Asia
Revenues
External customer reveni $324,03: $105,55: $23,10: $ — $ 452,68t
Revenue between product segme $ 16,45 — $12,44¢ $ (28,89)) —
Total revenug $340,48. $105,55: $35,54¢ $ (28,89) $ 452,68t
Long-lived asset: $ 84,76( $ 30,92( $ 3,76: $ 119,44

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 31, 2006, the Company’s majority-owned gliasy, Spacelabs Healthcare, acquired the Del Rimolds Cardiac division of
Ferraris Group PLC, a company registered in EngéandiWales. Consideration of the acquired operatimmsisted of an initial cash payment
of £13.9 million ($25.2 million), subject to an adfment of plus or minus £1 million ($1.8 milliohJune 30, 2006) based upon revenue and
earnings results for Del Mar Reynolds for the 13athgeriod ending September 30, 2006. Furthernuan@jngent consideration of up to £5
million ($9.2 million at June 30, 2006) is payalfl®el Mar Reynolds achieves certain revenue targeting fiscal year 2007. The additional
earn-out, if any, may be satisfied, at Spacelalatheare’s discretion, either in cash or by theassxe of Spacelabs Healthcare common stock.
This acquisition broadens the portfolio of produtist the Company’s Healthcare division is ableffer the hospital market with the addition
of cardiac monitoring systems. Del Mar Reynold® aiffers a core laboratory business that providiegal trial services to pharmaceutical
companies and to clinical research organizations

In order to provide the Company’s majority-owned&gdabs Healthcare subsidiary with a separateoficeedit, the Company bifurcated
its arrangement with Bank of the West. As a resuitJuly 18, 2006, the
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Company entered into a Third Amended and RestateditCAgreement with Bank of the West. As amendled ,agreement provides for a $35
million senior revolving line of credit, includirg letter-of-credit and foreign exchange facilitygclk of which are secured by substantially all of
the Company’s U.S. assets, including its stock gahip amounting to 80% of the outstanding equitpécelabs Healthcare, and the assets of
the U.S. subsidiaries of the Compasngecurity and Optoelectronics and Manufacturingsitins. Interest on the revolving loans is basedhe
Company’s option, on either the bank’s prime rdts pip to 0.5% (based on the Company'’s financidbpeance), or on the British Bankers
Association Interest Settlement Rate for depositd.5. dollars plus up to 2.5% (based on the Cowigdinmancial performance). The Compi
has made customary representations, warrantiesashants in the Third Amended and Restated CAggitement, including certain financ
covenants, such as maintaining a specified tangilavorth; ratio of total liabilities to effectitangible net worth; ratio of earnings before
interest and taxes to interest paid in cash; prdetss limitations; and capital expenditure limibats, among others. The agreement expires on
July 18, 2009.

On July 18, 2006, Spacelabs Healthcare also eniet@d Credit Agreement with Bank of the West. Hgeeement provides for a $10
million senior revolving line of credit, including letter-of-credit and foreign exchange facilitydaa $27.4 million loan to fund the purchase of
the Del Mar Reynolds cardiology division of Fersa@roup PLC, a company organized in England and8Valhe Credit Agreement is secu
by substantially all of the assets of the U.S. &liages of the Company’s Healthcare division. tett on the revolving loans is based, at
Spacelabs Healthcare’s option, on either the bagmkrse rate, plus up to 0.5% (based on Spacelab#hi¢are’s financial performance), or on
the British Bankers Association Interest Settlenieate for deposits in U.S. dollars plus up to 2(B%sed on Spacelabs Healthcare's financial
performance). Spacelabs Healthcare has made custoepresentations, warranties and covenants i€tkdit Agreement, including certain
financial covenants such as maintaining a spectfiadible net worth; ratio of current assets taenirliabilities; ratio of earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortizationdessfinanced capital expenditures and dividendd padeclared to interest paid plus the
current portion of long-term debt and capitalizease obligations; and ratio of indebtedness tamgsrbefore interest taxes depreciation and
amortization, among others. The agreement expiteRity 18, 2009. There were no amounts outstaraingf June 30, 2006 under this
agreement.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)

Additions
Balance a Charged
: Balance a
Beginning Charged ;::(EE?]L Deductions-
to costs ) end of
Description of period and expense Write-offs period
Balance for doubtful account
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 1,09¢ $ 287 $ 611 $ 774
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 774 $ 4,00t $ 97 $ 4,682
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 4,68 $ 2,792 — $ 4,47¢ $ 2,99¢
Balance for warranty reser
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 2,78: $ 2,71¢ $7,7141) $ 4,02¢ $ 9,19(
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 9,19( $ 5,55¢ $ 464 $ 8,57%(2) $ 6,641
Year ended June 30, 20 $ 6,641 $ 6,60¢ $ — $ 6,02¢ $ 7,224

(1) Included in the additions to the warranty reseelie fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is $7,7 Hlditional warranty reserves relating
to the acquisitions completed during fiscal yead22!
(2) This amount includes a $2,148 change in estimatthéwarranty reserve in the fiscal year endee 3 2005
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

OSI SYSTEMS, INC
(Registrant,

Date: September 20, 20 /sl ANUIW ADHAWAN
By:

Anuj Wadhawan, Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons, on beh
of the registrant, and in the capacities and ordttes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  DEepPAK C HOPRA Chairman of the Boart September 20, 20C
President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Deepak Chopra Executive Officer;
/sl ANUJW ADHAWAN Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial a September 20, 20(

Accounting Officer)
Anuj Wadhawan

/sl AJAY M EHRA Executive Vice President, President of Rapiscan September 20, 2006
Systems and Director
Ajay Mehra
/s/  StevenC. Goob Director September 20, 2006

Steven C. Good

/sl MEYERL USKIN Director September 20, 2006
Meyer Luskin
/s CHAND R. V ISWANATHAN Director September 20, 20C

Chand R. Viswanathan
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Previously filed with our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2C
Previously filed with our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2C
Previously filed with our Current Report on For-K filed February 14, 200t

Previously filed with our Current Report on For-K filed November 4, 200t

Previously filed with our Current Report on For-K filed July 24, 2006

Previously filed with our Current Report on For-K filed July 31, 2006

Previously filed with our Current Report on For-K filed August 4, 2006



SUBSIDIARIES OF OSI SYSTEMS, INC.

Advanced Micro Electronics A
Blease Medical Equipment Limite
Blease Medical Holdings Limite
Blease Medical Services Limite
Corrigan Canada, Lt

CXR Limited

Del Mar Reynolds Gmbt

Del Mar Reynolds Medical, In

Del Mar Reynolds Medical Limite
Dolphin Medical, Inc

Dolphin Medical Pte Ltd

Ferson Technologies, In

Hertford Cardiology Limitec

Hertford Medical International Limite
Metorex Security Products, In

Opto Sensors (Hong Kong) Limite
Opto Sensors (Malaysia) Sdn. Bl
Opto Sensors (Singapore) Pte. L
OSI Defense Systems, L.L.

OSI Electronics, Inc

OSI Electronics Pte. Lt

OSI Fibercomm, Inc

OSI Medical (Singapore) Pte. Lt
OSI Optoelectronics, In

OSI Optoelectronics Limite

OSI Optoelectronics Private Limite
OSI Systems Pvt. Lt

Osteometer MediTech, In

Rapiscan Systems Pte. L

Rapiscan Systems Sdn. Bl
Rapiscan Security Products, li
Rapiscan Systems, In

Rapiscan Systems High Energy Inspection Corpor:i
Rapiscan Systems Holdings,
Rapiscan Systems Hong Kong Limit
Rapiscan Systems Limite

Rapiscan Systems Neutronics and Advanced Techmaldprporatiol
Rapiscan Systems C

RapiTec, Inc

SL Healthcare Limite:

Spacelabs Healthcare, It

Spacelabs Healthcare Solutions Private Lim
Spacelabs Medical (Canada) I
Spacelabs Medical Finland (
Spacelabs Medical Germany Gm
Spacelabs Medical, In

Spacelabs Medical SA

Spacelabs Medical Trading (Shanghai) Co.,
Spacelabs Medical UK Limite
Spacelabs (Singapore) Pte. L

Horten, Norway
Chesham, United Kingdol
Chesham, United Kingdol
Chesham, United Kingdol
Ontario, Canad

Surrey, United Kingdon
Feucht, German

Irvine, California
Birmingham, United Kingdon
Hawthorne, Californi:
Singapore

Ocean Springs, Mississip
Birmingham, United Kingdon
Birmingham, United Kingdor
Ewing, New Jerse

Hong Kong

Johor Bahru, Malaysi
Singapore

Orlando, Floride
Camarillo, Californie
Singapore

Hawthorne, Californi:
Singapore

Hawthorne, Californii
Nicosia, Cyprus

Andhra Pradesh, Ind
Secunderabad, Ind
Hawthorne, Californi:
Singapore

Johor Bahru, Malaysi
Hawthorne, Californi:
Hawthorne, Californi:
Sunnyvale, Californii
Hawthorne, Californi:
Hong Kong

Salfords, United Kingdor
Santa Clara, Californi
Espoo, Finlanc

Upland, Californie
Nicosia, Cyprus
Issaquah, Washingtc
Andhra Pradesh, Ind
Ontario, Canad

Espoo, Finlanc
Dusseldorf, German
Issaquah, Washingtc
Creteil, Franct

Shanghai, Chin
Chesham, United Kingdol
Singapore

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
OSI Systems, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-106176, 333-122673,68133 and 333-132142 on
Form S-8 and in Registration Statement Nos. 333049333-75228, 333-73618, 333-100791 and 333-1®drAlForm S-3 of our report dated
September 28, 2005, relating to the consolidateahfiial statements and financial statement sched @S| Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries,
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of @8stems, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year edded 30, 2006.

/s/ DELOITTE& T OUCHELLP

Los Angeles, Californi
September 20, 20(



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
OSI Systems, Inc.

We consent to the inclusion in this Annual Reporform 10-K of OSI Systems, Inc. for the year endiéte 30, 2006 and to the
incorporation by reference in Registration Statet®en Forms S-8 (No. 333-106176, 333-122674, 3388%nd 333-132142) and in
Registration Statements on Forms S-3 (No. 333-149383-75228, 333-73618, 333-100791 and 338716) of OSI Systems, Inc of our reg
dated September 20, 2006 appearing in Item 8 nAhnual Report on Form 10-K, of our report dategt8mber 20, 2006 on the financial
statement schedule, which appears in Schedulethi®form 10-K, and of our report dated Septen2er2006 with respect to management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting and the effectivenesstdrnal control over financial reporting,
which report is included in Item 9 in this Annuagport on Form 10-K.

/s/ MossA pams LLP

Los Angeles, Californi
September 20, 20C



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Deepak Chopra, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of OSI Systems, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial réijpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting princijj

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemnmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the
equivalent functions)

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: September 20, 2006

/s/ DEePAKC HOPRA

Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Anuj Wadhawan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of OSI Systems, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal controls over financial repagt(as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

(b)  Designed such internal controls over financial répg, or caused such internal controls over finaneporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemnmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the
equivalent functions)

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: September 20, 2006

/sl ANUJW ADHAWAN

Anuj Wadhawar
Chief Financial Officel



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OSI Systems. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded June 30, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thehdaeof (the “Report”), I, Deepak Chopra, Chief Extace Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipntso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6f2@hat:

(a) The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934, as amended; and

(b) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates and for the periods presémtbis Report.

Date: September 20, 2006

/s/ DEeepAK C HOPRA

Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OSI Systems. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded June 30, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on theldatof (the “Report”)l, Anuj Wadhawan, Chief Financial Officer of the i@pany, certify
pursuant to 18, U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteslipat to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac06R2that:

(a) The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934, as amended; and

(b) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates and for the periods presémtbis Report.

Date: September 20, 2006

/sl ANUJW ADHAWAN

Anuj Wadhawar
Chief Financial Officel



